
 

 

LAKE SHASTINA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

AGENDA 
Wednesday, June 19, 2019, 1:00 p.m. 

Administration Building 
16320 Everhart Drive ▪ Weed, California 96094 ▪ (530) 938-3281 

 
CALL TO ORDER:    
LSCSD Board Roll Call:  Directors:  Beck _____ Cupp _____ MacIntosh _____ Mitchell _____ Thompson _____  
 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 

PUBLIC COMMENTS:  This is an opportunity for members of the public to address the Board on subjects 
within its jurisdiction.  Each individual comment will be limited to three minutes.  The public comment portion of 
the meeting will be limited to thirty minutes (total time).  For items that are on this agenda, speakers may 
request that their comments be heard instead at the time the item appears on the agenda prior to the Board 
addressing the agenda item.  The Board may ask questions but may not act during the Public Comments 
portion of the meeting, except to direct staff to prepare a report, or to place the item on a future agenda. 
 

CONSENT CALENDAR:  Items on the Consent Calendar are considered routine, not requiring separate 
discussion.  However, if discussion is wanted, the item may be removed from the Consent Calendar and 
considered separately.  Board members may ask questions of clarification without removing an item from the 
Calendar.  Individual items are approved by the vote that approves the Consent Calendar, unless an item is 
pulled for separate consideration. 
 

1. A. Approval of Minutes:  Regular Meeting May 15, 2019, Special Meeting May 17, 2019, Special Meeting 
May 21, 2019 and Special Meeting June 5, 2019  

 B. Ratification of Disbursements:  May 1 through May 31, 2019 
 C.  Budget Comparison:  FY 2018/19 YTD 
  

MONTHLY REPORTS:  NO ACTION ITEMS: 
2. Department Written Reports 

A. Fire Department  
B. Police Department  
C. Sewer Department  
D. Water Department  

3. Committee Written Reports / Approved Minutes 
 (Pres. Thompson may make committee appointments/changes as necessary.) 

A. Budget / Finance Committee  
B. Fire Department Advisory Committee 
C. General Manager Search/Recruitment Committee 
D. Police Department Advisory Committee 
E. Policy Committee 
F. Safety Committee 
G. Sewer and Water Systems Oversight Committee 

 

DISCUSSION / REPORTS:  ACTION ITEMS: 
4. Proposed Ordinance 1-19, modification to residential and commercial monthly sewer rates and sewer 

connection fee.  Introduce by title only, waive second reading and consideration of adoption (Vice Pres. 
Mitchell)  

5. Proposed Ordinance 2-19, Animal Control:  Introduce by title only, waive First Reading, and set Second 
(Vice Pres. Mitchell) 

6. FY 2019/20 Operating Budget:  Public Hearing and consideration of approval by resolution (Vice Pres. 
Mitchell) 

7. Consideration of approval of amendments to Personnel Policy – Public Works Department Job Descriptions 
(GM Moser) 

8. Consideration of approval of adjustment to Salary Schedule – Public Works Leadman Position (GM 
Moser) 

9. Consideration of appointment of District negotiator for all aspects of applying for Community Development 
Block Grant for new Fire Station, including negotiations for land purchase (GM Moser) 

10. Consideration of proposal(s) received from the Request for Qualifications to select an engineering firm to 
provide planning and engineering design for its Drinking Water Planning Grant (SWRCB Proposition 1 
funding) (GM Moser) 



 

LSCSD Agenda 6/19/19 

 

 

 

 

11. Consideration of approval of LSCSD/LSPOA Maintenance Yard Agreement (GM Moser) 
12. Ratification of Robert Moser’s Employment Agreement dated May 20, 2019 and approval of clarification 

to Section 8 of Agreement (Vice Pres. Mitchell) 
 

STAFF COMMENTS:  
 

BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS: 
 

ADJOURNMENT:  The next LSCSD Regular Board Meeting is scheduled to be held on July 17, 2019 1:00 
p.m. at the Administration Building. 
 
Supplementary documents and other materials distributed to the District board after their agenda packets 
have been distributed to the members may be viewed at the District office and obtained at the meeting. 



I ITEM 1A 

~ LAKE SHASTINA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

Regular Meeting 
Wednesday, May 15, 2019, 1:00 p.m. 

Administration Building 
16320 Everhart Drive• Weed, California 96094 • (530) 938-3281 

Unapproved MINUTES 

CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL: 1:00 p.m. 
LSCSD Board Roll Call: Beck_"- Cupp_"- MacIntosh_"- Mitchell_"- Thompson_"
Also present: IGM/PWS Moser, SAC Nelle, APC Bullington and AA Charvez. 
There were approximately 15 people in the audience. 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Carried out. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS: Comments received. 

CONSENT CALENDAR: (All items accepted/approved by the Board unless otherwise noted.) 
1. A. Approval of Minutes: Regular Meeting April 17, 2019 

B. Ratification of Disbursements: April 1 through April 30, 2019 
C. Budget Comparison: FY 2018/19 YTD 
D. LAIF Quarterly Report 
E. Ratification of transfer of CSD Operating funds to LAIF Savings 
F. Approval of transfer of LAIF Savings to CSD Operating Account 

Motion by Dir. MacIntosh second Dir. Cupp to approve Consent Calendar. 
Ayes: Directors Beck, Cupp, MacIntosh, Mitchell and Thompson 
Noes: None 
Absent: None 

MONTHLY REPORTS: NO ACTION ITEMS: 
2. Department Written Reports 

A. Fire Department: APC Bullington reported. 
B. Police Department: APC Bullington reported. 
C. Sewer Department: !GM Moser reported. 
D. Water Department: !GM Moser reported. 

3. Committee Written Reports/ Approved Minutes 
(Pres. Thompson may make committee appointments/changes as necessary.) 

A. Budget/ Finance Committee: Dir. Mitchell reported. 
B. Fire Department Advisory Committee: Dir. Mitchell reported. 
C. General Manager Search/Recruitment Committee: Dir. Cupp reported. 
D. Police Department Advisory Committee: Dir. Cupp reported. 
E. Policy Committee: Pres. Thompson reported. 
F. Safety Committee: Dir. Beck reported. 
G. Sewer and Water Systems Oversight Committee: Pres. Thompson reported. 

DISCUSSION/ REPORTS: ACTION ITEMS: 
4. Consideration of declaring two vehicles as surplus and authorize selling the vehicles: APC Bullington reported. The 

Board discussed. 

Motion by Dir. Mitchell second Dir. Cupp to authorize the APC to sell vehicles 1) VIN / 
2B3KA43T490H641908 2008 DODGE CHARGER and 2) VIN/ 2FAHP71V28X148820 2008 FORD CROWN 
VICTORIA, and transfer vehicle VIN/ 2B3LA43G38H157489 2010 DODGE CHARGER to Administration. 

Ayes: Directors Beck, Cupp, MacIntosh, Mitchell and Thompson 
Noes: None 
Absent: None 

5. Consideration of amendments to FY 2018/19 Operating Budget: IGM Moser and SAC Nelle reported. The Board 
discussed. 

Motion by Dir. Cupp second Dir. MacIntosh to approve amendments to the FY 2018/19 Operating Budget, 
as presented 

Ayes: 
Noes: 
Absent: 

Directors Beck, Cupp, MacIntosh, Mitchell and Thompson 
None 
None 

Page l of2 



CSD Minutes 5/15/19 
6. Consideration of rescinding Board action regarding request to waive past charges - APN 020-071-480-000, due to 

Siskiyou County Auditor's request for specific wording: IGM Moser reported. The Board discussed. 

Motion by Dir. Cupp second Dir. Mitchell to rescind Item #4 of the March 20, 2019 Board Meeting minutes 
due to the Siskiyou County Auditor's request for specific wording on this matter. 

Ayes: Directors Beck, Cupp, MacIntosh, Mitchell and Thompson 
Noes: None 
Absent: None 

7. Consideration of correction to assessments submitted in error to Siskiyou County -APN 020-071-480-000: IGM 
Moser reported. The Board discussed. 

Motion by Dir. Cupp second Dir. Mitchell to approve correcting the 2013 amount submitted to Siskiyou 
County from $44,251.80 to $22,400.83 for APN 020-071-480-000. 

Ayes: Directors Beck, Cupp, MacIntosh, Mitchell and Thompson 
Noes: None 
Absent: None 

8. Consideration of refund to property owner $7,826.69 received from the Siskiyou County which paid amounts 
assessed in error - APN 020-071-480-000: IGM Moser reported. The Board discussed. 

Motion by Dir. Cupp second Dir. Mitchell to approve refund to property owner $7,826.69 received from the 
Siskiyou County Auditor which paid amounts in error -APN 020-071-480-000. 

Ayes: Directors Beck, Cupp, MacIntosh, Mitchell and Thompson 
Noes: None 
Absent: None 

STAFF COMMENTS: Comments received. 

BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS: Comments received. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS ON CLOSED SESSION: None 

ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION: With no objections by the Board, Pres Thompson adjourned to Closed 
Session at 2:02 p.m. 

CLOSED SESSION: 2:05 p.m. 
Also present: IGM Moser and SAC Nelle for Item A 
A. Conference with Labor Negotiator - Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6 District Negotiator: Interim 

General Manager Robert Moser 
B. Personnel (Gov. Code Section 54957) Public Employee Performance Evaluation: Interim General Manager 

With no objections by the Board, Pres. Thompson adjourned Closed Session at 3:33 p.m. 

RETURN TO OPEN SESSION: 3:35 p.m. 
Also present: IGM Moser and SAC Nelle. There was one person in the audience. 

REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION: Pres. Thompson reported: 
Item A: Direction was given to staff. 
Item B: A special meeting will be held on May 17, 2019, 9:00 a.m. to discuss appointment of General Manager, 
per Gov. Code Section 54957. 

ADJOURNMENT: With no objections by the Board, Pres. Thompson adjourned the meeting at 3:37 p.m. 

The next LSCSD Regular Board Meeting is on Wednesday, June 19, 2019, 1:00 p.m. at the Administration 
Building. 
Approval Date: ________ _ 

Rick Thompson, President 

ATTEST: 

Robert Moser, General Manager/Secretary 

Page 2 of2 



CSD Minutes 5117119 

LAKE SHASTINA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

Special Meeting 
Friday, May 17, 2019, 9:00 a.m. 

Administration Building 
16320 Everhart Drive• Weed, California 96094 • (530) 938-3281 

Unapproved MINUTES 

CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL: 9:00 a.m. 
LSCSD Board Roll Call: Beck_../_Cupp_..J_Maclntosh_v_ MitcheU_v_ Thompson_,./_ 
Also present: IGM/PWS Moser and AA Charvez 
There were no people in the audience. 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Carried out. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS: None 

ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION: With no objections by the Board, Pres Thompson adjourned to Closed 
Session at 9:01 a.m. 

CLOSED SESSION: Also present: District Counsel Margaret Long via teleconference. 
A Personnel (Gov. Code§ 54957): Public Employee Appointment for the position of General Manager. 

With no objections by the Board, Pres Thompson Closed Session at 10:41 a.m. 

RETURN TO OPEN SESSION: 10:43 a.m. 
Also present: IGM/PWS Moser and AA Charvez 
There were no people in the audience. 

REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION: Pres. Thompson reported that direction was given to District counsel to negotiate 
with Robert Moser for GM position. 

BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS: Comments received. 

ADJOURNMENT: With no objections by the Board, Pres. Thompson adjourned the meeting at 10:50 a.m. 

Approval Date: ---------

Rick Thompson, President 

ATTEST: 

Robert Moser, General Manager/Secretary 

Page 1 of I 



CSD Minutes 5121119 

LAKE SHASTINA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

Special Meeting 
Tuesday, May 21, 2019, 10:00 a.m. 

Administration Building 
16320 Everhart Drive· Weed, California 96094 • (530) 938-3281 

Unapproved MINUTES 

CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL: 10:02 a.m. 
LSCSD Board Roll Call: Beck_../_Cupp_...J_Maclntosh_...J_ Mitchell_../_ Thompson_../_ 
Also present: IGM/PWS Moser and AA Charvez 
There were no people in the audience. 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Waived. 

BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS: None. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS: None 

ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION: With no objections by the Board, Pres Thompson adjourned to Closed 
Session at 10:02 a.m. 

CLOSED SESSION: Also present: Robert Moser at 10:41 a.m. 
A. Personnel (Gov. Code § 54957): Public Employee Appointment for the position of General Manager. 

With no objections by the Board, Pres Thompson Closed Session at 10:48 a.m. 

RETURN TO OPEN SESSION: 10:49 a.m. 
Also present: IGM/PWS Moser and AA Charvez 
There was one person in the audience. 

REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION: Pres. Thompson reported that Board agreed to proceed with General Manager 
Employment Agreement with Robert Moser. 

DISCUSSION / ACTION ITEMS: 

1. Approval of General Manager Employment Agreement: Pres. Thompson stated that two dates were amended 
in the draft agreement: agreement effective start date - May 20, 2019 and Section 8.f. - July 1, 2020. 

Motion by Dir. Cupp second Dir. Beck to approve the General Manager Employment Agreement with 
Robert Moser, as presented, with two revised dates. 

Ayes: Directors Beck, Cupp, MacIntosh, Mitchell and Thompson 
Noes: None 
Absent: None 

ADJOURNMENT: With no objections by the Board, Pres. Thompson adjourned the meeting at 10:51 a.m. 

Approval Date: ---------

Rick Thompson, President 

ATTEST: 

Robert Moser, General Manager/Secretary 

Page l of l 



CSD Minutes 615/19 

LAKE SHASTINA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

Special Meeting 
Wednesday, June 5, 2019, 1 :00 p.m. 

Administration Building 
16320 Everhart Drive• Weed, California 96094 • (530) 938-3281 

Unapproved MINUTES 

CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL: 1 :00 p.m. 
LSCSD Board Roll Call: Beck_,,/_Cupp_,,/_Maclntosh_,,/_ Mitchell_../_ Thompson_../_ 
Also present: GM Moser, APC Bullington and AA Charvez 
There were approximately 16 people in the audience. 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Carried out. 

BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS: Comments received. 

PUBLIC HEARING: 

1. Proposed Ordinance 1-19, modification to residential and commercial monthly sewer rates and sewer 
connection fee. 

A. Open Public Hearing/ Public Comments I Close Public Hearing 

Pres. Thompson opened the Public Hearing at 1 :03 p.m. Comments were received. Pres. Thompson 
closed the Public Hearing at 1: 14 p.m. 

B. Introduce by title only, waive First Reading, and set Second Reading for Ordinance 1-19: Pres. 
Thompson introduced proposed Ordinance 1-19 by title. 

Motion by Dir. Beck second Dir. Mitchell to waive the First Reading (reading the ordinance in its entirety). 
Ayes: Directors Beck, MacIntosh, Mitchell and Thompson 
Noes: Director Cupp 
Absent: None 

Pres. Thompson set the Second Reading for proposed Ordinance 1-19 to be on the June 19, 2019, 1:00 
p.m. Regular Meeting agenda. 

ADJOURNMENT: With no objections by the Board, Pres. Thompson adjourned the meeting at 1 :41 p.m. 

Approval Date: ---------

Rick Thompson, President 

ATTEST: 

Robert Moser, General Manager/Secretary 

Page I of 1 



TREASURER'S REPORT- RATIFICATION OF DISBURSEMENTS 18 
LAKE SHASTINA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT~ 

Board motion "To ratify the checks for expenses, including payroll 
and liabilities, issued on behalf of the District for the period of May 
1 thru May 31, 2019 for a total of: " $ 555,955.09 

Each check has been signed by two directors with documentation 
attached to each check . 

..__ ____ s_ub_m_itt_e_d_f_or_M ___ ay ___ 20_1_9 _____ 1 $ 555,955.09 

Expenses - Regular Checks Mechanics Bank Account 
Expenses - Payroll & Liability Checks Mechanics Bank Account 

Subtotal 

Total CSD Expenses 

$ 472,375.71 
$ 83,579.38 
$ 555,955.09 

$ 555,955.09 

L:\C S D\CSD FINANCIALS\2018-20'19\LSCSD Ratification of Dlsbursements 2019-5 



LAKE SHASTINA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRJCT 18 
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE· MECHANICS BANK 

10 ,. 20 25 26 30 
Regc.cl3r PayroH 

Dm JEcrCk# P• ee Total Ex nse l;xpe,nses :Expenses Goocral Sewer Water Pollc:e COPS Gr.int Fin, 

5/112019 23272 Void - Pa roll Check Live Ch-eek Incorrect hot.Jts 
5/1/2019 23273 Pa rou Check Live Check a 370.33 8 370.33 B.370.33 
5/1/2019 504048 EDD EFT 1193.97 1193.97 1193.97 
511/2019 504049 EFTPS EFT 4 513.72 4513.72 4 513.72 
511/2019 504050 American Funds EFT 453.89 453.89 
511/2019 504051 calPERS 457 EFT 135.79 i -135.79 

512/2019 JE #77468 Traoste-rto LAIF 55,000.00 145 000.00 150 000.00 
5/2/2019 JE #77792 'Vlnte Transfer Fee 30,00 

5/212019 871 First NII B•nk-W8 B0.45 I 

5/212019 872 Fim NII B,nk-RM 416.59 212.66 212.61 I 
5/212019 i 874 First Nt:I Bank..SP 708.10 708.10 
5/212019 875 Paeifie Power 9 963.93 9 963.93 1103.47 3 836.68 4 505.84 252.33 265,61 

5/212019 876 US Sank Equipment Finance 138.39 138.39 138.39 
5/212019 877 1Verizon Wireless 170.88 170.88 128.16 42.72 
5/212019 878 Verizon Wireless 61.26 61.28 61.26 
5/212019 879 Williams Scotsman 293.33 293.33 146.66 I 146.67 
5/212019 23252 Black Butte Auto 250.00 250.00 I 250.00 

512/2019 23253 ca1 Ore Tele hone 420-56 420.56 192,21 60.78 60.78 85.43 21.36 
512/2019 23254 CowleyD&L 60.S7 60.97 40.65 10,16 10.18 
5/212019 23255 JP Company 71.15 71.15 I 71.15 
5/212019 23256 KemePower 530.00 530.00 I 400.00 65.00 65.00 

5/212019 23267 Mmer's Jackets 185.SO 185.SO I 185,50 

5/212019 2325B Morgan Barr 151.38 151.38 151.36 ! 
51212019 23259 . N.C.G.T. Security Fund 15 335.00 15 335.00 4 966.00 i 2,089.50 2 069.50 2 860.00 1 SSS.00 1 665.00 
51212019 23260 QuTII Corp 713.97 713.97 500,04 70.24 70.24 36.72 36.73 
5/212019 23261 Reporting Systems, Inc. 2 124.00 2124.00 2124.00 
512/2019 23262 Shasta Auto Suppty 34.74 34.74 ' 34.74 ' 5/212019 23263 SHN Consulting "Engineers 3552.50 3552.50 3 552.50 i 
512/2019 23264 SHN Consulting Engjneers 11 73.75 11473.75 11 473.75 

5/212019 23265 Solano's Inc. 209,68 209.68 151.37 10.01 48.30 

5/212019 23266 The Radar Sho S7.50 87.50 67.50 

51212019 23267 The Si n Dude 51.29 S1.29 ! 51.29 

5/212019 2326B !Uline 710.52 710.52 110.s2 I 
23269 Western Business Products 170.8B 170.88 170.68 

23270 wm Johnson Electric 

4.00 

4 333.99 

1 342.08 344.73 

4 558.00 926.94 

359.13 
2 021,27 

551.45 

698.29 

20,220.04 

5116/2019 883 500.00 
5116/2019 23280 436.50 436.50 
5/16/2D19 23281 1 382.03 1 382.03 1 3S2.03 

5/16/2019 23282 53,49 53.49 26.75 ! 26.74 
5/16/2019 23283 4 7.79 4 437.79 1 296.49 783.89 609,13 782.08 966.20 
5/16/2019 23284 Ferguson Waterv.rorks 65.84 65.84 65.84 
5/16/2019 i 23285 Heckers Power Equipment 124.67 124.67 i 124.67 
5/16/2019 l 23286 Hue& Cry 38.00 38.00 ! 36.0D 
5116/2019 23287 Joff Partrldge 450.00 450.00 I 450.00 

L:\C S D\CSD FINANCIALS\2018-2019\LSCSD Ratification of Disbursement• 2019-5 



LAKE SHASTJNA COM MU NJTY SERVICES OISTRJCT 
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE· MECHANICS BANK 

Date JEorCk# 

5/1612019 232SS 
5/16/2019 232S9 
5/16/2019 23290 
5/16/2019 23291 
5/1612019 23292 
5116/2019 23293 
5116/2019 232:94 
5/1612019 23295 
5/1612019 

5/16/2019 

5/23/2019 504082 
5/2312019 504083 
5/2312019 5040S4 
5/2312019 504085 
5123/2019 504086 
5/2312019 

5/2312019 
5/2312019 

5128/2019 

5/28/2019 

512812019 
5/28/2019 

5/2812019 

5129/2019 JE #77800 

5130/2019 882 
5130/2019 SS4 
513012019 ass 
513012019 886 
5130/2019 887 
5/3012019 889 
5/3012019 890 
5130/2019 891 
5130/2019 23309 
5130/2019 23310 
5/3012019 23311 
5130/2019 23312 
513012019 23313 
5/30/2019 23314 
5/30/2019 23315 
513012019 I 23316 
513012019 I 23317 
5/30/2019 ! 23318 
5130/2019 23319 
5/30/2019 23320 
5130/2019 23321 
5130/2019 23322 
5/3012019 23323 
5/30/2019 23324 
5/3012019 23"325 
513012019 23326 
5/3012019 23327 

513112019 I JE#n796 

IP.:i ec: 
I 10 1S 

ReguI.:ir Payroll 
iot.:ilEx nscf ~pell$()!.: Ex_pen:$ll$ Ge.ner.:i.l St?Wer 

!Juniper Valley Subdivision 124.42 124.42 62.21 
LSCSD Uti!iti-es 130.9$ 130.96 55.96 
MRJCJnc. 42.61 42.61 42.61 
Mt.Shasta iT Sen.ices 2 200.00 2 200.00 660.00 330.00 ' 
Personnel Preference 525.00 525.00 525.00 
Prentice, Long & Epperson 1 987.50 1 987.SO 665.00 43.75 
Quill Corp 170.24 

85.00 42.50 

200.00 
8.50 14.20 

4 965.00 3 458.70 

4105.48 2.942.99 
643.22 643.22 241.SO 210.00 

1 258.87 1 258.87 339.27 503.07 

4 271.91 4 271.91 909.39 1385.57 
!American Funds EFT 377.24 377.24 
caf PERS Classic EFT 2 021.27 985,76 

CalPERS PEPRA EFT 559.16 205.17 
33.12 

73.57 

128.65 128.65 

Returned Item Fee - Dixon 10.00 

Pacific: Power 753.53 4429,87 

Utm iefe hone 325.00 

Verizon Wireless 203.50 203.50 

Verizon WireIQSS 61.26 61.26 

. Williams St.:otsman 293.33 293.33 146.67 

First Ntl Bank-RM 1835,54 1 835.54 48.25 l 875.41 

First Ntl Bank-ON 945.79 945.79 931.33 j 
First 111!1 Bank•WB 667.62 127.63 

Alanna DeBon 57.83 57.83 46.81 2.87 

Basic lab 134.40 134.40 

Bobcat of Fl.eddln 1 689.14 1 689.14 844.57 
Bonnie Graham 36.00 36.00 

California Ponce Chiefs Association 300.00 300.00 
Cascade Fire Equipment 717.50 717.50 
Dee-pwoods: Ernbroide:ry Design 108.78 108.78 54.39 
Keme Power 530.00 530.00 , 400.00 
Personnel Preference 40.00 40.00 ! 40.00 
Qui:UCorp 810.75 810.75 i 684.22 
Shasta VaJley Cha.in.saw 175.58 175.58 87.79 
SHN Cons,ulting Engineets 4 754.86 754.86 4 754.86 

!Siskiyou &i::row 197.70 197.70 197.70 
, Todd Quartemont 199.09 199.09 199.09 
Tyler Technologies 5 688.17 5 688.17 5 688.17 
Verde-II Kische 21.91 21.91 21.91 
wtmam ttusseU 250.00 250.00 125.00 ! 
Woods Pest Control 164.00 62.00 
XIO, Inc. 

Online AC:K fee - Ma 2019 6.10 

83 579.38 102 938.S4i 197 336.30 

L.:\C S D\CSD FINA.NClALS\2018-2019\LSCSD Ratificatlon of Disbursements 2019~5 

18 

20 25 26 30 

W,rt,,r ?Qllee COPS Grant Fire 

31.10 31.11 
29..25 45.75 

330.00 660.00 220.00 

43.75 1182.50 52.50 

42,50 40.00 40.00 
16.00 

14.20 16.87 

2 946.30 

518.75 

111.25 139.24 166.04 
678.14 697.69 601.12 
144.82 105.50 126.92 

7,181.51 224.64 I 237.92 

162.50 54.16 
128.16 75.34 

61.26 
146.66 ! 
911.88 i 

7.23 7.23 

539.99 
7.74 0.41 

134.40 
844.57 

36.00 
300.00 

717.50 
54.39 

65.00 65.00 

63.26 63.27 
87.79 I 

125.00 
41.00 

382.00 

35 347.851 33 799,58 172 635.29 



(u,,..._ 

REVENUE/EXPENDITURE REPORT 

LAKE SHASTINA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 1C 

6/14/2019 
For the Period: 711/2018 to 5/31/2019 Orlg!nal Bud. Amended Bud. YTD Actual CURR MTH UnencBal 

11111•• •IIIIIJlffllll 
Revenues 

Dept: 00 
4055.000 Misc Operational Income 500.00 500.00 321.14 9.25 178.86 64.2 
4070.000 Antenna Lease Revenue 23,155.93 23,155.93 20,862.38 1,595.09 2,293.55 90.1 
5050.000 Transfer Fees 4,000.00 4,000.00 3,480.00 280.06 520.00 87.0 
5080.000 Interest Earned-OPS 200.00 200.00 25.81 2.35 174.19 12.9 
5081.000 Interest Earned-RSV 2,000.00 2,000.00 267.96 0.00 1,732.04 13.4 

Dept: 22 Medical Clinic 
4053.000 Medical Cllnlc Revenue 60,264.00 60,264.00 55,242.00 10,044.00 5,022.00 91.7 

Revenues 90,119.93 90,119.93 . 8~,199.29 11,930.69 9,920.64 89.0 

Expenditures 
Dept: 01 General Admln 

7002.000 Adm!n overhead Alloc -388,356.53 -426,352.15 -366,672.01 -36,163.07 -59,680.14 86.0 
7010.000 Capital Improvement 6,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0 

Less Reimbursement due from LA!F Savings -6,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0 
7020.000 IT Contract Services/Server 0.00 12,500.00 11,710.95 330.00 789.05 93.7 
7026.000 Contract Services 25,000.00 20,000.00 4,082.31 300.00 15,917.69 20.4 
7032.000 FIiing Fees 150.00 150.00 0.00 0.00 150.00 0.0 
7033.000 Licenses, Permits, Fees 3,000.00 3,000.00 2,033.37 208.87 966.63 67.8 
7034.000 Dues & Subscriptions 6,100.00 7,200.00 6,999.66 2.59 200.34 97.2 
7035.000 Advertising 250.00 2,750.00 1,246.74 432.04 1,503.26 45.3 
7040.000 Jnsurance (liability) 500.00 650.00 632.07 0.00 17.93 97.2 
7041.000 Legal 25,000.00 15,000.00 9,870.00 962.50 5,130.00 65.8 
7050.100 Off Exp-Supplies 5,000.00 8,500.00 8,047.57 404.67 452.43 94.7 
7050.200 Off Exp-Postage 6,000.00 6,000.00 5,276.22 329.10 723.78 87.9 
7050.400 Off Exp-Ma!nt 7,750.00 7,750.00 5,337.09 66.57 2,412.91 68.9 
7062.000 Repair & Maintenance 3,500.00 3,500.00 2,853.65 113.49 646.35 81.5 
7063.000 Fuel 0.00 300.00 50.79 0.00 249.21 16.9 
7064.000 Materials/Supplies/Small Too!s 500.00 4,500.00 4,789.69 42.87 -289.69 106.4 
7065.000 Vehicle Repair/Maintenance 0.00 1,000.00 924.82 0.00 75.18 92.5 
7101.000 PropertyTaxes 140.00 140.00 126.00 0.00 14.00 90.0 
7105.000 UtlliUes- CSD 1,000.00 1,000.00 737.26 49.13 262.74 73.7 
7105.100 Utll-Telephone 2,300.00 2,300.00 2,000.98 162.50 299.02 87.0 
7105.200 UUI-Electrlc 5,500.00 5,500.00 4,132.38 611.42 1,367.62 75.1 
7105.400 UUlities-Propane 500.00 500.00 136.67 0.00 363.33 27.3 
7105.600 Utility- Internet 1,550.00 1,550.00 1,281.40 128.14 268.60 82.7 
7204.000 Events 500.00 625.00 608.36 0.00 16.64 97.3 
7245.000 Election 1,500.00 0.00 78.50 0.00 -78.50 0.0 
7501.000 Payroll Expense 254,137.12 239,317.02 228,031.77 18,226.52 11,285.25 95.3 
7513.000 Payroll-TAXES 6,288.99 5,736.62 6,197.52 348.17 460.90 108.0 
7514.000 Payrol!-Beneflts 66,011.40 67,506.60 59,907.50 9,334.50 7,599.10 88.7 
7516.200 Pension Cost (CalPERS) 20,113.90 17,502.76 17,058.27 1,377.24 444.49 97.5 
7516.400 CalPERS Fees 0.00 0.00 378.00 0.00 -378.00 0.0 
7516.500 CalPERS UAL Expense 32,661.90 32,661.90 26,850.20 0.00 5,811.70 82.2 
7518.000 Workers Comp 21,931.47 23,729.97 21,644.15 0.00 2,085.82 91.2 
7530. 100 PR Reimbursement Adm in -87,922.32 -87,922.32 -82,635.10 -8,982.15 -5,287.22 94.0 
7530.300 Payroll Relmb Maintenance 7,000.00 47,240.53 36,064.43 11,591.56 11,156.10 76.4 
7550.000 Travel & Training 1,500.00 5,000.00 4,647.16 19.48 352.84 92.9 
7551.000 Meals 750.00 1,000.00 508.92 0.00 491.08 50.9 

Dept: 22 Medical Clfnlc 
7026.000 Contract Services 3,000.00 3,000.00 450.00 0.00 2,550.00 15.0 
7040.000 Insurance (liability) 650.00 670.00 668.53 0.00 1.47 99.8 
7062.000 Repair & Maintenance 3,000.00 3,000.00 165.16 0.00 2,834.84 5.5 
7080.000 Interest Expense 4,750.00 8,500.00 8,565.88 0.00 -65.88 100.8 
7084.000 Loan Principle Expense 39,250.00 35,500.00 35,434.12 0.00 65.88 99.8 
7530.000 Payroll Reimbursement 2,500.00 2,500.00 938.95 302.80 1,561.05 37.6 

Medical Building Reserves 7,114.00 7,114.00 6,521.14 592.84 592.86 91.7 

Ex~enditures 90,119.93 90,119.93 77,701.07 791.78 12,418.86 85.6 

2019-5 LSCSD Detail Budget Comparison 



Page: 2 

Dept: 00 
4001.100 Assml/Revenue-ResidenUal 476,668.80 476,668.80 478,861.38 0.00 -2,192.58 100.5 
4001.200 Assml/Revenue-Standby 65,844.00 65,844.00 65,619.00 0.00 225.00 99.7 
4001.300 Assml/Revenue-Commerclal 4,939.20 4,939.20 6,300.42 445.61 -1,361.22 127.6 
4003.000 Late Payment Revenue 2,800.00 2,800.00 2,481.78 18.75 318.22 88.6 
5004.000 Sewer Hook Up Fee 21,745.50 36,243.50 62,631.00 26,388.50 -26,387,50 172.8 
5005.000 Sewer Payment Contracts 252.00 252.00 1,445.12 1,256.12 -1,193.12 573.5 
5040.000 Gain on Sale of Equipment 2,500.00 2,500.00 0.00 0.00 2,500.00 0.0 
5081.000 Interest Earned-RSV 3,400.00 3,400.00 3,504.55 0.00 -104.55 103.1 

Dept: 23 Green Waste Site 
4055.000 Misc Operational Income 3,000.00 3,000.00 3,600.00 365.00 -600.00 120.0 

Dept: 36 Planning Grants 
5075.000 Grant Income 0.00 236,933.00 79,694.27 0.00 157,238.73 33.6 

Revenues 581,149.50 832,580.50 704,137.52 28,473.98 128,442.98 84.6 

Expenditures 
Dept: 01 General Admln 

7001.000 Accounting AudiVReview 2,800.00 2,800.00 2,800.00 0.00 0.00 100.0 
7002.000 Admln Overhead Alloc 135,924.79 136,432.69 117,335.04 11,572.18 19,097.65 86.0 
7003.000 Bad Debt 0.00 0.00 2.74 0.00 -2.74 0.0 
7010.000 Capital Improvement 334,500.00 379,500.00 176,121.15 37,694.09 203,378.85 46.4 

Less Reimbursement due from LA!F Savings -334,5-00.00 -379,500.00 -176,121.15 -37,694.09 -203,378.85 --46.4 
7020.000 IT Contract Services/Server 0.00 4,200.00 3,757.55 330.00 442.45 89.5 
7026.000 Contract Servlces 20,000.00 18,000.00 4,587.77 376.60 13,412.23 25.5 
7033.000 Licenses, Permits, Fees 8,000.00 8,000.00 7,509.51 0.00 490.49 93.9 
7034.000 Dlfes & Sl!bscriptions 500.00 500.00 194.74 0.00 305.26 38.9 
7035.000 Advertising 0.00 250.00 99.76 0.00 150.24 39.9 
7040.000 lnslffance (LJabllity) 13,261.00 14,000.00 13,980.13 0.00 19.87 99.9 
7041.000 Legal 1,000.00 1,000.00 271.29 227.50 728.75 27.1 
7050.100 Off Exp-Supplies 400.00 400.00 320.43 0.00 79.57 80.1 
7050.200 Off Exp-Postage 100.00 600.00 553.54 0.00 46.46 92.3 
7055.000 Safety Equipment 2,000.00 1,000.00 627.01 0.00 372.99 62.7 
7061.000 Rental Equipment 500.00 500.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 0.0 
7062.000 Repair & Maintenance 20,000.00 16,000.00 13,162.65 360.81 2,837.35 82.3 
7063.000 Fuel 6,500.00 6,500.00 5,733.24 30.50 766.76 88.2 
7064.000 Materials/Supplies/Small Tools 5,000.00 7,000.00 7,557.80 1,035.38 -557.80 108.0 
7065.000 Vehicle Repair/Maintenance 5,000.00 3,000.00 3,577.60 859.40 -577.60 119.3 
7080.000 Interest Expense 21,127.86 21,127.86 21,127.86 0.00 0.00 100.0 
7085.000 Municipal Finance Principle 39,897.58 39,897.58 39,897.58 0.00 0.00 100.0 
7100.000 Lease/Rent Expense 1,775.00 1,775.00 1,711.82 146.67 63.18 96.4 
7105.100 UUI-Telephone 490.00 490.00 457.81 48.64 32.19 93.4 
7105.200 UUI-E!ectric 52,000.00 52,000.00 40,271.47 8,266.55 11,728.53 77.4 
7105.300 Uti!-Waste 510.00 510.00 524.06 42.50 -14.06 102.8 
7105.600 Utility - Internet 0.00 450.00 340.46 60.78 109.54 75.7 
7501.000 Payroll Expense 141,417.15 151,419.40 121,502.37 16,393.06 29,917.03 80.2 
7513.000 Payroll-TAXES 3,209.04 3,356.22 2,846.09 306.36 510.13 84.8 
7514.000 Payroll-Benefits 40,489.19 38,203.33 33,259.95 7,539.45 4,843.38 87.1 
7516.200 Pension Cost (CalPERS) 10,833.51 10,121.42 8,488.10 1,105.92 1,633.32 83.9 
7516.400 CalPERS Fees 0.00 0.00 161.00 0.00 -161.00 0.0 
7516.500 CalPERS UAL Expense 14,913.18 16,705.50 16,705.50 0.00 0.00 100.0 
7516.600 Pension Plan Fees (MPPP) 0.00 100.00 87.00 0.00 13.00 87.0 
7518.000 Workers Comp 12,105.17 11,570.13 12,041.70 0.00 --471.57 104.1 
7530.000 Payroll Reimbursement -9,400.00 -49,640.53 --40,490.52 -12,239.50 -9,150.01 81.6 
7550.000 Travel & Training 2,500.00 8,500.00 6,771.97 578.29 1,728.03 79.7 
7551.000 Meals 400.00 1,000.00 691.84 131.37 308.06 69.2 
7552.000 Employee Physical Exams-Shots 500.00 500.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 0.0 
7555.000 Personal Protective Equip PPE 1,500.00 1,500.00 106.11 0.00 1,393.89 7.1 
7556.000 Uniforms 1,200.00 1,200.00 899.08 179.39 300.92 74.9 

Dept: 23 Green Waste S!te 
7026.000 Contract Services 800.00 800.00 345.44 25.00 454.56 43.2 
7063.000 Fuel 50.00 50.00 3.60 0.00 46.40 7.2 
7064.000 Materlals/Supplies/Small Tools 200.00 200.00 24.12 0.00 175.88 12.1 
7530.000 Payroll Reimbursement 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,244.20 319.02 -244.20 124.4 

Dept: 36 Planning Grants 
7026.000 Contract Services 0.00 166,838.28 98,160.87 0.00 68,677.41 58.8 
7041.000 Legal 0.00 30,000.00 0.00 0.00 30,000.00 0.0 
7530.000 Payroll Reimbursement 0.00 39,838.04 8,838.61 767.11 30,999.43 22.2 

ExQenditures 558,503.47 769,694.92 558,088.95 38,462.98 211,605.97 72.5 

2019-5 LSCSD Detail Budget Comparison 



Page: 3 

Dept: 00 
4001.100 Assm!/Revenue-Residentia! 342,791.61 342,791.61 345,901.53 0.00 -3,109.92 100.9 
4001.200 AssmURevenue-Standby 103,440.00 103,440.00 103,042.36 0.00 397.64 99.6 
4001.300 Assml/Revenue-Commercial 14,256.01 14,256.01 9,619.36 714.14 4,636.65 67.5 
4003.000 late Payment Revenue 9,000.00 9,000.00 8,784.61 1,128.75 215.39 97.6 
4075.000 Water Capacity Expansion Fee 960.00 960.00 2,240.00 1,280.00 -1,280.00 233.3 
5006.000 Water Hook Up Fee 795.00 795.00 1,855.00 1,060.00 -1,060.00 233.3 
5040.000 Gain on Sale of Equipment 2,500.00 2,500.00 0.00 0.00 2,500.00 0.0 
5081.000 Interest Earned-RSV 13,500.00 13,500.00 17,598.01 0.00 -4,098.01 130.4 

Dept: 22 Medical Cllnlc 
4054.000 loan Prlnclple Revenue 39,250.00 35,500.00 35,434.12 0.00 65.88 99.8 
5081.000 Interest Earned-RSV 4,750.00 8,500.00 8,565.88 0.00 -65.88 100.8 

Revenues 531,242.62 531,242.62 533,040.87 4,182.89 -1,798.25 100.3 

Expenditures 
7001.000 Accounting AudiVRev!ew 2,800.00 2,800.00 2,800.00 0.00 0.00 100.0 
7002.000 Admin Overhead Allee 174,760.44 153,486.77 132,001.92 13,018.71 21,484,85 86.0 
7003.000 Bad Debt 0.00 0.00 2.88 0.00 -2.88 0.0 
7010.000 Capita! Improvement 545,500.00 459,500.00 191,099.77 2,788.50 268,400.23 41.6 

less Reimbursement due from LAIF Savings -545,500.00 459,500.00 -191,099.77 -2,788.50 -268,400.23 41.6 
7020.000 IT Contract Services/Server 0.00 4,200.00 3,757.55 330.00 442.45 89.5 
7026.000 Contract Services 16,100.00 24,000.00 21,408.48 516.40 2,591.52 89.2 
7033.000 licenses, Permits, Fees 6,000.00 6,000.00 2,532.51 10.00 3,467.49 42.2 
7034.000 Dues & Subscriptions 1,300.00 1,300.00 1,217.14 0.00 82.86 93.6 
7035.000 Advertising 0.00 250.00 99.77 0.00 150.23 39.9 
7040.000 Insurance (Liability) 16,242.00 20,500.00 20,397.02 0.00 102.98 99.5 
7041.000 legal 5,000.00 5,000.00 148.75 0.00 4,851.25 3.0 
7050.100 Off Exp-Supplies 650.00 650.00 320.45 0.00 329,55 49.3 
7050.200 Off Exp-Postage 800.00 800.00 181.54 0.00 618.46 22.7 
7055.000 Safety Equipment 2,000.00 1,000.00 250.03 0.00 749.97 25.0 
7062.000 Repair & Maintenance 45,000.00 33,000.00 17,643.75 0.00 15,356.25 53.5 
7063.000 Fuel 6,500.00 6,500.00 4,847.56 30.51 1,652.44 74.6 
7064.000 Mater!alS/Supplles/Small Tools 8,000.00 25,000.00 31,353.66 6,759.90 -6,353.66 125.4 
7065.000 Vehlcle Repair/Maintenance 5,000.00 3,000.00 2,487.23 859.41 512.77 82.9 
7100.000 lease/Rent Expense 1,775.00 1,775.00 1,711.83 146.66 63. 17 96.4 
7105.100 um-Telephone 2,900.00 1,000.00 855.29 48.64 144.71 85.5 
7105.200 um-Electric 97,000.00 97,000.00 76,466.97 11,687.35 20,533.03 78.8 
7105.300 UUI-Waste 510.00 510.00 524.07 42.50 -14.07 102.8 
7105.600 Utility - Internet 0.00 450.00 340.47 60.78 109.53 75.7 
7501.000 Payroll Expense 122,411.98 114,703.66 84,375.09 5,893.38 30,328.57 73.6 
7513.000 Payroll-TAXES 2,777.78 2,655.21 2,249.24 182.58 405.97 64.7 
7514.000 Payroll-Benefits 35,047.81 32,411.27 29,362.55 3,642.05 3,048.72 90.6 
7516.200 Pension Cost (CalPERS) 9,377.59 8,586.90 6,004.84 417.82 2,582.06 69.9 
7516.400 CalPERS Fees 0.00 0.00 161.00 0.00 -161.00 0.0 
7516.500 CalPERS UAL Expense 12,909.91 14,814.30 14,814.30 0.00 0.00 100.0 
7516.600 Pension Plan Fees (MPPP) 0.00 100.00 87.00 0.00 13.00 87.0 
7518.000 Workers Comp 10,478.35 9,815.96 10,405.01 0.00 -589.05 106.0 
7550.000 Travel & Training 2,500.00 8,500.00 7,565.72 583.16 934.28 89.0 
7551.000 Meals 350.00 1,000.00 910.61 131.37 89.39 91.1 
7555.000 Personal Protective Equip PPE 1,500.00 1,500.00 106.10 0.00 1,393.90 7.1 
7556.000 Uniforms 1,200.00 1,200.00 899.09 179.39 300.91 74.9 

Ex~enditures 590,890.86 583,509.07 478,289.42 44,540.61 105,219.65 82.0 

Amended Bud. YTD Actual CURRMTH UnencBal %Bud 

136,730.00 136,730.00 137,035.63 0.00 -305.63 100.2 
264,020.00 284,020.00 282,975.00 0.00 1,045.00 99.6 

3,410.00 3,410.00 3,300.00 0.00 110.00 96.8 
10,000.00 10,000.00 8,449.36 18.75 1,550.64 64.5 

4056.000 Misc-Non Operating Income 3,200.00 3,200.00 165.47 0.00 3,034.53 5.2 
4080.000 Strike Team Rev Payroll Re!mb 0.00 5,306.00 5,305.53 0.00 0.47 100.0 
4085.000 Emerg Resp Reimb Trave!/Meals 0.00 926.00 925.81 0.00 0.19 100.0 
5054.000 An!mal Control Fees - Other 300.00 300.00 51.00 0.00 249.00 17.0 
5055.000 An!mal license Fee 4,800.00 4,800.00 3,960.00 120.00 840.00 82.5 
5056.000 Warrant 1,500.00 1,500.00 1,229.92 88.89 270.08 82.0 
5061.000 Donations 0.00 0.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 -1,000.00 0.0 
5062.000 Event Donations 500.00 500.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 0.0 
5081.000 Interest Earned-RSV 3,000.00 5,700.00 5,676.75 0.00 23.25 99.6 

Revenues 447,460.00 456,392.00 450,074.47 1,227.64 6,317.53 98.6 

2019-5 LSCSD Detail Budget Comparison 



Page: 4 
For !he Period: 7/1/2018 to 5/31/2019 Original Bud. Amended Bud. YTD Actual UnencBal 

ill\lNIPWM•MQIIIEH L L 
Expenditures 
7001.000 Accounting AudiUReview 2,800.00 2,800.00 2,800.00 0.00 0.00 100.0 
7002.000 Admln Overhead Alloc 46,602.78 72,479.87 62,334.24 6,147.72 10,145.63 86.0 
7003.000 Bad Debt 0.00 0.00 8.10 0.00 -8.10 0.0 
7010.000 Capital Improvement 25,800.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 o.o 

Less Reimbursement due from LA!F Savings -25,800,00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0 
7020.000 IT Contract Services/Server 0.00 12,750.00 11,982.75 660.00 767,25 94.0 
7026.000 Contract Services 6,000.00 2,500.00 3,209.30 142.00 -709.30 128.4 
7033.000 Licenses, Permits, Fees 4,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0 
7034.000 Dues & Subscriptions 3,000.00 3,000.00 2,874.33 2.59 125.67 95.8 
7035.000 Advertising 100.00 250.00 300.00 300.00 -50.00 120.0 
7040.000 Insurance (liability) 3,000.00 5,050.00 5,031.65 0.00 18.35 99.6 
7041.000 Legal 1,000.00 9,000.00 9,641.20 315.00 ·641.20 107.1 
7050.100 Off Exp-Supplies 1,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0 
7050.200 Off Exp-Postage 400.00 0.00 26.39 26.39 -26.39 0.0 
7050.400 Off Exp-Main! 2,200.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0 
7062.000 Repair & Maintenance 1,300.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0 
7063.000 Fuel 8,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0 
7064.000 Materials/Supplies/Small Tools 4,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0 
7065.000 Vehk:le Repair/Maintenance 6,500.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0 
7105.000 U!i!ities- CSD 600.00 600.00 525.82 66.69 74.18 87.6 
7105.100 UUI-Telephone 4,500.00 0.00 55.30 0.00 -55.30 0.0 
7105.200 UU!-8ectric 2,860.00 2,860.00 2,836.27 476.97 23.73 99.2 
7105.300 U!i!-Waste 480.00 480.00 440.00 40.00 40.00 91.7 
7105.400 Ulili.lies-Propane 1,000.00 1,000.00 985.70 0.00 14.30 98.6 
7105.600 Utility- Internet 1,800.00 1,800.00 864.30 85.43 945.70 47,5 
7204.000 Events 500.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0 
7501.000 Payroll Expense 231,242.70 204,430.95 209,479.45 19,683.92 -5,048.50 102.5 
7513.000 Payroll-TAXES 19,426.07 17,431.32 17,761.13 1,505.82 -329.81 101.9 
7514.000 Payroll-Benefits 54,772.20 48,291.60 46,391.00 5.720.00 1,900.60 96.1 
7516.100 Pens!on Cost (MPPP) 11,283.71 9,674.94 7,790.22 725.42 1,884.72 80.5 
7516.400 CalPERS Fees 0.00 750.00 480.00 0.00 270.00 64.0 
7516.600 Pension Plan Fees (MPPP) 0.00 1,000.00 1,062.20 0.00 -62.20 106.2 
7518.000 Workers Comp 17,142.84 17,720.91 19,808.62 0.00 -2,087.71 111.8 
7530.000 Payroll Reimbursement 1.200.00 1,200.00 768.78 227.44 431.22 64.1 
7550.000 Travel & Training 5,000.00 0.00 -2,687.32 -2,687.32 2,687.32 0.0 
7551.000 Meals 1,500.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0 
7552.000 Employee Physlcal Exams-Shots 500.00 1,000.00 0.00 0.00 1,000.00 0.0 
7556,000 Uniforms 2,500.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0 

Ex~enditures 446,210.30 416,069.59 404,759.43 33,438.07 11,310.16 97.3 

5075.000 Grant Income 100,000.00 148,746.54 143,227.73 13,553.63 5,518.81 96.3 

Revenues 100,000.00 148,746.54 143,227.73 13,553.63 5,518.81 96.3 

Expenditures 
7010.000 Capltal Improvement 0.00 22,500.00 12,000.00 0.00 10,500.00 53.3 

Less Reimbursement due from LAIF Savings 0.00 -22,500.00 -12,000.00 0.00 -10,500.00 -53.3 
7020.000 JT Contract Services/Server 0.00 2,200.00 117.55 0.00 2,082.45 5.3 
7033.000 Licenses, Permits, Fees 450.00 5,000.00 4,473.04 0.00 526.96 89.5 
7050.100 Off Exp-Supplies 300.00 1,300.00 1,193.84 108.20 106,16 91.8 
7050.200 Off Exp-Postage 0.00 400.00 339.58 0.00 60.42 84.9 
7050.400 Off Exp-Main! 0.00 2,000.00 2,015.26 0.00 -15.26 100.8 
7062.000 Repair & Maintenance 300.00 1,600.00 10.16 0.00 1,589.84 0.6 
7063.000 Fuel 2,500.00 10,500.00 10,526.91 0.00 -26.91 100.3 
7064.000 Materials/Supplies/Small Tools 500.00 8,000.00 7,195.81 166.39 804.19 89.9 
7065.000 Vehicle Repair/Maintenance 500.00 18,000.00 18,062.38 76.65 ·62.38 100.3 
7105.100 U\11-Telephone 650.00 5,150.00 3,855.77 290.66 1,294.23 74.9 
7501.000 Payroll Expense 64,667.20 64,667.20 63,442.23 7,412.27 1,224.97 98.1 
7513.000 Payroll-TAXES 5,381.04 5,381.04 5,287.33 567.03 93.71 98.3 
7514.000 Payroll.Benefits 20,563.20 20,563.20 19,782.00 3,330.00 781.20 96.2 
7516.100 Pension Cost (MPPP) 2,675.71 2,675.71 1,904.64 211.00 771.07 71.2 
7516.400 CalPERS Fees 0.00 200.00 120.00 0.00 80.00 60.0 
7516.600 Pension Plan Fees {MPPP) 0.00 200.00 172.60 0.00 27.40 86.3 
7518.000 Workers Comp 5,561.38 5,561.38 5,496.69 0.00 64.69 98.8 
7550.000 Travel & Training 4,000.00 9,000.00 3,753.41 0.00 5,246.59 41.7 
7551.000 Meals 500.00 2,000.00 1.435.25 33.89 564.75 71.8 
7552.000 Employee Phys!cal Exams-Shots 300.00 300.00 0.00 0.00 300.00 0.0 
7555.000 Personal Protective Equip PPE 500.00 500.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 0.0 
7556.000 Uniforms 500.00 3,000.00 1,699.18 385.13 1,300.82 56.6 

Ex~enditures 109,848.53 168,198.53 150,883.63 12,581.22 17,314.90 89.7 

2019-5 LSCSD Detail Budget Comparison 



Page: 5 

49,720.00 49,720.00 49,849.81 0.00 -129.81 100.3 
64,525.00 64,525.00 64,312.50 0.00 212.50 99.7 
1,060.00 1,060.00 1,035.00 0.00 25.00 97.6 

4003.000 late Payment Revenue 2,500.00 2,500.00 2,021.75 18.75 478.25 80.9 
4076.000 Fire Suppression Expansion Fee 316.00 474.00 1,106.00 632.00 -632.00 233.3 
5056.000 Warrant 5,000.00 5,000.00 5,194.46 32.29 -184.46 103.9 
5062.000 Event DonaUons 5,000.00 5,350.00 5,350.00 0.00 0.00 100.0 
5075.000 Grant Income 0.00 0.00 6,100.00 0.00 -6,100.00 0.0 
5081.000 Interest Eamed"RSV 1,100.00 1,100.00 1,013.97 0.00 86.03 92.2 

Dept: 34 Fire Fuels Removal 
4055.000 Misc Operatlonal Income 0.00 40,000.00 37,575.00 12,625.00 2,425.00 93.9 
5026.000 FlnesNlolations 0.00 15,000.00 11,400.00 -1,400.00 3,600.00 76.0 

Dept: 45 Mutual Aid Strike Team 
4080.000 Strike Team Rev Payroll Relmb 150,000.00 355,000.00 354,468.73 0.00 531.27 99.9 
4081.000 S!rike Team Rev Engine Relmb 0.00 65,000.00 64,318.00 0.00 682.00 99.0 
4082.000 Strike Team Rev Admln OH Re!mb 0.00 67,000.00 66,426.58 0.00 573.42 99.1 

Revenues 279,221.00 671,729.00 670,171.80 11,908.04 1,557.20 99.8 
Expenditures 

Dept: 01 General Admin 
7001.000 Accounting AudiVReview 2,800.00 2,800.00 2,800.00 0.00 0.00 100.0 
7002.000 Admin Overhead Alloc 31,068.52 63,952.82 55,000.81 5,424.46 8,952.01 86.0 
7003.000 Bad Debt 0.00 0.00 1.87 0.00 -1.87 0.0 
7010.000 Capital Improvement 0.00 25,000.00 20,413.00 398.00 4,587.00 81.7 

Less Reimbursement due from LAIF Savings 0.00 -25,000.00 -20,413.00 -398.00 -4,587.00 -81.7 
7020.000 IT Contract Services/Server 0.00 3,200.00 3,110.08 220.00 89.92 97.2 
7026.000 Contract Services 2,000.00 2,000.00 2,096.49 106.00 -96.49 104.8 
7033.000 Licenses, Permits, Fees 450.00 450.00 630.17 0.00 -180.17 140.0 
7034.000 Dues & Subscrlpllons 925.00 925.00 689.81 2.59 235.19 74.6 
7040.000 Insurance (Uabil!ty) 5,687.00 6,300.00 6,244.05 0.00 55.95 99.1 
7041.000 Legal 1,000.00 2,000.00 1,610.00 52.50 390.00 80.5 
7050.100 Off Exp-Supplies 650.00 650.00 978.07 148.70 -328.07 150.5 
7050.200 Off Exp-Postage 100.00 100.00 180.75 101.84 -80.75 180.8 
7051.000 Publ!c Safety Supplies 2,000.00 2,500.00 1,473.26 755.76 1,026.74 58.9 
7051.100 Mandatory Safety Equipment 12,000.00 8,000.00 3,636.55 2,879.21 4,363.45 45.5 
7062.000 Repair & Maintenance 2,000.00 2,000.00 44.15 0.00 1,955.85 2.2 
7063.000 Fuel 5,000.00 5,000.00 6,811.94 478.48 -1,811.94 136.2 
7064.000 Materials/Supplies/Small Tools 2,500.00 3,000.00 4,046.00 437.23 -1,046.00 134.9 
7065.000 Vehicle Repair/Maintenance 20,000.00 20,000.00 17,742.94 333.32 2,257.06 88.7 
7076.000 Grant Expenditures 0.00 0.00 4,699.71 0.00 -4,699.71 0.0 
7105.000 UtillUes - CSD 850.00 850.00 707.29 83.19 142.71 83.2 
7105.100 Ulil-Telephone 2,000.00 2,000.00 1,939.93 190.76 60.07 97.0 
7105.200 Ulil-Eleclric 3,300.00 3,300.00 2,974.15 503.53 325.85 90.1 
7105.300 Util-Waste 480.00 480.00 445.00 40.00 35.00 92.7 
7105.400 UUl!tles-Propane 1,000.00 1,200.00 1,165.71 0.00 34.29 97.1 
7105.600 UUlily- lntemet 300.00 300.00 213.60 21.36 86.40 71.2 
7204.000 Events 500.00 500.00 380.00 0.00 120.00 76.0 
7501.000 Payroll Expense 33,120.00 51,826.92 42,313.96 4,230.76 9,512.96 81.6 
7513.000 Payroll-TAXES 2,824.46 4,255.54 4,107.83 323.64 147.71 96.5 
7514.000 Payroll-Benefits 20,563.20 20,563.20 19,782.00 3,330.00 781.20 96.2 
7516.100 Pension Cost (MPPP) 0.00 3,300.00 2,157.67 253.84 1,142.33 65.4 
7516.600 Pension Plan Fees (MPPP) 0.00 1,000.00 276.24 0.00 723.76 27.6 
7518.000 Workers Comp 9,298.32 10,907.12 4,799.11 0.00 6,108.01 44.0 
7530.000 Payroll Reimbursement 500.00 500.00 384.01 114.98 115.99 76.8 
7549.000 Vounteer FF Stipend 14,000.00 14,000.00 3,900.00 0.00 10,100.00 27.9 
7550.000 Travel & Training 2,000.00 2,000.00 1,899.40 312.08 100.60 95.0 
7551.000 Meals 1,500.00 1,500.00 623.47 168.91 876.53 41.6 
7552.000 Employee Physical Exams-Shots 600.00 600.00 166.00 0.00 434.00 27.7 
7556.000 Uniforms 1,000.00 6,000.00 5,334.80 0.00 665.20 88.9 

Dept: 34 Fire Fuels Removal 
7050.200 Off Exp-Postage 0.00 200.00 173.45 0.00 26.55 86.7 
7061.000 Rental Equipment 0.00 3,000.00 185.18 0.00 2,814.82 6.2 
7062.000 Repair & Maintenance 0.00 500.00 306.68 31.66 193.32 61.3 
7501.000 Payroll Expense 0.00 22,000.00 17,554.67 3,877.59 4,445.33 79.8 
7513.000 Payroll-TAXES 0.00 3,000.00 2,431.30 537.04 568.70 81.0 
7518.000 Workers Comp 0.00 1,200.00 1,287.47 329.60 -87.47 107.3 

Dept: 45 Mutual Aid Strike Team 
7063.000 Fuel 1,200.00 350.00 299.38 0.00 50.62 85.5 
7501.000 Payroll Expense 94,584.00 255,000.00 254,119.75 0.00 880.25 99.7 
7513.000 Payroll-TAXES 8,104.00 23,100.00 23,062.09 0.00 37.91 99.8 
7518.000 Workers Comp 8,134.22 22,700.00 22,677.97 0.00 22.03 99.9 

Ex~enditures 294,038.72 579,010.60 527,464.76 25,288.83 51,545.84 91.1 

Grand Total Net Effect: -60.418.76 124,207.95 383,664.42 -83,826.62 -259,456.47 
2019-5 LSCSD Detail Budget Comparison 



Lake Shastina Fire Department 
16309 Everhart Drive 
Weed CA 96094 

Item 2.A 

For the Month of May Lake Shastina Fire Department responded to a total of 36 calls. 
These calls included: 

• 3 Wildland fire 
• 20 Medical Aids 
• 2 Structure Fires 
• 7 Public Assists 
• 4 Traffic Collisions 

In 2018 LSFD had on average 29 calls per month putting May higher than last year. 

LSFDNews: 

Engine 3119 is in service and ready to fight fire. This is the Type 1 Pumper we 
purchased for $5000 as a replacement for the 1992 3111. The engine is larger than 3111 
and allows us to carry extrication equipment. 

51 Citations were issued to Rancho Hills properties during the first week of J-lUle. LSFD 
Firefighters have already begun working on getting 15 of those properties in compliance. 







Item 2.D 

Lake Shastina Water Department 

To: Lake Shastina CSD Board 

From: Robert Moser, Public Works Supervisor 

Meeting Date: June 19, 2019 

Subject: Board Report - May 2019 {Water) 

Well #9 in Rancho Hills is undergoing a complete renovation of the electrical, 

pump, motor and water meter. A company called ARCWAVE technology came out 

and cleaned the well with a newer state of the art technology. It used electrical 

shockwaves to break up the sediment and clean the well casing. We will find out 

how well it worked over the next few weeks. 

Water shut off notices and shut offs were completed in preparation for meter 

reads this quarter. 

Water line break of a 2" lateral on Fischer Place due to CalOre installing fiber optic 

cable. It was a water line that was not on any map. 

Two new water hookups for new construction. 



3.B 

LAKE SHASTINA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

MINUTES 
Fire Department Advisory Standing Committee Meeting 

Friday, April 12, 2019, 1 :00 p.m. 
Administration Building 

16320 Everhart Drive• Weed, California 96094 • (530) 938-3281 

CALL TO ORDER: 1 :03 p.m. 
Committee Roll Call: 

Director Cupp ../* Director Mitchell_../_ FC Pappas absent Charlene French_../_ 
Dir. Cupp present at 2:00 p.m. 

Ex-Officio Member IGM Moser_../_ Staff: SAC Nelle absent 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Carried out. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS: Approximately 6 people present in audience; no comments received. 

COMMITTEE MEMBER COMMENTS: None. 

BUSINESS ITEMS: 
1. Minutes of March 15, 2019 approved. 
2. Budget: If there had been no strike team call outs, the Fire Department budget would have an 

approximate $89,000 deficit. 
3. Hazardous Vegetation Abatement Ordinance: Charlene French provided information on use of 

goats for weed abatement (copies available at the Administration office). Goats will eat star 
thistle and other shrubs with the added benefit that digested seeds will not germinate. 

4. Fire Department Development - No report. 
5. Potential Tax Measure: Reasons for asking the community for a tax increase included: 

a. The LSFD cannot count on strike team income, and without it the department would be 
forced to make drastic cuts. 

b. If the community ISO rating goes down due to reduced Fire Department equipment and 
personnel, homeowner's insurance will be more expensive, and availability may be a 
problem. 

c. The LSFD relies on used engines, even the newest type 1 engine is 20 years old. 
d. FC Pappas provided a range of proposed tax increases and a proposed community flyer 

(copies available at the Administration office). 
The public will have to be educated by holding town hall meetings, and distributing door-to-door 
flyers, or other means. 
No one volunteered to lead the effort to work on a tax measure. 
The Fire Safe Council attendees will be asked if anyone would volunteer to lead a potential tax 
measure ballot initiative. 

6. Emergency Sirens - Lorene Miller and Noa Mahlabane, members of a committee from the Fire 
Safe Council, presented lnformation on emergency sirens. They are getting bids. One bid came 
in at $126,000. Their committee is also looking for grant monies. 

a. The siren committee was asked to gather information on maintenance costs. 
b. IGM Moser was asked to talk with FC Pappas and LSPOA GM Thompson to determine 

which organization would take the lead on the project, if the respective agencies (LSCSD 
or LSPOA) agree to proceed with the project. 

7. Set next committee meeting date and time: Monday, May 20, 2019, 10:00 a.m. 

ADJOURN: 2:58 p.m. 

1 



Item 4 

ORDINANCE 1-19 

RESIDENTIAL AND COMMERCIAL MONTHLY SEWER RATES, AND SEWER 
CONNECTION FEE. 

1. Introduction, First Reading and Public Hearing -June 5, 2019 

2. Second Reading and Possible Adoption by Board - June 19, 2019 

************************* 



LAKE SHASTINA COMMUNITY SER VICES DISTRICT 

DRAFT 
ORDINANCE NO. 1-19 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE LAKE SHASTINA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT TO MODIFY THE 
RESIDENTIAL AND COMMERCIAL MONTHLY SEWER RATES AND SEWER CONNECTION FEE. 

The Board of Directors of the Lake Shastina Community Services District does ordain as follows: 

l. APPLICABILITY: The rates/fees set forth in this Ordinance shall apply to all units connected to the 
sewer system (residential family dwellings and commercial units) and new sewer system connections. 
Rates for other connected services, if permitted, shall be established by resolution and/or ordinance of the 
District Board of Directors. 

2. TERRITORY: These rates shall apply to all prope1ties having been connected to the sewer system, 
which are entirely within the boundaries of the Lake Shastina Community Services District. Rates for 
outside the said boundaries, if permitted, shall be established by resolution and/or ordinance of the District 
Board of Directors, provided however, that in no event shall the rates of property that is wholly or pa1tially 
outside the District be lower than those for comparable usage within the District. 

3. RATES: 
A. RESIDENTIAL RATE PER UNIT: 

- Effective July 1, 2019, the rate will be $128.40 per quruter, billed on the first regular billing thereafter. 
- Effective July 1, 2020, the rate will be $144.00 per quaiter, billed on the first regular billing thereafter. 
- Effective July 1, 2021, the rate will be $156.96 per quaiter, billed on the first regular billing thereafter. 
- Effective July 1, 2022, the rate will be $171.00 per quatter, billed on the first regular billing thereafter. 
- Effective July 1, 2023, the rate will be $186.30 per qumter, billed on the first regular billing thereafter. 

B. COMMERCIAL RATE PER UNIT: 
- Effective July 1, 2019, the base rate will be $42.80 per month, billed on the first regular billing 

thereafter. Sewer charge based on water consumption: 
Base rate ( < 10,000 gal) + $42.80 per 10,000 gal> 10,000 gal 

- Effective July 1, 2020, the base rate will be $48.00 per month, billed on the first regular billing 
thereafter. Sewer charge based on water consumption: 

Base rate(< 10,000 gal)+ $48.00 per 10,000 gal> 10,000 gal 
- Effective July 1, 2021, the base rate will be $52.32 per month, billed on the first regular billing 

thereafter. Sewer charge based on water consumption: 
Base rate ( < 10,000 gal)+ $52.32 per 10,000 gal> 10,000 gal 

- Effective July 1, 2022, the base rate will be $57.00 per month, billed on the first regular billing 
thereafter. Sewer charge based on water consumption: 

Base rate(< 10,000 gal)+ $57.00 per 10,000 gal> 10,000 gal 
- Effective July 1, 2023, the base rate will be $62.10 per month, billed on the first regular billing 

thereafter. Sewer charge based on water consumption: 
Base rate(< 10,000 gal)+ $62.10 per 10,000 gal> 10,000 gal 

4. SEWER CONNECTION FEE: The sewer system connection fee will remain at the established (under 
Ordinm1ce 5-09) amount of $7,248.50 per connection through June 30, 2020. 

- The connection fee will be increased by three percent each year for four consecutive years beginning 
July 1, 2020. 



- The connection fees are based on wastewater household equivalents (HE), the number of equivalent 
residential households in terms of wastewater flow. 

- If the development to be served exceeds the minimum HE then the connection fee will be calculated 
per HE or Flow. 

- This Ordinance applies to all parcels established by the original developer as Committed Parcels. 
Connection fee for Uncommitted Parcels may exceed the minimum fees established by this Ordinance. 
Extension and connection fee for Uncommitted Parcels requires the approval of the District Board of 
Directors, on a case-by-case basis. 

5. The procedures set fotih in Section 6 of Article XIIID of the California State Constitution and Government 
Code Section 53753, pursuant to Proposition 218, have been followed by the District prior to adoption of 
this Ordinance. 

6. This Ordinance supersedes monthly rates set by any previously approved ordinance and/or resolution. 
This Ordinance changes only the dollar amount of previous ordinances and/or resolutions; the remaining 
contents in those ordinances and/or resolutions remain applicable. 

7. This Ordinance supersedes sewer connection fees set by any previously approved ordinance and/or 
resolution. 

It is hereby ce1iified that the forgoing Ordinance No. 1-19 was duly introduced at a special meeting of the 
Lake Shastina Community Services District on the 5th of June, 2019 and adopted at a regular meeting of the 
Lake Shastina Community Services District on 19th of June, 2019 

ROLL CALL VOTE 
AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 

ATTEST 

Robert Moser, District Secretary 

Lake Shastina Community Services District by: 

Rick Thompson, President 

16320 Everhart Dr.• Weed, Ca 96094 • 530.938.3281 + Fax 530.938.4739 



Item 5 

ORDINANCE 2-19 

ANIMAL CONTROL WITHIN DISTRICT BOUNDARIES 

1. Introduction and First Reading - June 19, 2019 

2. Second Reading and Possible Adoption by Board - July 17, 2019 

************************* 



Article 1. 
Sec. 1.01. 
Sec. 1.02. 
Sec. 1.03. 

Article 2. 

Sec. 2.01. 

Article 3. 
Sec. 3.01. 
Sec. 3.02. 
Sec. 3.03. 
Sec. 3.04. 
Sec. 3.05. 

Article 4. 
Sec. 4.01. 

Article 5. 

Sec. 5.01. 
Sec. 5.02. 

Sec. 5.03 . 
Sec. 5.04. 
Sec. 5.05. 
Sec. 5.06. 

Article 6. 

Sec. 6.01. 
Sec. 6.02. 
Sec. 6.03. 

Sec. 6.04. 
Sec. 6.05. 

Article 7. 

Sec. 7.01. 
Sec. 7.02. 
Sec. 7.03. 

LAKE SHASTINA COMMUNITY SER VICES DISTRICT 

Title and Scope 

DRAFT 
ORDINANCE NO. 2-19 

INDEX 

Title ............................ ... .... ... ... .................................................................... 1 
Application and Scope ................... ...... ... .. .............. ..... .... .. ......................... 1 
Constitutionality ...................................... ................ .... ................................ 1 

Office of Animal Control 
Establishment of Office of Animal Control ............................................. .... 1 

Definitions 
Health Officer ..................... ........................ .... .... .... .. ..... .. ............................ 1 
Authorized Representative Environmental Health ............................... .. .. .. 1 
Animal Control Officer .......... ... .................. ...... .............. .... ......................... 1 
Police .......... ... ..... ............................... ......... .. ...... ................ ... ... ................... 1 
Licensing Clerk ...... ....... ................ ............. ......... .. ........ ................................ 2 

Duties of the LSPD Chief of Police 
Duties of the Chief of Police or Designee .................. ........ ......................... 2 

Licensing 
Licensing Required .................... ... ............................................................... 2 
Duties of the LSPS ....................................................................................... 2 
License Due Date ............... ................................................. ......................... 2 
License Form ..................... .............. .. .. .. .. ........ .... .. ...................................... 3 
Required Records: Tags .... .. ....... .................... ....................... .... .. ...... .. .... ..... 3 
License Tags to be Worn ... .......................................................................... 3 

Rabies Vaccination 
Rabies Vaccination Required .......... .. ..... ........................ .. ......................... .. 3 
Puppies to be Confined ................................................... ..... ....................... 3 
Vaccination Certificates .............................................................................. 3 
Vaccination Certificates: Issuance .............................................................. 3 
Unlawful Tags .... ....................................................... .......... ...... .... ..... ... ....... 3 

lmpoundment, Reclaiming, Adoption; Fees 
Impounding and Destruction of Dogs ... ............................................ .... ....... 4 
Adoption of Animals ................................... ................. ... ............... .. ........... 4 
Reclaiming Animals .............. ... ..................... .... ... .................................. ... ... 4 



Sec. 7.04. 
Sec. 7.05. 

Article 8. 
Sec. 8.01. 
Sec. 8.02. 
Sec. 8.03. 
Sec. 8.04. 
Sec. 8.05. 

Article 9. 
Sec. 9.01. 
Sec. 9.02. 
Sec. 9.03. 
Sec. 9.04. 

Article 10. 
Sec. 10.01. 
Sec. 10.02. 
Sec. 10.03. 
Sec. 10.04. 
Sec. 10.05. 

Article 11. 
Sec. 11.01. 
Sec. 11.02. 
Sec. 11.03. 
Sec. 11.04. 
Sec. 11.05. 
Sec. 11.06. 
Sec. 11.07. 
Sec. 11.08. 
Sec. 11.09. 
Sec. 11.10. 
Sec. 11.11. 
Sec. 11.12. 
Sec. 11.13. 
Sec. 11.14. 
Sec. 11.15. 

Article 12. 
Sec. 12.01. 

Fines and Charges Upon Impounded Animals ............................................ 4 

Destruction of Impounded Animals ............................................................ 4 

Rabies 
Rabies and Animal Bites: Reporting ............................................................ 4 

Isolation of Rabid Animals or Clinically Suspected Rabid Animals ............. 4 
Confinement of Biting Animals ................................................................... 4 

Charge to Animal Owner for Animal Bite ................................................... 5 

Cat Bites ...................................................................................................... 5 

Dead Animals; Abandoned Animals 
Disposal of Dead Animals ............................................................................ 5 

Dumping Animals Forbidden ...................................................................... 5 
Cost of Removal of Dead Animals ............................................................... 5 

Abandoning Animals Forbidden .... · ............................................................. 5 

Animals at Large, Dog and Public Nuisances, Police Dogs 
Dogs at Large ............................................................................................... 6 

Dog Nuisances Prohibited ........................................................................... 6 

Public Nuisances Prohibited ....................................................................... 6 
Injuring or Teasing a Police Dog .................................................................. 7 

Violations; Penalties .................................................................................... 7 

Enforcement 
Administration and Enforcement ............................................................... 7 

Right of Entry .............................................................................................. 7 
Interference with Officials .......................................................................... 7 

Animal Kept in Vehicles .............................................................................. 7 

Cruelty to Animals Prohibited ..................................................................... 8 

Refusal to Present Animals for Inspection Prohibited ................................ 8 
Female Dogs in Heat - Confinement.. ......................................................... 8 

Interference with Law Enforcement.. ......................................................... 8 

Records of Impounded Animals .................................................................. 8 
Authority of Police Officers ......................................................................... 8 

Notification to Owner ................................................................................. 8 

Non-Liability of LSPD and/or LSCSD ............................................................ 9 

Violation-Penalty ......................................................................................... 9 
Alternative Actions Available ...................................................................... 9 

Violation-Public Nuisance ........................................................................... 9 

Account of Sums Collected 
Account of Sums Collected ......................................................................... 9 

ii 



LAKE SHASTINA COMMUNI TY SER VICES DISTRICT 

DRAFT 
ORDINANCE N0.1-19 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE LAKE SHASTINA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT REGARDING 

ANIMAL CONTROL WITHIN DISTRICT BOUNDARIES. 

Article 1. Title and Scope 

Sec. 1.01. Title: Th is ordinance shall be known as the Lake Shastina Community Services District 
(LSCSD) Animal Control Ordinance . 

Sec. 1.02. Application and Scope: The provisions of this ordinance sha ll apply to the 
unincorporated area of the County known as Lake Shastina Community Services District (LSCSD) 
to any person, firm or corporation owning, controlling, harboring or keeping dogs, cats or 
domestic animals. This ordin ance supersedes all prior animal control ordinances in conflict. 

Sec. 1.03 . Constitutionality: If any one part of this ordinance is declared unconstitutional or 
illegal, the rest of the Ord inance is intended to remain in effect. 

Article 2. Office of Animal Control 

Sec. 2.01 . Establishment of Office of Animal Control: On December 21, 2011, the LSCSD Board 
of Directors established Animal Control responsibility under the authority of the LSCSD Police 
Department (LSPD) . 

Article 3. Definitions 

Sec. 3.01. Health Officer: Wherever the term "Health Officer" is used in this ordinance, it 
means the County Health Officer or their aut horized representative. 

Sec. 3.02. Authorized Representative Environmental Health : Wherever the term "authorized 
representative environmental health" is used in this ordinance, it means a public health 
inspector, registered with the State and working under the supervision of the Health Officer 
(investigation of health and safety of environment). 

Sec. 3.03. Animal Control Officer: Wh enever the term "Animal Control Officer" is used in this 
ord inance, it means the LSPD Chief of Police or any authorized LSPD designee. 

Sec. 3.04. Police: Whenever the term "Police" is used in this ordinance, it means the LSPD Chief 
of Police or the authorized Police Officers. 

Page 1 of9 

LSCSD • 16320 Everhart Dr.• Weed, Ca 96094 • 530.938 .3281 • Fa>< 530.938.4739 



Sec. 3.05. Licensing Clerk: Whenever the term "Licensing Clerk" is used in this ordinance, it 
means the LSPD Animal Control Officer or their authorized employee/ volunteer. 

Article 4. Duties of the LSPD Chief of Police 

Sec. 4.01. Duties of the Police Chief or Officers doing Animal Control related work: The Chief of 
Police or designated officer shall attempt to maintain public office hours necessary to efficiently 
administer the applicable provisions of this ordinance and amendments thereto, and shall 
perform the following duties: 

(a) Receive initial reports of animal bites and investigate the same. 
(b) Complete animal bite investigation report forms and issue quarantine notices where 

applicable. 
(c) Quarantine and release reported biting animals; enforce quarantine regulations, as set 

forth by the County Ordinance or California State Law. 
(d) Forward, when requested, initial and completed copies of the animal bite report form to 

the County Health Officer. 
(e) Issue citations to appropriate persons, when violations of the provisions of this 

ordinance or regulations pertaining thereto are brought to their attention. 
(f) Retain the prime responsibility for the administration of the provisions of this ordinance 

and render consultations to appropriate departments, as necessary, to carry out the 
effectiveness and intent of the provisions of this ordinance. 

(g) Establish appropriate regulations necessary to effectively administer the provisions of 
this ordinance. 

Article 5. Licensing 

Sec. 5.01. Licensing Required: Any person residing within the boundaries of the LSCSD and owning or 
having charge, care, control or custody of one or more dogs shall pay for an annual license to keep such 
dogs. A schedule of dog license fees will be established by resolution of the LSCSD Board of Directors, as 
needed. 

Sec. 5.02. Duties of the LSPD: The LSPD shall maintain the public office hours necessary to 
efficiently administer the applicable provisions of this ordinance and amendments thereto and 
shall perform the following duties. 

(a) Collect all dog license fees, with verification of rabies vaccination. 
(b) Issue dog license tags and receipts. 
(c) Enforce the provisions of this ordinance, Siskiyou County ordinances and California State 

law. 

Sec. 5.03. License Due Date: Annual Licensing for the LSCSD will take place in January of each 
year. The cost of such license will be payable to the LSPD Animal Control Fund and shall be valid 
for one year. It shall be delinquent thirty (30) days thereafter. New residents in the LSCSD 
owning or having the custody or control of a dog required to be licensed shall have thirty (30) 
days after taking up residence in which to obtain such license. LSCSD residents who obtain a 
dog shall have (30) days to license the dog. Any new licensing shall be pro-rated at six (6) month 

intervals. 

Page 2 of9 

LSCSD • 16320 Everhart Dr.• Weed, Ca 96094 • 530.938.3281 • Fax 530.938.4739 



Sec. 5.04. Ucense Form: Each license form issued pursuant to the provisions of this ordinance 
shall be signed by a LSPD employee or representative and shall state the name, telephone 
number and residence address of the person to whom the license is issued, the date when 
issued, the expiration date, the number of the tag and the breed, sex, approximate size and 
coloration of the dog. Verification of rabies vaccination and dates will also be included. 

Sec. 5.05. Required Records: Tags: The LSPD shall keep a record of all licenses so issued. With 
each dog license there shall be issued a durable metal tag with a unique number and imprinted 

with the words, "Lake Shastina". 

Sec. 5.06. License Tags to be Worn: Such tags shall be securely affixed to a collar, harness or 
other device worn by the dog, and shall be worn by such dog. 

Article 6. Rabies Vaccination 

Sec. 6.01. Rabies Vaccination Required: Each person owning or having charge, care, custody or 
control of a dog the age of four (4) months or older shall have such dog vaccinated by a licensed 
veterinarian with a rabies vaccine approved for use in the State of California. No dog shall be 
required to be vaccinated while such dog is afflicted with an illness or other condition, which, in 
the opinion of a licensed veterinarian, would be detrimental to the dog. Such animal shall be 
strictly confined to the premises of, or kept under physical constraint by, the owner or keeper 
for the duration of the illness or condition. Immediately following the termination of the illness 
or condition, such dog shall be vaccinated in accordance with the provisions of this ordinance. 
Should the animal license renewal fall due during such period of time, the LSPD shall issue a dog 
a license upon presentation by the applicant of a recent letter from a licensed veterinarian 

indicating the reason for non-vaccination. 

Sec. 6.02. Puppies to be Confined: All dogs under the age of four (4) months shall be strictly 
confined to the premises of, or kept under physical restraint by, the owner or keeper. The 
provision of this section shall not prevent the sale or transportation of puppies four (4) months 

of age or younger. 

Sec. 6.03. Vaccination Certificate: A valid rabies vaccination certificate shall be presented to the 
LSPD upon an application for an animal dog license. A valid rabies vaccination certificate shall 
be a requisite for the issuance of a dog license for each dog. 

Sec. 6.04. Vaccination Certificates: Any veterinarian, upon vaccinating any dog for rabies in the 
County, shall issue to each person presenting a dog for vaccination a numbered rabies 
vaccination tag and a completed certificate of vaccination approved by the Health Officer. The 
licensed veterinarian shall provide a legible copy of each vaccination certificate to the owner, to 
be presented at the time of licensing application with the LSPD. 

Sec. 6.05. Unlawful Tags: No person shall attach or keep upon any dog any other license tag 
except the license tags issued for such dog pursuant to the provisions of this ordinance. 

Page 3 of9 

LSCSD • 16320 Everhart Dr.• Weed, Ca 96094 • 530.938.3281 • Fax 530.938.4739 



Article 7. lmpoundment, Reclaiming, Adoption; Fees 

Sec. 7.01. Impounding and Destruction of Dogs: It shall be the duty of all peace officers 
employed by the LSCSD and all LSPD employees to take up, impound and safely keep or 
destroy all dogs found within the area of the LSCSD, which have not been properly vaccinated 
and licensed as required by this ordinance or which are found running free or at large within 
the LSCSD. All peace officers of the State are authorized to proceed under the provisions of this 
section. 

Sec. 7.02. Adoption of Animals: When any animal is so impounded, the animal may be adopted 
to a new owner after the ten (10) days holding period has been satisfied. If the animal is found 
to be ill or incompatible with the adoptive family within two (2) weeks of the date of adoption, 
the person adopting the animal may return the animal. 

Sec. 7.03. Reclaiming Animals: The owner of any impounded animal shall have the right to 
reclaim such animal with proof of rabies vaccination and licensing. 

Sec. 7.04. Fines and Charges Upon Impounded Animals: 
(a) After 24 Hours, the LSPD may charge, receive and collect Twenty and no/1001h Dollars 

($20.00) per day, per animal for feeding and caring for impounded animals. 
(b) The LSPD shall keep the required record of each animal impounded. 
(c) Animals taken into custody by the LSPD pursuant to the provisions of this ordinance shall 

be kept to satisfy the minimum mandated requirement of State law or regulation. All 
animals unclaimed thereafter shall be considered abandoned. 

(d) All animals determined abandoned pursuant to the provisions of this ordinance shall be 
adopted or disposed of in accordance with the provisions of this ordinance. 

Sec. 7.05. Destruction of Impounded Animals: It shall be the duty of the LSPD to destroy any 
animal lawfully impounded which is unclaimed. The destruction procedure shall be humane and 
shall be set forth by the LSPD. 

Article 8. Rabies 

Sec. 8.01. Rabies and Animal Bites: Reporting: Any persons having knowledge of the 
whereabouts of an animal known to have or suspected of having rabies shall report the facts 
immediately to the LSPD. The LSPD shall be notified immediately, whenever a person has been 
bitten by an animal of a species subject to rabies, whether or not the animal is suspected of 
having rabies. 

Sec. 8.02. Isolation of Rabid Animals or Clinically Suspected Rabid Animals: Any rabid animal or 
clinically suspected rabid animal, shall be isolated in compliance with the provisions of 
subsection (b) of Section 2606 of Title 17 of the California Code of Regulations. 

Sec. 8.03. Confinement of Biting Animals: Any animal susceptible to rabies which has bitten or 
is suspected of having bitten a person shall be strictly confined upon the private premises of the 
owner under restraint as provided by Section 2606, Title 17 of the California Code of 

Page 4 of9 

LSCSD • 16320 Everhart Dr.• Weed, Ca 96094 • 530.938.3281 • Fax 530.938.4739 



Regulations or may be impounded and quarantined by the LSPD, at the cost and expense of the 
owner, until it can be ascertained whether the animal in question is rabid. Any animal 
susceptible to rabies, which has bitten or is suspected of having bitten a person, and is not 
protected, to the satisfaction of the LSPD by a current rabies vaccination, may be impounded by 
the LSPD at the expense of the owner, until it can be ascertained whether the animal in 
question is rabid. Any violation of the provisions of this section shall be a misdemeanor. 

Sec. 8.04. Charge to Animal Owner for Animal Bite: After investigation, any animal owner 
whose animal has bitten another person may be charged the actual cost of processing and 
investigating the animal bite incident, at the discretion of the Chief of the LSPD. 

Sec. 8.05. Cat Bites: Any cat bite will follow the same procedures lined out in this ordinance for 

dog bites. 

Article 9. Dead Animals; Abandoned Animals 

Sec. 9.01. Disposal of Dead Animals: It shall be the duty of all persons having a dead animal 
creating a health hazard or a nuisance upon their premises, or who shall be the owner or 
possessor of any dead animal, which died within the LSCSD, to have such animal disposed of by 
a licensed animal facility or bury such animal underground at a sufficient depth to allow at least 
two (2"} feet of backfill earth cover. Such burial shall be either upon the premises of such 
owner or upon the premises where such dead animal is found or by other means acceptable to 
the LSPD. Dead animals shall be properly disposed of within forty-eight (48} hours after they 
die. For the purposes of this section, a dead animal shall be considered to be an animal in whole 

or parts thereof. 

Sec. 9.02. Dumping of Dead Animals Forbidden: Any person owning or having control of a dead 
animal shall not place the body in any street, park, public place or public refuse receptacle. 
Dead animals shall not be dumped or deposited upon any dump or dumpsite in the LSCSD, 
except in an appropriate site approved and so designed by the LSPD. 

Sec. 9.03. Cost of Removal of Dead Animals: The LSPD shall be entitled to dispose of any dead 
animal coming within the prohibitions of this ordinance, if such animals remains unburied for a 
period in excess of forty-eight (48} hours and/or is placed in any street, park, public place or in 
any public refuse receptacle. The LSPD shall attempt to contact the owner of such dead animal 
prior to disposing of the same. Such costs of removal and burial shall be a fine against the 
owner and person in charge of the animal immediately prior to its death. The fine amount will 
be the total cost to offset the actual cost of officer time involved for removal and burial. 

Sec. 9.04. Abandoning Animals Forbidden: No live animal shall be abandoned in or upon public 
or private premises, land, building, structures or dump sites in the LSCSD. Unwanted animals 
shall be taken to the humane shelter for lawful surrender during regular business hours. 

Page 5 of9 

LSCSD + 16320 Everhart Dr.+ Weed, Ca 96094 • 530.938.3281 • Fax 530.938.4739 



Article 10. Animals at Large, Dog and Public Nuisances, Police Dogs 

Sec. 10.01. Dogs at Large: No persons shall cause, permit or allow any dog to run at large upon 
any public street or other public place, including parks and playgrounds or upon any private 
property or premises other than those of the owner. All dogs, anywhere within the LSCSD, must 
be under the control of its owner at all times. Owners must have a leash in hand and attached 
to their dog, having the ability to restrain it. Exceptions are: 

(a) When a dog is assisting a law enforcement officer in the performance of police work. 
(b) When such a dog is assisting a duly authorized person in an official search and rescue 

operation. 
(c) When such a dog is participating in a dog training class, exhibition or competition or an 

ongoing training program related thereto, under the direction and control of a dog 
trainer, lessee or other person in control thereof. 

Sec. 10.02. Dog Nuisances Prohibited: No owner of any dog shall permit or allow such dog to 
do any of the following: 

(a) Defecate on any public road or street or other public property without immediately 
cleaning or removing the excrement to a proper receptacle. 

(b) Defecate on any private property other than that of its owner without the consent of 
the owner, lessee or other person in control thereof. 

(c) The requirements of this section shall be in addition to all other restrictions applying to 
dogs and the owners of dogs within the LSCSD. 

Sec. 10.03. Public Nuisances Prohibited: 

(a) No owner of any animal shall do any of the following: 
(1) Permit such animal to obstruct the reasonable and comfortable use of property in 

any neighborhood or community by chasing vehicles, molesting passersby, or with 
excessive barking, howling or other noise. Excessive barking means noise which is 
frequently, easily and readily heard on the property of other persons, and which 
would be disturbing to the normal peaceful use, occupancy or enjoyment of the 
property of such other persons, considering the use to which the property is being 
put, the time of day and other relevant factors. Barking for one hour or longer and 
barking unprovoked are also considerations. 

(2) Permit such animal to damage and/or trespass on public or private property. 
(3) Permit unsanitary conditions to exist on the premises where such animal is kept 

which would cause odors, attract flies or vermin or an obstruction to the free use of 
property so as to interfere with the comfortable enjoyment of life or property by 
members of the neighborhood or community or any considerable number of other 
persons. 

(4) Maintain a dangerous animal in a manner that creates a significant threat to the 
public health, safety and welfare. 

(b) Any violation of this section is hereby declared to be a public nuisance. 
(c) Whenever the LSPD has reasonable cause to believe that a public nuisance as defined in 

this section exists, the PD may conduct an investigation of the alleged nuisance. 
Whenever it is affirmed in writing by two (2) or more persons residing in separate 

Page 6 of9 

LSCSD • 16320 Everhart Dr.• Weed, Ca 96094 • 530.938.3281 • Fax 530.938.4739 



residences or are regularly residing in the neighborhood that a public nuisance as 
defined in this section exists, the LSPD shall investigate the alleged nuisance. 

(d) Any person may maintain an action under Civil Code Section 3493 for compliance with 

the requirements of this section. 
(e) The requirements of this section shall be in addition to all other restrictions applying to 

dogs and the owners of dogs within the LSCSD. Any violation of the provisions of this 
section shall be an infraction and may result in impounding of the dog. 

Sec. 10.04. Injuring or Teasing a Police Dog: No persons shall injure, tease, agitate, kick, strike, 
torture or otherwise interfere with any police dog while the dog is in the custody of or being 
used by a law enforcement officer in the performance of their official duties. As used in this 
section, police dog shall mean any dog specifically trained for assistance in law enforcement. 

Sec. 10.05. Violations; Penalties : Any person violating any section or subsection of this chapter 
shall be deemed guilty of an infraction and subject to penalties as specified below and any fines 
and penalties provided in State law and determined by the Chief of Police. 

(a) First violation: One Hundred and no/1001h Dollars ($100.00) 
(b) Second violation: Two Hundred Fifty and no/lOO'h Dollars ($250.00) 
(c) Third and subsequent violations: Five Hundred and no/lOO'h Dollars ($500.00) 

Article 11. Enforcement 

Sec. 11.01. Administration and Enforcement: The Chief of Police and designees shall 
administer and enforce the provisions of this ordinance. 

Sec. 11.02. Right of Entry: Any official designated to administer and enforce the provisions of 
this ordinance may enter upon all private and/or public premises for the purpose of enforcing 

the provisions of this ordinance. 

Sec. 11.03. Interference with Officials: No person shall interfere with any official designated to 
administer and enforce the provisions of this ordinance or regulations pertaining thereto, in the 
performance of their official duties. Any violation of the provisions of this section shall be a 

misdemeanor. 

Sec. 11.04. Animal Kept in Vehicles: 
(a) An animal shall not be confined in a vehicle unless there is adequate ventilation and 

unless the temperature or other conditions do not threaten the health of the animal. If 
the animal is confined in a manner that threatens its health, a police officer may enter 
the vehicle by whatever force in necessary to release the animal without liability upon 
the LSCSD or any person for resulting damage. 

(b) Any person who owns or has custody or control of an animal that has been confined in a 
vehicle in a manner that threatens its health may be charged with a violation. 

(c) Any animal that has been confined in a vehicle in violation of this section may be 
impounded pending a hearing to determine if the animal shall be returned to its owner. 
In the event of any such impoundment, the owner or keeper of the animal shall be liable 
for all costs and expenses of impounding or keeping the animal. 

Page 7 of9 

LSCSD • 16320 Everhart Dr.• Weed, Ca 96094 • 530.938.3281 • Fax 530.938.4739 



Sec. 11.05. Cruelty to Animals Prohibited: 
(a) No person shall tease, torment or physically abuse any animal. 
(b) No parent shall allow or permit their minor child to tease, torment or physically abuse 

any animal. 
(c) No person who owns, has custody or control of, an animal shall neglect such animal by 

leaving them outside in extreme hot or cold weather conditions for an extended amount 
of time, without providing them with access to adequate shelter and provisions to 
ensure their safety and wellbeing. 

(d) No dog may be tied up outside, unattended, for a period of more than two (2) hours, for 
their safety and wellbeing. 

(e) The provisions of Penal Code Section 579.1 shall be operative within the LSCSD. 

Sec. 11.06. Refusal to Present Animals for Inspection Prohibited: No person shall fail or refuse 
to comply with any order of the LSPD under this title to present an animal for inspection. 

Sec. 11.07. Female Dogs in Heat-Confinement: Female dogs in copulation season shall be kept 
confined to the owner's or custodian's premises. 

Sec. 11.08. Interference with Law Enforcement: 
(a) No person shall interfere with, oppose or resist any Police Officer while he or she is 

engaged in the performance of any act authorized by this title or California Penal Code 
Section 148(a). 

(b) No person shall willfully or maliciously torture, torment, beat, kick, strike, mutilate, 
injure, disable or kill any dog used by any government police agency or private patrol 
service in the performance of the functions or duties of such department or interfere 
with or meddle with any such dog while being used by said department or any member 
thereof in the performance of any of the functions of said department. 

Sec. 11.09. Records of Impounded Animals: The LSPD shall keep a record of each animal 
impounded, the date of receipt of such animal, the date and manner of its disposal, and if 
redeemed, reclaimed or sold, the name of the person by whom redeemed, reclaimed or 
purchased (adopted), the address of such person, and the amounts of all fees received or 
collected for or because of the impounding, reclaiming or purchasing (adoption) thereof, 
together with the number of any tag and the date of any license exhibited or issued upon the 
redemption or sale of any such animal. 

Sec. 11.10. Authority of Police Officers: In addition to the power vested in the LSPD for the 
impoundment of animals found at large or otherwise in violation of this title, any peace officer 
is empowered to impound such animal. 

Sec. 11.11. Notification to Owner: The LSPD shall immediately upon impoundment of dogs or 
other animals, make every reasonable effort to notify the owners of such dogs or other animals 
impounded, and inform such owners of the conditions whereby they may regain custody of 
such animals. If an animal has a valid license, the owner shall be notified. 

Page 8 of9 

LSCSD • 16320 Everhart Dr.• Weed, Ca 96094 • 530.938.3281 • Fax 530.938.4739 



Sec. 11.12. Non-Liability of LSPD and/or LSCSD: No liability shall be incurred by the LSPD and/or 
the LSCSD for the disposition of any animal made pursuant to the provisions of this ordinance. 

Sed. 11.13. Violation Penalty: Any persons violating any provision of this ordinance is guilty of 
an infraction, unless specifically noted as a misdemeanor. 

Sec. 11.14. Alternative Actions Available: Nothing in this ordinance shall be deemed to prevent 
the LSPD from ordering the commencement of an administrative citation or civil or criminal 
proceeding to abate a public nuisance or from pursuing any other means available to them 
under provision of applicable ordinances or state law to correct violations in addition to or as 
alternatives to the proceedings set forth in this title. 

Sec. 11.15. Violation-Public Nuisance: It is declared that the keeping, harboring or maintaining 
of any animal in violation of the provisions of this ordinance constitutes a public nuisance and is 
unlawful. In addition to all other remedies available to the LSPD, whether criminal, civil, at law 
or in equity, any nuisance may be abated pursuant to this code or in any other manner 
provided by law. 

Article 12: Account of Sums Collected 

Sec. 12.01. Account of Sums Collected: The LSPD shall keep records of all income from animal 
licensing and fines associated with this ordinance and pay said sums collected pursuant to the 
provisions of this ordinance to the LSCSD Administration Office. 

It is hereby certified that the forgoing Ordinance No. 2-19 was duly introduced at a regular meeting 
of the Lake Shastina Community Services District on the 19th of June 2019 and adopted at a 
regular meeting of the Lake Shastina Community Services District on 17th of July 2019 

ROLL CALL VOTE 
AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 

ATTEST 

Robe1i Moser, District Secretary 

Lake Shastina Community Services District by: 

Rick Thompson, President 

Page 9 of9 

LSCSD • 16320 Everhart Dr.+ Weed, Ca 96094 • 530.938.3281 + Fax 530.938.4739 



LAKE SHASTINA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

TO: 

FROM: 

MEETING DATE: 

RE: 

MEMORANDUM 

LSCSD Board of Directors 

Debbie Nelle, Senior Accounting Clerk 

June 19, 2019 

2019/2020 LSCSD Proposed Budgets 

6. 

The LSCSD Finance/Budget Committee, management and staff have worked on the proposed 2019/2020 
Budgets for several months now. They have implemented some new accounting processes to meet with 
the recommendations of the auditors. 

The most challenging difference in this budget from prior years has been the staffing changes that have 
recently taken place as well as vacancies to be filled in the near future. This will be addressed again 
during the quarterly reviews to determine if adjustments should be made. 

LSCSD recently received the invoice from GSRMA, our insurance risk carrier. Although the property, auto 
and liability rates reduced slightly from the prior year, the totals premiums came in higher based on our 
currently owned assets and on higher payroll estimates. These will also be adjusted at the quarterly 
reviews. 

Some of the new changes recommended by the Auditor, Committee and staff and items to note are listed 
here: 

1. Water expenses previously expensed as capital improvements placed into operating budget as per 
item cost is well below capital threshold. This included new hydrants and lnstallation and new 
water meters purchased each year for replacement of older meters. 

2. Strike team revenues are estimated lower this year due to the unknowns of future fire activity this 
fiscal year. 

3. New General Ledger account was added for Vehicle Equipment in the COPS Grant Budget. This 
will be used for the purchase of dash cameras th1s year as well as other needs for the vehicles 
separate from repair and maintenance. 

4. The COPS Grant income is estimated including a conservative Growth Allocation of $30,000, 
which is the lowest amount received in the last 3 years. We have reached out to the county to 
notify us as soon as the state makes a final determination. 

5. The Wastewater Planning Grant is not budgeted for this year unless any expense rolls over to the 
new fiscal year for items not finished by 6/30/19. 

6. The Drinking Water Planning Grant is not yet finalized to add to the budget at this time. This will 
be added at the quarterly review once the state gives final approval to fund the grant. 

The Finance/Budget Committee has recommended Board approval of the 2019/2020 Proposed Budget as 
presented. 

OPTIONS: 
A) For the Board to approve the final budget, as presented, by Resolution 2-19. 
B) For the Board to modify the final budget and approve by Resolution 2-19. 

16320 Everhmt Drive, Weed, CA 96094 (530) 938-3281 Fax: (530) 938-4739 



• 

~ LAKE SHASTINA COMMUNI1Y SERVICES DISTRICT 
%---------

DRAFT 
RESOLUTION 2-19 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE LAKE SHASTINA 
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT TO APPROVE THE FY 2019/2020 OPERA TING 
BUDGET. 

WHEREAS, it is the Board of Directors duty to set the overall total budget amounts based on 
reasonable expectations of revenues each fiscal year; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors has received and considered both the budget committee's and 
Management's proposed FY 2019/2020 operating budget. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors approves the FY 
2019/2020 operating budget, as detailed in Attachment A. 

************************************************* 

I hereby certify that the forgoing is a full, true and correct copy of Resolution 2-19 duly passed and 
adopted by the Board of Directors of the Lake Shastina Community Services District, Siskiyou 
County, California, at a meeting thereof duly held on the 19th day of June, 2019, by the following 
vote: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 

Approval Date: ________ _ 

Rick Thompson, President 

ATTEST: 

Robe1i Moser, Secretary 

16320 Everhart Drive, Weed, CA 96094 (530) 938-3281 Fax: (530) 938-4739 



BUDGET PROPOSED: 6/19/2019 

4001.1 - Assmt/Reven ue. - Residential 
4001.2 - Assmt/Revenue - Standbv 
4001 .3 - Assmt/Revenue - Commercial 
4003.0 - Late Payment Revenue 
4055.0 - Misc. Ooerational Income 
4056.0 - Misc. Non-Oo. Income 
4070.0 -Antenna Lease Revenue 
4075.0 - Water Capacity Expansion Fee 
4076.0 - Fire Suporession Expansion Fee 
4080.0 - Emerg Reso Payroll Reimb 
4085.0 - Emera Reso Travel/Meals 
5004.0 - Sewer Hook Uo Fee 
5005.0 - Sewer Payment Contracts 
5006.0 - Water Hookup Fee 
5040.0 - Gain on Sale of Eauipment 
5050.0 - Transfer Fees 
5054.0 - Animal Control Fee - Other 
5055.0 - Animal License Fee 
5056.0 - Warrant 
5062.0 - Donations 
5075.0 - Grant Revenue 
5080.0 - Interest earned - Ops 
5081.0 - Interest Earned - Rsv (Savings) 

Deot. 22 - Medical Clinic - General Fund Sub Deot. 
4053.0 - Medical Clinic Revenue 
4054.0 - Loan Principle Revenue 
5081.0 - Interest Earned- Rsv (Savinos) 

LAKE SHASTINA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
2019-2020 

479,434 337,663 137,390 
65,484 102,760 282,260 

6,814 14,136 3,520 
2,800 9,000 10,000 

500 
3,200 

23,439 
1,920 

43,491 
252 

1,590 
4,500 4,500 

4,000 
300 

4,800 
1,500 

500 

100 
1,000 3,400 13,500 5,700 

60,264 
34,000 
10,000 

Deot. 23 • Green Waste Site - Sewer Fund Sub Deot. 
4055.0 - Misc. Operational Income 3,000 

Dept. 34 • Fire Fuels Removal Sub Dent. 
4055.0 - Misc. Ooerational Income 
5026.0 - FinesNiolations 

Dept. 36 - Plannia Grants - Sewer Fund Sub Dent. 
5075.0 - Grant Revenue 

49,920 1,004,406 
64,150 514,654 

1,100 25,569 
2,500 24,300 

500 
3,200 

23,439 
1,920 

948 948 

43,491 
252 

1,590 
9,000 
4,000 

300 
4,800 

5,000 6,500 
5,000 5,500 

130,000 7,500 137,500 
100 

1,100 24,700 

60,264 
34,000 
10,000 

3,000 

22,000 22,000 
15,000 15,000 

Dept. 45 - Mutual Aid strike Team· Fire Sub Dept. -
4080.0- Strike Team Revenues Payroll Reimb 155,000 155,000 
4081.0 - Strike Team Revenues Enaine Reimb 60,000 60,000 
4082.0 - Strike Team Revenues Admin OH Reimb 34,000 34,000 

1;m:t\:iJ~l!\}JN~~ME!i'21\l'!!~'202'.0:tlilolijc(ijtl\l~i»Y,0fMl¥$}tll1%llt/!.% fl)?)tiWiRl89'13Q3~ ittm1Wi,!S"0:9\1,7;!(,'.@! ,,l\Y{il'.@!!\5~9JQ'S~lt m)1fi%\iiil~itfl9'.iiil'.ti0!1 ~¥W11li\\i1!3'0[0(Ull l\ll?Itl!JJJZ3~~:sf; \i~Wf!,,i:12t[t~t~ZQ!$SJ\1 

7001.0 -Accountina Audit 2,800 2,800 2,800 2,800 11,200 
7002.0 -Admin Overhead Allocation (483,085) 154,587 173,911 82,125 72,463 
7005.0 - Depreciation 
7010.0 - Caoital Improvement/Reserve Exp. 143,500 53,500 7,500 204,500 
7020.0 - IT Contract Services/Server 12,500 4,200 4,200 10,000 2,200 3,000 36,100 
7026.0 - Contract Services 15,000 18,000 24,000 2,500 2,000 61,500 
7033.0 - Licenses, Permits & Fees 2,600 8,000 3,500 5,000 450 19,550 
7034.0 - Dues & Subscriotions 7,500 500 1,300 3,000 925 13,225 
7035.0 - Advertisina 250 250 250 250 1,000 
7040.0 - Insurance (property & liabi!iM 675 14,000 20,500 5,100 6,300 46,575 
7041 .0 - Legal 15,000 1,000 5,000 2,500 2,000 25,500 
7050.1 - Office Exo Supplies 5,000 400 650 1,300 650 8,000 
7050.2 - Office Exp Postage 6,000 100 800 400 100 7.400 
7050.4 - Office Exo Maintenance 7,750 2,000 9,750 
7051.0 - Public Safety Supplies 2,500 2,500 
7051.1 - Mandatorv Safetv EauiPment 1,000 1,000 
7055.0 - Safety Eauipment 1,000 1,000 2,000 
7061.0 - Rental eauipment 500 500 
7062.0 - Repair & Maintenance 3,500 16,000 33,000 1,600 2,000 56,100 
7063.0 - Fuel 1,000 6,500 6,500 10,500 6,000 30,500 
7064.0 - Materials, Supplies & Small Tools 1,500 6,000 25,000 8,000 3,000 43,500 
7065.0 - Vehicle Reoair/Maintenance 2,000 3,000 3,000 8,000 15,000 31,000 
7068.0 - Vehicle Eauioment 7,000 
7075.0 - VFA Grant Eauipment 15,000 15,000 
7080.0 - Interest Exoense (Sewer Pond Loan) 18,719 18,719 
7085.0 - Municipal Finance (Principle) 42,307 42,307 
7100.0 - Lease/Rent Expense 1,775 1,775 3,550 
71 01. O - Property Taxes 140 140 
7105.0 - Utilities - CSD 1,000 600 850 2,450 
7105.1 - Utilities - Telephone 2,300 490 1,000 5,150 2,000 10,940 
7105.2 - Utilities - Electric 5,500 52,000 97,000 3,000 3,300 160 800 
7105.3 - Utilities - Waste 510 510 480 480 1,980 
7105.4 - Utilities - Prooane 500 1,000 1,200 2,700 
7105.6 - Utilities - Internet 1,550 750 750 1,025 260 4,335 
7204.0 - Events 600 500 1,100 
7245.0 - Election 
7501.0 - PavroH Expense 306,716 171,024 107,511 186,068 71,857 50,769 893,946 
7513.0 - Pavroll Taxes 7,051 3,807 2,393 15,536 5,931 4,175 38,893 
7514.0 - Pavroll Benefits 83,551 44,294 27,845 57,015 20,979 20,979 254,663 
7516.1 - Pension (MPPP) 8,872 2,699 3,300 14,871 
7516.2 - Pension (CalPERS) 26,319 12,457 7,831 46,606 
7516.4 - CalPERS Fees 400 200 200 800 
7516.5 - CalPERS UAL Exoense 35,858 18,755 11,791 66,403 
7516.6 - Pension Plan Fees (MPPP\ 100 100 1,000 200 1,000 2,400 
7518.0 - Workers Comp 26,147 14.458 9,089 13.117 6,108 11,125 80,044 
7530.0 - Pavroll Reimbursement (Sewer) 8,000 (9,700) 1,200 500 
7530.1 - Payroll Reimbursement (Admin) (79,782) (79,782) 
7549.0 - Volunteer FF Stioend 12,000 12,000 
7549.1 - VFF Payroll Taxes 2,000 2,000 
7550.0 - Travel & Trainina 5,000 4,000 4,000 9,000 2,000 24,000 
7551.0 - Meals 1,000 1,000 1,000 2,000 1,000 6,000 
7552.0 - Employee Physical Exams/Shots 500 1,000 300 600 2,400 
7555.0 - Personal Protective Eauioment (PPE\ 1,500 1,500 4,500 7,500 
7556.0 - Uniforms 1,200 1,200 3,000 2,000 7,400 

2019-2020 LSCSD Budget All Depts Proposed 2019-6-19 

6. 



BUDGET PROPOSED: 6/19/2019 

De t. 22 • Medical Clinic· General Fund Sub De t. 

Medical Clinic Reserves 

LAKE SHASTINA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
2019-2020 

700 
3,000 
9,500 

34,500 
2,500 
7,064 

De t. 23 - Green Waste Site· Sewer Fund Sub De t. 
7026.0 - Contract Services 800 
7063.0 - Fuel 25 
7064.0 - Materials, Su lies & Small Tools 100 
7530.0 - Pa roll Reimbursement GWS 1,200 

De t. 34 • Fire Fuels Removal Sub De t. 

PG 
De t. 45. Mutual Aid Strike Team - Fire Sub De t 

700 
3,000 
9,500 

34,500 
2,500 
7,064 

800 
25 

100 
1,200 

200 200 
3,000 3,000 

500 500 
14,450 14,450 
2,001 2,001 
1,228 1,228 

7063.0 - Fuel 350 350 
7065.0 - Vehicle Re air/Maintenance 
7501.0 - Pa roll Ex ense 115,927 115,927 
7513.0 • Pa ro!I Taxes 4,926 4,926 
7518.0 - Workers Com 9,867 9,867 
COPS Grant Shortfall to De t 25 Police 30,367 30,367 

0me;r:A'l!\(8*1?ENSE1~0.~~i!,2020:t 0 :l:cfe'cl:etU!ll.l[{1i\i!)Jii'\&t\l;:i-0 ~*~~(i!wlwk'.89!'30~1* l~JK1t\%\iZ.62f6.'0:Sll; ;\'~HitsRlEi3~;405;l\l $1zii\\1iil2{'4$6fQ'S5}1 k,,iJlJXitti:ltlitw ii2~\\l ll\'w.c2)\1i!llOiZ{6:'lIS~ fllf~ID,t,TrWA'l12}5(ilti!imPii 
Reimbursement for Ca . Ex . from Reserves 143,500 53,500 7,500 204,500 
Net Ex ense 89,303 619,108 580,905 428,555 177,724 407,675 2,296,270 

19,257 19,257 
42,307 42,307 

Notes: 
Administrative Overhead Allocation Calculation for this budget period: Sewer 32%, Water 36%, Police 17%, Fire 15%. 
Worker's Comp includes the Board coverage. 
2018-2019 Audit- L Bain CPA $11,200 

Payroll for 2019-2020 includes: 
• Anticipated current staffing level Step increases 

• 3% COLA for Teamsters Union member employees 
• Ca!PERS Miscellaneous Plan ER costs increase 0.788% for Classic members and 0.143% for PEPRA members per Actuarial 

Capital Improvements/Expenditures: 

General Fund: Current Balance in LAIF Reservesc 

Capital Improvements from Reserves- $ . 

Sewer Department· Current Balance in l,AIF Reserves· 

Capital Improvements from Reserves- $ 143500 Security Fencing at Sewer PQnds (2 yr project?) 

Mini Escavator (shared w/Sewer Dept} 

Used Vehicle (shared w/Sewer Dept) 

Sewer Lift Station B-106 Retrofit/Refurbishment 

Water Department: Current Balance in LAIF Reserves· 

Capital Improvements from Reserves- $ 53 500 Mini Escavator (shared w/Sewer Dept} 

Used Vehicle (shared w/Sewer Dept) 

Police Department: Current Balance in LAIF Reservesc 

Capital Improvements from Reserves- $ 7 500 Building Improvements 

Fire Department: Current Balance in LAIF Reserves: 

Capital Improvements from Reserves- $ . 

2019-2020 LSCSD Budget All Depts Proposed 2019-6-19 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

s 
$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

As of 
6/12/2019 

47,983 

-

299,837 

20,000 

45,000 

8,500 

70,000 

820,428 

45,000 

8,500 

310,507 

7,500 

200,855 

-

6. 



Item 7 

LAKE SHASTINA COMMUNITY SER VICES DISTRICT 

TO : LSCSD BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

MEETING DATE: June 19, 2019 

FROM: Robert Moser, General Manager 

SUBJECT: Consideration of approval of amendments to Personnel Policy - Public Works 
Department Job Descriptions 

BACKGROUND: 

LSCSD Persohnel Policy manual is a living document requiring continual review and updating. 

SUMMARY: 

The LSCSD Policies Ad Hoc Committee met and reviewed the following policies: 1338 (to be 
removed), 1339 (to be added), 1400 (to be revised), 1405(to be removed), 1410 (to be revised), 
1415 (to be removed) and 1420 (to be revised). 

These policies are attached to this repo1i and have been agenized for BOD approval. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

By Motion approve Personnel Policies: 1338, 1339, 1400, 1405, 1410, 1415 and 1420 Et al., as 
presented. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

LSCSD Personnel Policies 1338, 1339, 1400, 1405, 1410, 1415 and 1420 Et al. 

J 6320 Everhart Dr. • Weed, Ca 96094 • 530.938.328 1 • f ax 530.93 8.4739 



POLICY TITLE: 
POLICY NUMBER: 

Job Description - Assistant Public Works Director 
1338 (Removed 6/19/2019) 

1J38.10 General Job l>eseription: Under the direction of the General Manager and with a minim1:1m of 
s1:1perYisioe (50% Administration / 50% Field): · 

Assigns, reviews, s1:.1pert'ises and eYal1:1ates the work of all field persoA:Rel in the installation, maintenance 
and repair of the reads, water and sewer faeilities, as well as other property ovmed ey the Lake Shastina 
agencies. 

Prepare and traelc until completion all work orders submitted to the bead Man for distribution to field 
personnel. 

Learn contents ofpuelic v,rorks files to meet fut1:1re needs. R~sponsiele for map storage and knowledge of 
contents required in planning ofjoes, etc. Add required files to simplify the searching process. 

Cons1:1lts 'n'ith the General Manager on general priorities, plans and polieies. 

Reeommends and s1:1emits projects to the General Manager for incl1:.1sion in the arurnal e1:1dget. 

Design and cost out specific improvements; Obtain written quotations. 

Insures that operations, plans and personnel are sufficient to meet day to day as ·,veil as emergency 
sik-latiens. 

Meet ·,vith contractors and other agencies req1:1ired to accomplish desired goals. 

O,•ersee that all reports are completed on a timely basis for fl:Jtl:lre refereneing. 

Constr1:1ct, reYiew mamtain/file eheck off sheets support mg employee actions. job results, facility 
improvement in a maA:Rer to help those m the fut1:1re. 

effeetively works as a member of a problem sol'ling team to resoh•e, within set time schedules, a variety of 
operation and n~aintenance tasks in support of the General Manager, Administration and Board. 

Performs other duties as assigned. 

1338.:20 .Prerequisite Oualifieatiens. He/she must possess five (5) years increasing!:,· responsible experience in the 
constr1:1ctioe, operation, and maintenance of water and se1Ner facilities, includmg at least two (2) years in a 
supeP1isory capacity. He/she must possess the eq1:1ivalent to graduation from high school, preferably 
supplemented with college level work in some phase of engineering, constrnction mspection, mechanies, 
welding or industrial administration. He/she sho1:1ld have a working knowledge of pipe, Yalves, fittings, and 
other app1:1rtenant materials, inch-1ding easts, 1:1sed in potable and non potable 'Nater transmissions systems. 
He/ she must possess a valid Class C California dri';er license and satisfactory driYing record. 

1338.lS AEIElitieeal Desirable Oualifieatiens. He/she should have lmowledge of the bake Shastina water 
distribution system and possess a Water Distribution System Certificate from AWWA, California State 
Unh•ersity, Sacramento, or other qualified training instit1:.1tion. He/she should possess lmowledge of: 
principles of s1:1per·1isien and management; basic comp1:1ter skills; methods, materials and eq1:1ipment used 
in water, sewer and read constr1:1ction, parl,s and reereation maintenance and repair; laws and regulations 
go•,cerning water, sewer and road ana parks and recreation operation and n~aiatenance; techniques 1:1sed in 
plaRRing and e·,aluation; and, engineermg and surveying principles. 

1J38.30 Salary Range: Salary Range Scale available at the Acco1:1nting Office. 

J338.3S Essential Job Physieal l>emandst Close ana distance ,·ision; color perception; hearing; clear speech; use 
of hands to finger, handle, or feel objects, teals or controls; walking o,•er uneYeR grot-1na; climbing; 
kneeling; stooping; bending; sitting; squatting; 1:1pper aAd lower body flexibility; standing; lifting, pushing, 
pt-1lling and carrying regularly up to 25 lbs., ana driYing a vehicle. 

1338.40 Mareinal Jab .Physieal Demands: Lifting, 13t-1shing, pulling and carrying (ti=equently up to 50 lbs., and 
infreq1:1ently 1:1p to I 00 Jes.) 



IJJ8.4S Environmental Demands: 

Outside: 

Inside: 

Fumes/Gases: 

Works outside frequently in a variel)' of weather Gonditions ranging from snow lo -I= IQO D 

0Gsasionally 'Narks indoors in tem,:,erature GOntrolled environment. 

e:x.,:,os1:1re to futfles from internal Gombuslion engines and other Gonstrustion eq1:1i,:,men1, 
d1:1st from Gonstruetion o,:,erations, f1:1mes from ehlorine, baeteria, ehemieals 1:1sed in the 
treatment ,:,roeess, fumes from road nlaintenanee materials, and fl:lmes from weed eontrol 
shenlieals. 

}aloiseA1ibration: Moderate e,cposure to noise and ,·ibration f:rom eonstruetion tools and equi,:,ment. 

IJJ8.SO Mentel Reg1:1irements1 

Reading: 

Writing: 

Math: 

Abilil)' to read teeJ:mieal manuals, eil)• ma,:,s, written memos and di:FeetiYes, ,:,lans, 
s,:,eeifieations and details, work orders, material data sheets, safe!)' mam:1als, and other 
doeHments · a,:,,:,urtenant to the eonstruetion, re,:,air and re,:,laGement of 'Nater distriblition 
faei I ities. 

Abilil)' to write daily work orders, re,:,orts, memos, messages, daily ,:,ayroll entries, 
,:,re,:,ares as built sketches, and fills OHi otber information forms. 

Ability to perform basis Rlath ealeulations. Abilil)' to apply eoneepts suGh as fraetions, 
pereentages, ratios, and propot1ions to praetieal sitliations. 

Attention to Detail: High level eoneentration and atteetion to detail for e1,tended 13eriods of time to insure 
safe, effieient and produetive operations. 

Repetition: 

Judgment: 

Soeial Skills: 

Period is repetitive entry of meter readings 

Abilil)' to work independently, prioritize work and make deeisions regarding sorreet 
appliGation and implementation of work proeedlires. Abilil)1 to define ,:,roblems, GOlleGt 
data, establish fasts, and draw valid eonelusions. Abilil)1 to work with others aad to 
formlilate appropriate instrnetioas to aehieve desired goals. 

Abilil)1 to relate sooperatively with members of the publie, and Distrist persoR:nel. 

CotflmHnieation Skills: Abilil)1 to qHiskly organize and eommHnieate thoHghts orally and written. Abilil)• to 
Hnderstand sommlinieations from others. Ability to GommHnieate all hand signals related 
to Gonstruetion operations. 



POLICY TITLE: 
POLICY NUMBER: 

Job Description - Public Works Director 
1339 (Added 6/1 9/2019) 

1339.10 General Job Description Under the direction of the General Manager and with a minimum of supervision: 

Assigns, reviews, supervises and evaluates the work of all field personnel in the installation and 
maintenance of the water and sewer facilities, as well as other roperty owned by the Lake Shastina 
Community Services District. 

(Prepares and tracks until completion all work submitted to the Leadman for distribution to field personnel. 

Consults with the General Manager on general riorities, plans and olicies. 

Recommends and submits projects to the General Manager for inclusion in the arurnal budget. 

Designs and costs out SP.ecific improvements; obtain written quotations. 

Establishes, within District policy, appropriate service and staffing leve ls; monitors and evaluates the 
efficiency and effectiveness of service delivery methods and procedures; allocates resources accordingly. 
Meets with contractors and other agencies re uired to accomplish desired goals. 

Oversees that all r~orts are completed on a timely basis for future referencing. 

Plans, directs and coordinates, through subordinate level supervisory and managerial personnel, the Public 
Works Depattment work plan; assigns projects and programmatic areas of responsibility; reviews and 
evaluates work methods and procedures; meets with management staff to identify and resolve problems. 

Effective ly works as a member of a problem-so lving team to resolve, within set time schedules, a variety_qf 
cperation and maintenance tasks in su ort of the General Manager, Administration and Board. 

Perfonns other duties as assigned. 

1339.20 Prerequisite Qualifications. He/she must possess five (5) years increasingly responsible experience in the 
construction, operation and maintenance of water and sewer faci lities, including at least two (2) years in a 
supervisory capacity. He/she must possess the equivalent to graduation from high school, preferably 
supplemented with college-level work in some phase of engineering, construction inspection, mechanics, 
welding or industrial administration. He/she should have a working knowledge of pipe, valves, fittings and 
other appurtenant materials, including costs, used in potable and non-potable water transmissions systems. 
l-Ie/she must possess a valid Class C California driver license and satisfactory driving record . 

1339.25 Additional Desirable Qualifications. Knowledge of: operational characteristics, services and activities of 
a comprehensive public works program. Management skills to analyze programs, policies and operationa~ 
needs. Construction techniques involving sanitary sewers, water distribution. Principles and procedures of 
facility maintenance. Principles and practices of program management, development and administration. 
Principles and practices of municipal budget preparation and administration. Principles of supervision, 
training and performance evaluations. Current Human Relation and employee labor Jaw issues. Pertinent 
Federal, State and local laws, codes and regulations. 

1339.25 Salary Range: Salary Range determined by contract. 

1339.40 Essential Job Physical Demands: Essential and marginal functions require maintaining physical 
condition necessary for sitting, standing or walking for prolonged eriods of time; and o erating motorized 
vehicles. 

1339.60 Environmental Demands: 

Office/field environment; may work in inclement weather conditions. 



1339.70 Mental Requirements: 

Reading: 

Writing: 

Math: 

Ability to read technical manuals, city maps, written memos and directives, plans, 
specifications and details, work orders, material data sheets, safety manuals and other 
documents appu1tenant to the construction, repair and replacement of water distribution 
facilities . 

Ability to write daily work orders, reports, memos, messages, daily payroll entries, 
pre_pares as-built sketches and fills out other information forms. 

Ability to perform basic math calculations. Ability to apply conceets such as fractions, 
percentages, ratios and pro mtions to practical situations. 

Attention to Detail: High level concentrntion and attention to detail for extended periods of time to insure 
safe, efficient and productive operations. 

Judgment: 

Social Skills: 

Ability to work independently, prioritize work and make decisions regarding correct 
application and implementation of work procedures. Ability to define problems, col lect 
data, establish facts and draw valid conclusions. Ability to work with others and to 
formulate a_ppro_priate instructions to achieve desired goals. 

Ability to relate cooperatively with members of the public and District personnel. 

Communication Skills: Ability to quickly organize and communicate thoughts orally and written. Ability to 
understand conununications from others. 



POLICY TITLE: 
POLICY NUMBER: 

Job Description - Maintenance Leadman 
1400 (Revised 6/19/2019) 

1400.10 General Job Description Under the direction of the Gefleral MaRager Public Works Director and with a 
minimum of supervision: 

Assigns, reviews, supervises, and evaluates the work of all field personnel in the installation and, maintenance 
and repair of the fOOds; water and sewer facilities, as well as other property owned by the Lake Shastina 
ageRcies Community Services District. 

Consults with the GeReral M1mager Public Works Director on general priorities, plans and policies. 

Recommends and submits projects to the GeReral MaRager Public Works Director for inclusion in the annual 
budget. 

Ensures that operations, plans and personnel are sufficient to meet day-to-day as well as emergency situations. 

Reads and interprets construction contracts, specifications, details and plans for the purpose of correctly 
installing, repairing and/or replacing pipeline and appurtenant facilities . , irrigatieR Strl:lchires (e.g. fh:1mes, 
measl:.lfiRg stnictures, etc.), and appurteAaRt facilities, strnct\-lral treRcl! seetieRs, anEI read·Nay pavement. 

Performs inspection of private construction of Lake Shastina agency facilities. 

Assures that vehicles, equipment and facilities are maintained in proper working order. 

Coordinates work with other agencies including locating and delineating District facilities as requested by 
Underground Service Alert (USA), other agencies, utility companies, contractors, and property owners. 

Meets customers and resolves complaints and problems. 

Evaluates performance of subordinates. 

Performs a wide variety of heavy unskilled and semi-skilled manual and automated tasks including, but not 
limited to, the operation of mechanical and hydraulically operated construction equipment. 

Removes, repairs, tests, and installs a variety of sizes and types of water meters. aRd pressure regulators. 

Organizes aecem=its iate reutes for optimal data e0llecti0R effieiencies aRd reaEls and reeerds water usage data 
frem meters. 

Conducts training programs and meetings to disseminate information regarding work assignments and safety 
issues, etc. 

Ability to work on a periodic "On call" basis to respond to emergency call outs. 

Performs both chemical and bacteriological sampling. 

Tests aRd/er assigRs eR repairs baek flew preveRtieA assemblies aRd iRspeets users' f)remises for eress 
e00:Recti0Rs. 

Oversees that rep01ts and as-builts are documented for future referencing. 

Performs other duties as assigned. 

effectively 'Narks as a member of a problem solviRg team to resoh•e, withiR set time sehea1:1les, a 'iariety of 
eperatioR aRa maiRteRaRce !asks iR suppert enhe General Manager. 

1400.20 Prerequisite Qualifications. He/she must possess five (5) years increasingly responsible experience in the 
construction, operation and maintenance of water and sewer facilities, including at least two (2) years in a 
supervisory capacity. He/she must possess the equivalent to graduation from high school, preferably 
supplemented with college-level work in some ehase of engineering, construction inspection, mechanics, 
welding or industrial administration. Possesses a mini mum of one of the fo llowing certifications: 01 , T l or 
Grade l Sewer Operator. He/she should have a working knowledge of pipe, valves, fittings, and other 
appurtenant materials, including costs, used in potable and non-potable water transmissions systems. Mt!5t 



have Elemonstrated eompeteRey iA testiAg aAd repairil,g eeeh flov,r 13reveAtioR assemelies aAd inspeetiAg users' 
vrem+ses for eross eoRneetions and showld ee eertified iA eaelc flow testiAg ey AWWA. He/she must possess a 
valid Class A or Class B California driver license and satisfactory driving record. 

1400.25 Additional Desirable Qualifications. He/she should have knowledge of the Lake Shastina water distribution 
system. Water Dist:rieutioR System Certifieate from AWWA, Cal+farnia State UniYeFSit:y, SacrameRte, er ot.hei: 
qualified trai:RiRg instit1:1ti0n. He/she should possess knowledge of: principles of supervision and management; 
methods, materials and equipment used in water, and sewer road eoRStrnetion, maintenance and repair; laws 
and regulations governing water and sewer system operation and maintenance; techniques used in planning and 
evaluation; and, engineering and surveying principles. 

1400.30 Salary Range: Salary Range Scale available at the Accounting Office. 

1400.40 Essential Job Physical Demands: Close and distance vision; color perception; hearing; clear speech; use of 
hands to finger, handle, or feel objects, tools or contrnls; walking over uneven ground; climbing; kneeling; 
stooping; bending; sitting; squatting; upper and lower body flexibility; standing; lifting, pushing, pulling and 
canying regularly up to 25 lbs., operating heavy equipment, and driving vehicle. 

1400.50 Marginal Job Physical Demands: Lifting, pushing, pulling and carrying (frequently up to 50 lbs., and 
infrequently up to 100 lbs.) 

1400.60 Environmental Demands: 

Outside: 

lnside: 

Fumes/Gases: 

Works outside frequently in a variety of weather conditions ranging from snow to + 100 
Drn;:G . 

Occasionally works indoors in temperature-controlled environment. 

Exposure to fumes from internal combustion engines and other construction equipment, dust 
from construction operations, fumes from chlorine, bacteria, chemicals used in the treatment 
process, fumes from road maintenance materials, and fumes from weed control chemicals. 

Noise/Vibration: Moderate exposure to noise and vibration from construction tools and equipment. 

1400.70 Mental Requirements: 

Reading: 

Writing: 

Math: 

Ability to read technical manuals, city maps, written memos and directives, plans, 
specifications and details, work orders, material data sheets, safety manuals; and other 
documents appurtenant to the construction, repair and replacement of water distribution 
facilities. 

Ability to write daily work orders, reports, memos, messages, daily payroll entries, prepares 
as-built sketches, and fills out other information forms. 

Abi lity to p erform basic math calculations. Ability to apply concepts such as fractions, 
percentages, ratios, and proportions to practical situations. 

Attention to Detail: High level concentration and attention to detail for extended periods of time to insure safe, 
efficient and productive operations. 

Repetition: 

Judgment: 

Social Skills: 

Periodic repetitive ently of meter readings 

Ability to work independently, prioritize work and make decisions regarding correct 
application and implementation of work procedures. Ability to define problems, collect data, 
establish facts, and draw valid conclusions. Ability to work with others and to formulate 
appropriate insti·u.ctions to achieve desired goals. 

Ability to relate cooperatively with members of the public, and Disti·ict personnel. 

Communication Skills: Ability to quickly organize and communicate thoughts orally and written. Ability to 
understand communications from others. Ability to communicate all hand signals related to 
consti·uction operations. 



POLICY TITLE: 
POLICY NUMBER: 

Job Description - Acting Maintenance Leadman 
1405 (Removed 6/19/2019 

140S.10 General Jab Deseriptien Under the direction of the Mai:Atenaflce Leadman and with minimum 
supervision; Acts as Acting Leadman in absence of Leadman. 

Perfu1m tasks as associated with the installation, maintenaHce and repair of the roads, •,1.'ater and sewer 
facilities, as well as other property owned by the Lake Shastina agencies. 

Read and interpret plans, drawings and specifications. 

Assist in the field supervision afld training offle'N personnel. 

Perfum1 hea•,y semi skilled and skil led maintenance work. 

Perferm inspections of pri11ate constructioe of Lake Sha st in a facilities. 

Operate heayy equipment to iHclude, grader, tractor, trucks, rollers, loaders, backhoe and other equipment. 

Advises superi,isor of equipment operating condition and reporting the need fer major mechanical 
adj1:1stment and repair. 

Estimates quantities of materials needed fur a variety of projects related to sewer, water and roads. 

Coordinates work with other agencies including locating and delineating District facilities as requested by 
Undergrot:md Sen•ice Alert (USA), other agencies, utility companies, contractors, and property owners. 

Ability to work on a periodie "On call" basis to respond to emergenC:)' call outs. 

Meets customers and resolves complaints and problems. 

Perform. both chemical and bacteriological sampling. 

Test and repair back flow preYention assemblies afld inspects user premises fur cross connections. 

Perform other duties as assigned. 

Effectively works as a member of a problem solving team to resol•1e, within set time sehedules, a variety of 
operatioH aHd maintenance tasks ie support of the General Manager. 

140S.20 Prerequisite Ouelifieations. He/she must possess the eeiuivalent to graduatioe from high school and at 
least three years experience i:A public works type coastrnetioe and maiRteeaRce work, knowledge of 
capability aHd operatioR of heavy equipment, constn1etion tools and meehanical aRd hydraulically operated 
construction equipme1-1t. He/she must possess a •ralid California driver lieense and satisfactory driying 
reoord-: 

140S.2S Additional Desirable Oualifieations. The lrnowledge of water distribution systems aRd preferably 
possession of a Water DistributioH System Certificate from AWW/•,, California State Uni,,•ersity, 
Sacramento, or other EJUalified training institutioa is desirable. He she must possess a valid Class A 
California driYer license aad satisfactory driving record. 

140S,d0 Salary Range: Salary Range Scale available at the Accouating Office. 

140S.<IO .~ssential Jab Phvsieal Demands: Close and distance Yisioa; color perception; hearing; elear speech; use 
of hands to finger, handle, or feel objects, tools or controls; walking o,·er 1:1ne:ven ground; elimbing; 
kneeliHg; stooping; bending; sitting; squatting; upper aRd lower body flexibility; standiRg; lifting, pushing, 
pulling and carrying regularly up to 25 lbs., operating heavy equipment, manual digging, and dri>1ing 
vehicle. 

140S.SO Marginal Job Physieal De111ands: Lifting, pushing, pulling and can:ying (frequently up to 5(-) lbs., and 
iafrequeatly Hp to 1 QQ lbs.). 



140.S.fiO En~·ire11mental Demands: 

01:1tside: 

Inside: 

f\m1es/Gases: 

Works outside frequently in a variety of weatl:ier conditions ranging from snow to -1=100 

Occasionally ·Norks indoors in temperature controlled environment. 

Exposure to fomes from internal combustion engines and otl:ier construction eeiuipment, 
d1:1st from construction operations, fumes frorn cl:ilorine, bacteria, cl:iemicals 1:1sed in tl:ie 
treatment process, fumes from road maiHtenance n1aterials, and fumes from weed control 
chemicals. 

Noise/Vibration: Moderate exposw=e to noise aRd Yibration from constn1:ction tools and equipment. 

140.S.70 Mental Reauirements: 

Reading: 

Writing: 

Math: 

Ability to read technical manuals, eity maps, v/ritten memos and directi;res, plans, 
specifications and details, work orders, material data sl:ieets, safety rnaA1:1als, and otl:ier 
documents appurtenant to tile construction, repair and replaeement of water distribution 
facilities . 

Ability to write ·work orders in tl:ie absenee of tl:ie Leadman, an11otates work orders witl:i 
materials used, equipment used, as built faeility infurmatio11, l:io1:1rs worked, and 
description of work done. 

Ability to perfunn basic math ealeulatio11s. Ability to apply concepts sueh as fraetim1s, 
perce11tages, ratios, and proportio11s to practieal sit1:1atioes. 

Attention to Detail: Medium level coneentration and attention to detail to produce aceeptable level of 
workma11sl:iip. 

Repetitio11: 

J1:1dgment: 

Soeial Skills: 

Periodic repetitive entry of meter readings aad routine daily work praetices. 

Ability to work independently, prioritize work and assist 1Nith making decisions regardiag 
con-ect applicatioa and implementation of work proced1:1res. Ability to defi:ee problems, 
colleet data, establish facts and draw 1,calid eoaclusions to assist Leadmaa. Ability to work 
with others and 1:1se good judgment, when req1:1ired. 

Ability to relate cooperatively with members of tile p1:1blie, and District persoooel. 

Con1n11:1nication Skills: Ability to q1:1ickly organize a11d con1m1:1nicate tllo1:1gllts orally or writte11. Ability to 
understand eornm1:1nicatio11s from others. Ability to communicate -al-I-ha-Rd sig11als related 
to constrnction operations. 



POLICY TITLE: 
POLICY NUMBER: 

Job Description - Maintenance Worker #1- ll 
1410 evised 6/19/2019 

1410.10 General Job Description Under the direction of the Maintenance Leadman or Acting Leadmaa: 

Performs tasks associated with the installation and maintenance aiul repair of the roads, of the water and 
sewer facilities, as well as other property owned by the Lake Shastina Community Services DistTict 
agencies. 

Reads and interprets plans, drawings and specifications. 

Assists in the field supervision and training of new personnel. 

Perform heavy sen-, i skilled aRd skilled mainteBaf!ee work. Performs a wide variety of heavy unski I led and 
semi-ski lled man ual and automated tasks including, but not limited to, the operation of mechanical and 
hydraulically o_peratcd construction e uipment. 

Performs inspections of private construction of Lake Shastina facilities. 

Operates heavy equipment to include, graEler; tractor, trucks, rollers, loaders, backhoe and other equipment. 

Advises supervisor of equipment operating condition and reportsi:Ag need for major mechanical adjustment 
and repair. 

Estimates quantities of materials needed for a variety of projects related to sewer and water. and mads. 

Coordinates work with other agencies including locating and delineating District facilities as requested by 
Underground Service Alert (USA), other agencies, utility companies, contractors; and property owners. 

Meets customers and resolves complaints and problems. 

Performs both chemical and bacteriological sampling. 

Test and repair baek flow prevention assemblies aRd spects user premises for cross connections. 

Ability to work on a periodic "On call" basis to respond to emergency call outs. 

Performs other duties as assigned. 

Effectively works as a member of a problem-solving team to resolve, within set time schedules, a variety of 
operation and maintenance tasks in support of the General Manager. 

1410.20 Prerequisite Qualifications. He/she must possess the equivalent to graduation from high school and at 
least three years experience in public works type construction and maintenance work, knowledge of 
capability and operation of construction tools and mechanical and hydraulically operated construction 
e ui ment. Ile/she must possess a minimum of one of the following certification s: DI , Tl or Grade l 
Sewer Operator. He/she must ossess a valid Class A or Class E3 California driver license and satisfactory 
driving record. 

1410.25 Additional Desirable Qualifications. The knowledge of water dish·ibution systems and preferably 
possession of a Water Dish·ibution System Certificate from A WWA, California State University, 
Sacramento, or other qualified training institution is desirable. He/she Arnst !"Ossess a ,·alid Class A 
California driver lieeAse and satisfaetory dri•,cing reeord. 

1410.30 Salary Range: Salary Range Schedule available at the Accounting Office. 

1410.40 Essential Job Physical Demands: Close and distance vision; color perception; hearing; clear speech; use 
of hands to finger, handle, or feel objects, tools or conh·ols; walking over uneven ground; climbing; 
kneeling; stooping; bending; sitting; squatting; upper and lower body flexibility; standing; lifting, pushing, 
pulling and carrying regularly up to 25 lbs., operating heavy equipment, manual digging; and driving 
vehicle. 



J 410.50 Marginal Job Physical Demands: Lifting, pushing, pulling and carrying (frequently up to 50 lbs., and 
infrequently up to 100 lbs.). 

1410.60 Environmental Demands: 

Outside: Works outside frequently in a variety of weather conditions ranging from snow to + 100 
DEFG. 

Inside: Occasionally works indoors in temperature-controlled envirom11ent. 

Fumes/Gases: Exposure to fumes from internal combustion engines and other construction equipment, 
dust from construction operations, fumes from chlorine, bacteria, chemicals used in the 
treatment process, fumes from road maintenance materials, and fumes from weed control 
chemicals. 

NoiseNibration: Moderate exposure to noise and vibration from constrnction tools and equipment. 

1410.70 Mental Requirements: 

Reading: 

Writing: 

Math: 

Ability to read technical manuals, city maps, written memos and directives, plans, 
specifications and details, work orders, material data sheets, safety manuals, and other 
documents apputtenant to the construction, repair and replacement of water distTibution 
facilities. 

Annotates work orders with materials used, equipment used, as-built facility information, 
hours worked, and description of work done. 

Ability to perfonn basic math calculations. Ability to apply concepts such as fractions, 
percentages, ratios, and proportions to practical situations. 

Attention to Detail: Medium level concentration and attention to detail to produce acceptable level of 
workmanship. 

Repetition: 

Judgment: 

Social Skills: 

Periodic repetitive entry of meter readings and routine daily work practices. 

Ability to work independently, prioritize work and assist with making decisions regarding 
correct application and implementation of work procedures. Ability to define problems, 
collect data, establish facts and draw valid conclusions and report to Leadman/ Abi li ty to 
work with others and use good judgment, when required. 

Ability to relate cooperatively with members of the public, and District personnel. 

Comm unication Ski lls: Ability to quickly organize and communicate thoughts orally or written. Ability to 
understand communications from others. Ability to communicate all hand signals related 
to construction operations. 



POLICY TITLE: Job Description - Maintenance Worker II 
POLICY NUMBER: 1415 (Removed & Revised from MW HI Job dcscri tion 6/19/2019) 

141S.10 General Job Deseription Uader the direstioa of tile MainteAaAce Leadmaa. 

Performs tasks associates with tile i:nstallatioa, maiflteAanee anEI repair of the roaas, water anEI sewer 
facilities, as well as other prOf)erty owned by the Lake Shastina agencies. 

Assist iA the field su13ervision and training of new 13ersonnel. 

Operate a variety of light anEI moderately heavy power Elriven equi13me11t an El 13erform the more difficult tasks 
which require greater 13ersonal skills to assist with sewer, water anEI road projects. 

Assures that Yel:iieles, equipment and facilities are maiAtaineEI in 13ro13er working oraer. 

CoordiBates work with otller agencies inoluEling loeatiflg and deliBeatiag Distriet faeilities as reEJ:uested by 
Undergrou1'!EI Serviee Alert (USA), otller agencies, utility eompanies, contraetors, and property owners. 

Meets eustomers and resolves eomplaiBts and problems. 

Performs one or 1nore ofa variety of skilled labor and semi skilled traae jobs in maintenanee of streets, •1,1ater 
anEI sewer li11es aeEI services. but not limited to, the operation ofmeehanieal and hyElra1:1lieally 013erateEI light 
eonstruetion equi13ment. 

Reads and reeords water usage data from meters. 

Ability to work on a periodic "Oe .eall" basis to respo11d to emergeney eall outs. 

Performs other duties as assignee. 

Effeetively works as a member ofa problem sohring team to resolve, within set time sehedules, a variety of 
013eration a11d maiAteAance tasks i11 support oftl:1e General Manager. 

141S.20 Prerequisite Oualifieations. He/she must possess the equivale11t to graduation from high sehool, one to two 
years e1,perience i11 13ublic works ty13e construction and mai11te11ance work, inch1ding e1(13erienee in the 
operation of light and moderately hea·,y power dfr1e11 equipment; knoviledge of ca13ability and operation of 
constnietion tools a11d mecha11ieal and hydraulically 013erated eo11structio11 equipment. He/slle must possess 
a yalid California driver lieense and satisfactory drivi11g reeord. 

141S,2S Additional Desirable Oualifieations. The lrnowledge of water distributio11 systems and possession. of a 
Water Distribution System Certifieate from AWWA, California State U11h•ersity, Saerame11to, or other 
qualified training i11stih:1tion is desirable. 

l 4IS.30 Salary Range: Salary range scale available at the aeeounting office. 

141S.40 Esse11tial Joh Physieal Demands: Close and distanee visio11; eolor 13ereeptio11; hearing; slear speeeh; 1:1se 
ofha11ds to finger, hafldle, or feel objects, tools or eontrols; walkiflg over uneven ground; climai11g; lmeeli11g; 
stooping; bending; sitting; squatti11g; up13er and lower body flexibility; standing; lifti11g, pushi11g, 13ulling a11d 
earrying regularly u13 to 25 las., operating heavy equipme11t, mafl:ual digging, a11d driving vehicle. 

141S.SO Marginal Joh Phvsieal Demands: Lifti11g, 13ushing, 13ulliag a11d earrying (frequeAtly up to 50 lbs., a11d 
infrequently u13 to I 00 lbs.). 

141S.ti0 E11Yironmental Dema11ds: 



Outside: 

Inside: 

Fumes/Gases: 

Works ot-1tside frequently in a ·•arie~· of"' ti d. · · ~ ~ ~, ea 1er con 1t1ons rang mg from snov,i to ,1,, J 00 

Occasionally works indoors in temperatl-lre controlled environment. 

:xpo;re to fumes ~om inte~al combustion eRgiRes and ether censt:ructiea equipn1ent 
_ust em construction eperat1oas, fumes from chlorine, bacteria, chemicals llsed in th~ 

tI:atn~eat precess, fumes from read rnaiAtenance materials and fumes from " 'eed control 
c-em1cals. ' " 

l>loise/Vibratioa: MoEie t · • ra e expost-1re to noise and vibratioA from eoAstruetion tools and equipment. 

141S.70 Mental Reauirements: 

ReadiAg: 

Writing: 

Math: 

Abil_ity .:~ r~ad rnaAuals, i:naps, writteA memos aAd directiYes, plans, specifications and 
details, werl, or?ers, mat~nal data sheets, safe~· maRuals, aad other documeats appurtenant 
to the censtruct10H, repa!F aRd replacemeAt of water dist=ribution faeiLities . 

Annotates work orders with materials used, equiprneAt used as built facility i Ii f 
hoUFs werl d d d · · f , n~rma 1011 .. ,e , anescnpt10n o work done. ' 

AbT n 11ty to perform basic math calculations. Abili~· to co1:mt aAd measure. 

A tt . . . . 
1 ' eAt1en to Detail: Medmm le11el concentration and attention to detail to werlananship. produce aceeptable level of 

Repetition: 

JudgmeAt: 

Social Skills: 

Periodic repetitive enff)' of meter readings and routine daily work practices. 

Frequently works ~msuper11ised; goedjudgrneAt req1:1ired. 

Abili~· to relate cooperatively with members of the public, and District persOFmel. 

Cenrnm11icatioA Sk_ills: Ability to understand eornmunications from others. Ab iii~· to comnmnicate all hand 
signals related to coastnietioA operations. 



POLICY TITLE: 
POLICY NUMBER: 

Job Description - Maintenance Worker I 
1420 (Revised 6/19/2019 

1420.10 General Job Description Under the direction of the heae Maintenance Leadman Emp~ayee: 

Performs tasks associated with the installation and , maintenance aRd repair af the roads, of the water and 
sewer facilities, as well as other property owned by the Lake Shastina Community Services District 
ageReies . 

Perfom1s inspections of private construction of Lake Shastina facilities. 

Flushes hydrants periodically. 

Assures that vehicles, equipment and facilities are maintained in proper working order. 

Applies weed eentrel ehemieals to ditch banks and aro1md aboYe gr01:1:nd faeil:ities . 

Coordinates work with other agencies including locating and delineating District facilities as requested by 
Underground Service Alert (USA), other agencies, utility companies, contrnctors and property owners. 

Meets customers and resolves complaints and problems. 

Performs a wide variety of unskilled and semi-skilled manual and automated tasks including, but not 
limited to , the operation of mechanical and hydraulically operated constmction equipment. 

Removes, repairs, tests and installs a variety of sizes and types of water meters. ruul pre5s1e1re reg1e1lat0rs. 

Reads and records water usage data from meters. 

bility to work on a periodic "On call" basis to respond to emergency call outs. 

Performs beth ehemieal and eaeterialagieal sampliRg. 

Tests ana repairs back flow preventiafl assemblies and inspeets user premises for eress eonReetians. 

Performs other duties as assigned. 

Effectively works as a member of a problem-solving team to resolve, within set time schedules, a variety of 
operation and maintenance tasks in support of the General Maflager ublic Works Director. 

1420.20 Prerequisite Qualifications. He/she must possess the equivalent to graduation from high school, 
knowledge of capability and operation of construction tools and mechanical and hydraulically operated 
construction equipment. He/she must possess a valid California driver license and satisfactory driving 
record. 

1420.25 Additional Desirable Qualifications. The knowledge of water distTibution systems and possession of a 
Water Distribution System Certificate from A WWA, California State University, Sacramento, or other 
qualified training institution is desirable. He/she must to obtain or possess a valid Class A or Class B 
California driver license and satisfaetery driviAg reeera. 

1420.30 Salary Range: Salary Range Scale available at the Accounting Office. 

1420.40 Essential Job Physical Demands: Close and distance vision; color perception; hearing; clear speech; use 
of hands to finger, handle, or feel objects, tools or controls; walking over uneven ground; climbing; 
kneeling; stooping; bending; sitting; squatting; upper and lower body flexibility; standing; lifting, pushing, 
pulling and carrying regularly up to 25 lbs., operating heavy equipment, manual digging and driving 
vehicle. 



1420.50 Marginal Job Physical Demands: Lifting, pushing, pulling and canying (frequently up to 50 lbs., and 
infrequently up to LOO lbs.). 

1420.60 Environmental Demands: 

Outside: 

Inside: 

Fumes/Gases: 

Works outside frequently in a variety of weather conditions ranging from snow to + 100 
DE.J;G. 

OccasionaUy works indoors in temperature-controlled environment. 

Exposure to fumes from internal combustion engines and other construction equipment, 
dust from construction operations, fumes from chlorine, bacteria, chemicals used in the 
treatment process, fumes from road maintenance materials and fumes from weed conh·ol 
chemicals. 

Noise/Vibration: Moderate exposure to noise and vibration from construction tools and equipment. 

1420.70 Mental Requirements: 

Reading: 

Writing: 

Math: 

Ability to read manuals, maps, written memos and directives, p lans, specifications and 
details, work orders, material data sheets, safety manuals and other documents 
appmtenant to the consh·uction, repair and replacement of water dish'ibution facilities. 

Annotates work orders with materials used, equipment used, as-built facility jnformation, 
hours worked and description of work done. 

Ability to perform basic math calculations. Ability to count and measure. 

Attention to Detail: Medium level concentration and attention to detail to produce acceptable level of 
workmanship. 

Repetition: 

Judgment: 

Social Skills: 

Periodic repetitive ent:ly of meter readings and routine daily work practices. 

Frequently works unsupervised; good judgment required. 

Ability to relate cooperatively with members of the public, and District personnel. 

Communication Skills: Abi lity to understand communications from others. Ability to conununicate all 
hand signals related to consh·uction operations. 



Item 8 

LAKE SHASTINA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

TO: LSCSD BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

MEETING DATE: June 19, 2019 

FROM: Robert Moser, General Manager 

SUBJECT: Consideration of approval for adjustment to Salary Schedule - Maintenance 
Worker Leadman position Public Works Department. 

BACKGROUND: 
Lake Shastina Community Services District Personnel Policy 1150. Et al. titled Compensation has 
a variety of components including 1150.51 Salary Surveys. Pursuant to this Section, it _is the goal 
of the District to stay competitive within the County. Therefore, every five years (year ending 
with a O or 5), a salary survey may be made in January using salaries for comparable job 
descriptions from comparable agencies within Siskiyou County. If the salaries in effect by the 
District do not fall within the upper 50% range of comparable salaries, additional adjustments to 
bring them in the upper 50% range may be made with Board approval. 

The District was scheduled to conduct the last survey in 2015, however, due to turmoil, the survey 
was not conducted. 

The Leadman position was created and utilized several years ago. The salary schedule for this 
position needed to be modified from its miginal configuration. 

SUMMARY: 
Currently the Public Works Department has a Maintenance Leadman with a 5-step increase. The 
current range of this position is $28.31 to $34.41 an hour. This position pay scale needs to be 
brought into the scale that was just approved for the rest of the Public Works Maintenance 
positions. The new scale would be $26.39 to $32.09 an hour. 

Following approval by the Board of Directors, an LOU will need to be created with the General 
Teamsters 13 7 for an adjustment to the existing salary schedule per the MOU. 

RECOMMENDATION: 
By Motion authorize the GM to enter into an LOU with the General Teamsters 137 regarding a 
salary adjustmeµt for the Maintenance Leadman Position in the salary schedule in an amount 
authorized by the LSCSD Board of Directors. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Salary Step Schedule for Leadman 

16320 Everhart Dr.• Weed, Ca 96094 + 530.938.3281 • Fax 530.938.4739 



Public Works Salary Step Schedule 

Current 6/2019 Step 1 Step 2 Step 3 Step4 Step 5 
I Leadman Hourly 28.31 29.73 31.21 32.77 34.41 

Annual $58,884.80 $61,838.40 $64,916.80 $68,161.60 $71,572.80 

Purposed 6/2019 Step 1 Step 2 Step 3 Step 4 Step 5 

I Leadman Hourly 26.39 27.71 29.10 30.56 32.09 

Annual $54,891.20 $57,636.80 $60,528.00 $63,564.80 $66,747.20 



Item 9 

LAKE SHASTINA COMMUNITY SER VICES DISTRICT 

TO: LSCSD BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

MEETING DATE: June 19, 2019 

FROM: Robert Moser, General Manager 

SUBJECT: Community Development Block Grant - Fire Station 

BACKGROUND: 

The Fire Department is seeking funds from the Community Development Block Grant 
(CDBG) to build a new Fire Station at the south end of the District. This is a fully funded 
project except for a land purchase that is required for us to qualify for the grant. 

To proceed with this project, I am recommending the Board appoint a District negotiator for 
all aspects of applying for a CDBG for a new Fire Station, including negotiations for land 
purchase pending approval of the grant funds. 

OPTIONS: 

The decision before the board today would be to either: 

1) Appoint GM Moser as District negotiator for all aspects of applying for a CDBG for a 
new Fire Station, including negotiations for land purchase pending approval of the 
grant funds. 

2) Amend or modify above option. 

3) Take no action. 

16320 Everhati Dr.• Weed, Ca 96094 + 530.938.3281 + Fax 530.938.4739 



Item 10 

LAKE SHASTINA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

TO: LSCSD BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

MEETING DATE: June 19, 2019 

FROM: Robert Moser, General Manager 

SUBJECT: Consideration of proposal received for the Drinking Water 
Rehabilitation and Upgrade Project Request for Proposals (RFP) for 
Engineering and Planning Services. 

BACKGROUND: 
Former General Manager Karl Drexel developed a Drinking Water Rehabilitation and Upgrade 
Project Planning Grant. The grant was excepted, and the Board approved the contract with the 
State at their regularly scheduled meeting on November 29, 2017. The project was put on hold 
pending an MRI study being conducted during the Wastewater Planning Grant. 

We are expecting to receive the updated contract and get funding for this project at any moment. I 
put out an RFP for services, pending the approved contract from the Water Resources Control 
Board. 

On May 24, 2019, the deadline for proposals, the District received only one single proposal for this 
project. That proposal came from SHN Consulting Engineers and Geologists, Inc. 

FINDINGS: 
The proposal from SHN Consulting Engineers and Geologists, Inc. estimated the following fees: 

• Test Wells $100,000 Grant Budget $100,000 
• Energy Management Study $10,000 Grant Budget $15,000 
• Preliminary Engineering Repmt $130,000 Grant Budget $130,000 
• Environmental Documentation $75,000 Grant Budget $75,000 
• Technical, Managerial and Financial $20,000 Grant Budget $20,000 
• Lands and Right Away Acquisition $15,000 Grant Budget $15,000 
• Rate Study $25,000 Grant Budget $35,000 
• Financial Assistance $10,000 Grant Budget $15,000 

As described above, the proposal comes to us with an estimate that is below projected grant costs. 

RECOMMENDATION: 
By Motion award the contract to SHN Consulting Engineers and Geologists, Inc. for Engineering 
and Planning Services for Drinking Water Rehabilitation and Upgrade Project and authorize the GM 
to proceed with Letter of Intent to SHN. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Lake Shastina Community Services District Request for Proposal. 
2. SHN Consulting Engineers and Geologists, Inc. Proposal Packet. 

16320 Everhart Dr.• Weed, Ca 96094 • 530.938.328 1 • Fax 530.938.4739 



LAI(E SHASTINA COMMUNITY SER VICES DISTRICT 
16320 Everhc1rt Dr.• Weed, Ca 96094 • 530.938.3281 • Fax 530.938.4739 

Request for Qualifications 
Design and Engineering Services for 

Lake Shastina Community Services District 
Drinking Water Rehabilitation and Upgrade Project 

The Lake Shastina Community Services District ( LSCSD) is accepting Statements of Qualifications (SOQ) to 
select a licensed and Insured professional civil engineering services company or individual to provide 
professional and technical planning phase services for items Identified in the Scope of Work for the 
preliminary planning and engineering design for its drinking water system planning improvement projects 
SWRCB Proposition 1 funding application. 

Please provide your SOQ to LSCSD, info@lakeshastina.com, Attention: Robert Moser, Interim General 
Manager, no later than May 24, 2019, 4:00 p.m . 

SOQs sha II be submitted by firms that have a capable and demonstrable background in the type of work 
described in this notice .. In addition, all interested firms shall have sufficient, readily available resources in 
the form of trained personnel, support services, specialized consultants, and financial resources to carry 
out the work without delay or shortcomings. 

Services required by this Request for Qualifications (RFQ) shall be performed under the responsible charge 
of a Project Manager with a minimum of 10 years of experience and who is a California Licensed 
Professional Civil Engineer. 

Each respondent shall submit, by email attachment, one (1) electronic copy of the SOQ in PDF format. 

Bacl<ground: 
The LSCSD is a small, communi.ty water and wastewater system located within a disadvantaged community 
in Siskiyou County, California. 

It is imperative that a cost-effective solution, that meets the requirements of the North Coast Regiona I 
Water Quality Control Board, be found for planning improvements in the drinking water system. 
The LSCSD is preparing a planning grant application for funding under Proposition 1 through the California 
State Water Resources Control Board to improve system reliability and operations of the water system. The 
capital improvements goals proposed in the planning grant application have a preliminary total estimated 
cost of $500,000 and requests $500,000 in planning grant funds (refer to Preliminary Cost Estimate below). 
LSCSD will not award this contract until the planning grant is awarded. However, a letter of intent will be . 
issued to the selected engineer. 

This RFQ Is limited to preliminary planning and engineering services for the following capital Improvements 
projects: 

Plan of Study/ Scope of Work: Refer to Attachment la Plan of Study 

Statements of Qualifications must include: 
1. Names of engineering firm owners, years in business and services offered. 
2. Resumes and professional background for key personnel of the engineering firm who will be 

assigned to work on this project. 
3. Three similar projects designed by the firm during the past seven years. 
4. Current and projected workload of the engineering firm that might affect the project. 
5. A letter confirming that the firm has liability insurance available. 



The cover letter shall contain the following information: 
1. RFQ Title. 
2. Respondent's name, mailing address, contact person, e-mail address, telephone and fax numbers. 
3. Identification of the principal contact person authorized to commit the respondent to a contractual 

agreement, including address, e-mail and phone number. 

4. Identification of the prime consultant's corporate headquarters (city and state). 

5. An expression of the respondent's interest in being selected for this project. 
6. Pertinent characteristics that differentiate the respondent in its ability to perform the proposed 

work. 

Proposers are discouraged from submitting a lengthy SOQ. The Lake Shastina Community. Services Dist rict 
requests that SOQ be concise and clearly written containing only essential information. 

Schedule: 
Prospective respondents may contact Robert Moser, Interim General Manager for the LSCSD, 
generalmanager@lakeshastina.com, for further information regarding contractual questions for this RFQ. 
All requests for interpretation or questions must be sent in writing, via email. 

SOQ due to LSCSD, info@lakeshastina .com, Attention: Robert Moser, Interim General Manager, no later 
than May 24, 2019, 4:00 p.m. 

The LSCSD will review all qualifications received and select the most qualified candidate based on the 
evaluation criteria defined below. The firm selected will be invited to interview, provide a technical 
approach and project manager/team deta.ils. 

The evaluation criteria include: 
1. Qualifications and experience of the project engineer. 
2. Firm's experience with similar small water system projects. 
3. Present and projected workloads. 
4. Technical and professional capacity to address each of the scope of work Items with or without 

subcontracting. 
5. Experience with SWRCB grant programs, specifically Prop 1 and the constructionfunding process. 
6. Travel distance from project site. 
7. Experience with local agencies. 
8. Turnkey design and construction capability. 
9. Capability to meet time and budget requirements. 
10. Disadvantaged business enterprise status. 

Award and Negotiations: 
The LSCSD will provide a written Letter of Intent to the selected firm until the grant is awarded and 
contract then negotiated. The letter shall identify the due date for completing a Level of Effort (LOE), a fee 
schedule, a project time estimate and shall include any proposed changes to the preliminary planning 
scope ofworl< to be used in the planning grant application. 

Negotiations shall begin with the SOW identified in the RFQ and the LOE submitted by the consultant. 
After successful negotiations and successful approval of the planning grant from SWRCB, the LSCSD will 
qward the contract. 

SWRCB estimates that once the planning grant is approved, disbursements are possible within a 30-day 
processing cycle, as a goal, not a promise. LSCSD will not provide payments prior to grant disbursement, as 
this project will be 100% grant funded. 



Lake Shastina Community Services District 
Attachment la - Plan of Study 

INTRODUCTION 

The Lake Shastina Community Services District (LSCSD), located near Weed, Siskiyou County, 
California, is pursuing funding from the State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) for planning 
of drinking water system improvements. The purpose for the system improvements includes 
improving system reliability and operations. 

The LSCSD was formed under Government Code §61000 in 1978 by Resolution 286 of the Siskiyou 
County Board of Supervisors for the purpose collection, storage and distribution of Drinking water for 
the rural community of Lake Shastina. The Lake Shastina drinking water system includes a series of 
three working wells (Well #3, #4, and #9), four storage tanks, seven booster stations, and one· 
abandoned well. It serves a residential population of about 3,000 that has been classified as a 
Disadvantaged Community as defined by the SWRCB. The Maximum Day Demand is l,385,000 
gallons. 

Due to the age of the water system, one well and one booster station have had to be renovated.on an 
emergency basis, but cm1·ent and future Capital Improvement Plans call for several additional 
improvement projects. The Lake Shastina Drinking Water System Rehabilitation and Upgrade Project 

~ 

addresses improvements in safety and environmental security in the disttibution system, long term 
capacity issues, reduction in energy usage, and needed capacity improvements for protection against 
future drought conditions. 

While there have been no recent water quality concerns or violations, the system has a number of 
deficiencies which are in prut due to the age of the system. These deficiencies cause1 or could cause, 
the foilowing: 

• Water sh01tages during peak usage periods if two of the three we~ls are out of service; 
• Inability to service some customers during tank maintenance and repair; 
• Reactive (emergency) maintenance versus preventative maintenance; and, 
• Inability to react to tank overflows in a timely fashion. · 

Other concerns by the LSCSD include: 

• High electi'ical usage due to the number of booster stations required based on the topography 
and size of the service area; and, 

• System reliability during drought and climate change conditions. 

The purpose of the planning study is to investigate a number of proposed solutions to address these 
deficiencies and concerns with the existing system. These solutions, along with more detailed 
descriptions of the specific deficiencies, are described in the following section. 

Page 1 of7 



PROPOSED SOLUTIONS FOR STUDY 
Proposed solutions are summarized below in Table 1 and described further in the following 
paragraphs. The planning study will investigate the best alternative for each solution as well as 
provide additional required documentation (rate studies, CEQA, etc.). The proposed scope and budget 
for the planning study is provided in the next section. 

Table l 

Summary of Proposed Solutions to Be Evaluated in the Planning Study 

Proposed Solution 

Rehabilitate Water Storage Tanks 

r Backup Generators 

Backup Production Wells 

Solar Panels 

Upgrade Booster Pump Stations 

I Renovate Well #9 

Energy Management Studyt 

SCADA System 

Meter and Fire Hydrant Replacement 

Rehabilitate Water Storage Tanks 

Deficiency Addressed 
System Reliability 

System Reliability 

System Redundancy and Reliability 

Operational Costs 

System Reliability and Operational Costs 

System Reliability and Operational Costs 

Operational Costs 

Operational Costs and Emergency Response Time 

System Reliability 

The drinking water system consists of three water wells delivering water to four storage tanks which is 
then delivered by gravity to most of the community. These tanks are welded metal enclosed tanks that 
have been lined to protect the water from contamination and to protect the longevity of the tanks. 
Previous inspections have indicated a ce1tain amount of degradation of the liner allowing the metal 
tank to be exposed and subject to corrosion. This project will include an extensive inspection of the 
inside of each tank by certified divers and filming the entire tanks. The inspection will determine the 
actual extent of damage to the tank liner and recommendations for relining and necessary repairs. 

As with all carbon-steel water storage tanks, our tanks are subject to possible corrosion, potentially 
causing premature failures and disruptions in service during repairs. Cathodic protection (CP), 
however, stops the corrosion reaction when properly applied. The cathodic protection systems in our 
tanks need new anodes and cathodes and calibration of the monitoring devises. This Planning Grant 
will provide extensive inspection of the tanks and cathodic equipment, develop the procedure to repair 
and reline the tanks as needed, and design and specify a new cathodic system to prevent additional 
corrosion, damage, and possible contamination in the future. These measures will help preve11t water 
quality issues and allow the supply tanks to remain in operation to provide sufficient water delivery to 
meet existing demands. 

In addition, each existing tank cannot be fully isolated from the adjacent distribution system, which 
means that the tanks cannot be taken out of service without disrupting water service to nearby 
customers. This study will evaluate isolation options so each tank can be taken out or service for 
repair and rehabilitation. 

Backup Generators 
The community of Lake Shastina is subject to serious weather variations year around, causing power 
outages and water delivery disruptions. The high winds in the summer and the snow storms in the 
winter cause regular power outages. The Planning Study will investigate and compare different sizes 

Page 2 of 7 



and models oftranspoJtable backup generators and determine the number of generators necessary to 
maintain distribution of drinking water to the whole community. The study will also include an 
evaluation of quick connect wiring systems at each well and pump location to connect the necessary 
generator at each site preventing a shortage or interruption of drinking water delivery. 

Backup Production Wells 
The community of 3,000 residents has reduced their consumption during the recent drought by 31 % on 
average throughout the year. The LSCSD currently has three operating wells (Well #3, #4 and #9). 
Well #3 is a year round well typically producing 275,000 gallons per day (gpd) during the summer and 
about 50,000 gpd during the winter. Well #4 is also a year round well and produces an average of 
400,000 gallons a day during the winter, but is pushed to 850,000 gpd during the summer. Well #9 can 
produce up to 100,000 gpd, supplementing the pressure system in one section of the community. 

In October of 2016, the Well #4 pump went down completely. The LSCSD relied entirely on Well #3 
to provide water to the entire comm\lnity, over taxing the pump and motor causing it to fail in 
December 2016. The LSCSD was able to get a new submersible pump and variable frequency drive 
(VFD) and got Well #3 back up and running in a few weeks, but we were reliant on Well #9,the oldest, 
smallest and least productive well in the community for several weeks. Had it occurred in the summer, 
the LSCSD would not have been able to provide the water quantity to meet existing demand. 

The LSCSD needs one or two more wells for redundancy to prevent the domestic water supply from 
outages that would pose a threat to public health and safety. These wells would also provide backup 
supply during severe drought that has occurred recently and may be the new normal. In order to 
determine the best possible production with the least cost of delivery, the LSCSD needs to drill 3 or 4 
test wells throughout the community to analyze the best two sites for permanent drinking water wells. 
The new wells will also address the supply of quality water eliminating or reducing any future letters 
of violation of health based testing standards. 

Solar Panels 
Two of our three wells are located at least a mile for the central population of the community and one 
is about Ya mile away. The LSCSD is paying over $4,000 per month for electricity to pump and deliver 
drinking water to the storage tanks at the other end of the line from well #4 and over $2,000 per month 
for well #3. Pacific Power, the electricity provider in this area, is one of the most expensive utilities in 
the State. In order to reduce long-term operational costs (which would allow this money to be used for 
system repairs), this Planning Study will evaluate different solar panel options (types and locations) to 
dete1·mine the best and most capable solar system to offset the electrical costs. 

Upgrade Booster Pump Stations 
Along with an energy audit and specifications for a new solar system to offset our power usage, the 
booster pumps at the six booster pump stations need to be refurbished or replaced and upgraded with 
variable frequency drives (VFDs) to be more energy efficient and longer lasting. This Planning Study 
will help analyze and determine the best alternatives to accomplish this. 

Renovate Well #9 
As with the Booster Pump Stations, the pump in Well #9 needs to be replaced due to its age, given the 
recent problems with Wells #3 and #4 (see previous discussion under Backup Well Production). The 
Planning Study will investigate alternatives to upgrade the pump and motor to be more energy 
efficient. This will include the addition of a VFD. 

Page 3 of7 



Energy Management Study! 
In order to determine the energy savings of the other proposed upgrades, including solar panels, an 
energy management study is needed to determine baseline usage. 

SCADA System 
The LSCSD drinking water system is currently monitored manually by District staff. This includes the 
three wells, sampling and testing sites, four storage tanks with cathodic protection, high and low level 
gauges, seven booster pumps with flow meters and over 20 miles of distribution pipe. A Supervisory 
Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) system will reduce labor costs, provide consistent and 
accurate monitoring, prevent excessive corrosion, notify District staff about any changes that require 
immediate response and repair, and prevent any disrnption in water delivery. The scope includes 
evaluating the specific needs of the system and determining the best alternative for a SCAD A system. 

Meter and Fire Hydrant Replacement 
The LSCSD has been addressing the replacement of meters and fire hydrants on a regular basis. This 
Planning Study will update the scheduled replacement program and analyze and compare the 
differences in the products, test the current meters and hydrants, and determine and specify the best 
replacement parts available. 

STUDY PLAN SCOPE 
This section describes the work proposed to be completed for the planning components of the LSCSD 
Water System Improvements as described in the previous section. Elements of the planning phase 
include the following: 

1. Test Wells 
2. Energy Management Study 
3. Preliminary Engineering Report 
4. Environmental Documentation 
5. Technical, Managerial, and Financial (TMF) Assessment 
6. Lands and Right of Way Acquisition 
7. Rate Study 
8. Additional Permit Applications 
9. Legal Consultation 
I 0. Financing Assistance 
11. Project Administration 

Taslc 1 Test Wells 
Up to four (4) test wells will be drilled throughout the community to analyze the best two sites fot· 
permanent drinking water wells. 

Deliverables: 
• County WelJ Permits 
• Drill logs 
• Air Lift Test results 
• Draft and Final Technical Memorandum 

Page 4 of 7 



Task 2 Energy Management Study 
An Energy Management Study will be conducted to determine baseline energy usage as well as 
identify opportunities where energy savings can be made. The information will be used in Task 3 to 
determine recommended alternatives from an energy use perspective. 

Deliverables: 
• Energy Management St11dy 

Task 3 Preliminary Engineering Report . 
This task is the teclrnical analysis portion of the Planning Study. A Preliminary Engineering Report 
(PER) will be developed that evaluates alternatives for the proposed solutions identified, and will 
evaluate any other solutions identified during the analysis. The PER will provide a recommended 
alternative for each solution. This task will include the following elements: 

• Site investigations 
• Data collection 
• Alternatives development and refinement 
• Engineering and cost analysis 
• Recommended alternatives development 
• Preparation of Draft and Final PER 

Deliverables: 
• Draft and Final Preliminary Engineering Report 

Task 4 Environmental Documentation 
The SWRCB Environmental Review Unit (ERU) has determined that this project is exempt from the 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) as well as categorically excluded from the National 
EnvironnientaJ Policy Act (NEPA). The Environmental Planning Clearance has been submitted with 
the Proposition 1 Planning Grant Application. During the planning work under this grant, LSCSD will 
again verify that this project is exempt from CEQA and categorically excluded from NEPA (Task 4a). 
Should any conditions be found that warrant additional environmental documentation, funds placed in 
contingency (see Table 2) would be available for any additional studies. These funds are subject to 
pre-approval by ERU prior to use. The contingency funds are listed in Table 2. 

Should it be determined that additional environmental documentation is required, the LSCSD will 
contact ERU for approval to use contingency funds for special/technical studies that may include (1) 
cultural resources studies, (2) biological resources studies, (3) hydrology and water quality analyses, 
(4) geology and soils assessments, (5) evaluation of public services and utilities, and (6) an evaluation 
of air quality and greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions. This will be Task 4b. 

Deliverables: 
• (Task 4a) Verification of exempt status for CEQA and categorical exclusion for NEPA. 
• (Task 4b) Technical Studies (ifrequired as determined by SWRCB ERU) 
• (Task 4b) CEQA/NEPA documentation (if required as determined by SWRCB ERU) 

Page5of7 



Task 5 Technical, Managerial, and Financial (TMF) Assessment 
A TMF Assessment is required for funding applicants. The purpose of the TMF Assessment is to 
ensure that the LSCSD water system has long term sustainability and is able to maii1tain compliance 
with all applicable drinking water laws and regulations. 

Deliverables: 
• TMF Assessment 

Task 6 Lands and Right of Way Acquisition 
This task is to prnvide suppo1t to the LSCSD related to easements and/or land purchase, if needed, for 
the new production wells and associated water distribution infrastructure. 

Task 7 Rate Study 
A Rate Study will be developed to determine the appropriate water rates that should be charged to 
prnvide adequate funding for (1) operations and maintenance costs for ongoing water system 
operations; (2) proposed capital improvements, and (3) loan repayments. 

Deliverables: 
• Draft and Final Water Rate Study 

Task 8 Additional Permit Applications 
This task will provide funding for local and State permit applications, as needed. 

Task 9 Legal Consultation 
This task will cover legal consulting and review of all documentation for contracting, environmental 
documentation, agreements, and permitting. 

Task 10 Financing Assistance 
It is anticipated that grant and loan financing will be required for the final design and construction of 
the selected alternatives. This task will be used to determine financing options including completion 
and submission offunding applications. It is anticipated that application will be made to the Clean 
Water State Revolving Loan Fund (CWSRF). 

Task 11 Project Administration 
This task is to cover the LSCSD's costs to administer this project. This includes preparation of regula1· 
reimbursement requests to the SWRCB, progress reporting, and project closeout. This task also covers 
LSCSD staff time to provide information to the consultant team completing the project. 

Page 6 of 7 



STUDY PLAN BUDGET 

Table 2 displays the estimate of the planning budget needed to complete the scope of services 
described in the previous section (Tasks I through I I). 

Table 2 

Opinion of Probable Costs by Task 

Task Description 
Task l - Test Wells 

Task 2 - Energy Management Study 

Task 3 - Preliminary Engineering Report 

I Task 4a - Environmental Documentation 

Task 4b - Environmental Contingency (subject to SWRCB ERU approval) 

Task 5 - Technical, Managerial and Financial Assessment 

Task 6-Lands and Right of Way Acquisition 

I Tas 7 - Rate Study 

Task 8 - Additional Permit Applications 

Task 10 - Financing Assistance 

j lfask 11 - Project Achninish·ation 
TOTAL "=.....__.... 

Page 7 of7 

$100,000 

$15,000 

$130,000 

$500 

$74,500 

$20,000 

$15,000 

$35J000 

$10,000 

$35,000 

$15,000 

$50,000 

$500,000 
J 



Statement of Qualifications 

Proposition 1 
Drinking Water Planning Project 



Th is page is intentiona lly blank. 



Phone: (530) 221-5424 Email: info@shn-engr.com Web: shn-engr .com 
350 Hartnell Avenue, Redding, CA 96002-1875 

Reference: 519000.031 

May 24, 2019 

Lake Shastina Community Services District 
Attention: Robert Moser, Interim General Manager 
16320 Everhart Drive 
Weed, CA 96094 

via email: info@lakeshastlna.com 

Subject: Qualifications for to Provide Professional Services, Proposition 1 Drinking 
Water Planning Project 

Dear Mr. Moser: 

Thank you for the opportunity to work with the Lake Shastina Community Service District (LSCSD) 
on its upcoming Proposition 1 Drinking Water Planning Project. 

Through previous and ongoing efforts (such as wastewater and rate studies for the LSCSD), SHN 
and the LSCSD have worked hard to reach thi s point of the Drinking Water Planning Project, and we 
believe that we are the ideal candidate to assist your community to navigate the proposed scope of 
work and achieve a successful outcome. 

In addition to our in-house staff, we are teaming with Richard Sample Engineering (RSE), who will 
provide electrical engineering services. SHN and RSE have successfully t eamed on numerous 
projects throughout Northern Ca liforni a, including those for the LSCSD. 

We believe that the SHN team will provide the best va lue to LSCSD for severa l reasons: 

1. Experience Working with Lake Shastina and Rural California Communities - Like the LSCSD, 
most of SH N's clients are smaller rural communities, so we intimately understand the types 
of decisions and trade-offs that you have in your daily deliberations. Like you, these 
communities need to stretch their funds as much as possible and we help them do that by 
advocating fo r practical, non-complex, and cost-effective solutions where possible. Our goal 
is to find the right fit with each of our clients and not pursue '1heroic" solutions that may be 
end up being unsusta inable. In addition, our team's instit utional knowledge of ongoing 
LSCSD projects gives our team a built-in advantage for completing the work that we have 
already started. 

CIVIL ENGINEERING• ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES • GEOSCIENCES • PLANNING• SURVEYING 

ANN IVERSARY 



Mr. Robert Moser 
Qualifications to Provide Professional Services, Prop. 1 Drinking Water Planning Project 
May 24, 2019 
Page 2 

2. Water Systems Expertise - SHN has experience providing a wide variety of water treatment, 
storage, and distribution services---including planning, permitting, and design. We have 
accumulated a vast amount of water system experience in a variety of fields including 
distribution system design, groundwater investigations, source and supply expansion, water 
system modeling and analysis, design of water storage facilities, water treatment plant 
analysis and design, surface water intake design and planning and permitting of water
related projects. This experience helps SHN in identifying practical solutions when 
evaluating and upgrading facilities for compliance with current regulations. 

3. Knowledge of Applications and Acquisition for Grant/Loan Funding - Much of our work with 
small communities comes from grant or loan funding (including Proposition 1 funding), 
which is frequently limited. We understand the complexities associated with State and 
Federal funding agencies and respect that there is on ly so much capital available for 
projects. SHN has successfu lly provided assistance to many communities with grant funding 
applications, and we take pride in being responsible stewards of our clients' funding 
constra ints. 

SH N's point-of-contact information for this project is as follows. 

Anders Rasmussen, PE 

Senior Civi l Engineer 

SHN 

803 Main Street, Suite 401 

Klamath Falls, OR 97601 

Tel: 541-827-7855 

Direct: 541 -827-7855 

Cell: 541-301-0141 

Fax: call first, then fax 

Emai l: arasmussen@shn-engr.com 

If you have questions about this proposal, please feel free to contact us so that we can discuss how 
our team can continue to assist the LSCSD. 

Respectfully, 

SHN 

Anders Rasmussen, PE 
Project Manager 

AHR/MSC:dla 

Mark Chaney 
Principal-Regional Manager 

Enclosure: Statement of Qualifications 

At.lNIY£1tS AIIV 
\\redding\projects\2019\Promos\519000.03 1 ·l5CS0·REQ-DWP\PU BS\ptomos\Cover·l~tter\10190524·LSC5D·SOQ-OWP·Co1Jer•Letter.docx 



Refe re nee: 519000.03 I 

Statement of Qualifications 

Proposition 1 
Drinking Water Planning Project 

QA/QC ~~ 

Prepared for 

California 

Lake Shastina Community Services District 
16320 Everhart Drive 

Weed, CA 96094 

May 2019 

Pre pa red by: 

RS 



This page is intentionally blank. 

ii 



Table of Contents 

~ ...._r - -.- ~· .- ~ • .--:-- ~. - .. .-. -- ....,. -. - - - - -- - - - -~ ~------- _-_ - - - - -

1. Firm Overview ................................................................................................................................ 1-1 

2. Firm Expertise ................................................................................................................................ 2-1 

3. Project Team .................................................................................................................................. 3-1 

4. Representative Projects and References ...................................................................................... 4-1 

5. Project Understanding and Approach .......................................................................................... 5-1 

iii 



Table of Contents 

This page is intentional ly blank, 

iv 



Fjrm Overview 

~y- ·: F'i~6veri~w--- - - . --- - --·~ - ·- -·-~- - ·- --~-~- .. ... :--- - -"; 
~ •-~ - - - -- - ----=--....;;:; ~ ----..- - ~ -=~ ------- - --- ~~ 

Firm Overview 
SHN is a multi-disciplinary firm meeting the 

service needs of communities in Northern 

California and Southern Oregon. Our firm is 

comprised of more than 100 employees who 

represent various disciplines, including civil 

engineering, environmenta l services, planning, 

geosciences, surveying, biological sciences, and 

materials testing/specia l inspection. 

For this project, SHN is teaming with Richard 

Sample Engineering (RSE) to provide electrical 

engineering services. RSE is an independent, 

professional licensed and insured electrical 

engineering company providing electrical and 

controls solutions for many municipal clients for 

over 30 years. 

RSE:9-
1-1 

SHN General Information 

• SHN was founded in 1979. 

• SHN is a Certified Small Business 

Enterprise (SBE); the company is 100% 

employee-owned and approximately 

30% of its employees are shareholders. 

• SHN supports six regional offices 

(Redding, Eureka, Arcata, and Willits, 

California; and Klamath Falls and Coos 

Bay, Oregon). 

• SHN provides numerous services within 

these general service areas: 

0 Civil Engineering 

0 Geosciences 

0 Materials Testing and Special 

Inspection 

0 Environmental Services 

0 Planning and Permitting 

0 Surveying and Unmanned Aerial 

Vehicles 

0 Biological Sciences 



Firm Overview 

This page is in tentiona lly blank. 

1-2 



Firm Expertise 

~ Firm Expertise 
• .._. ~ ~ A • : '-

The following graphic presents a brief summary illustrating the SHN team's strength and experience related 

to the proposed project. 

Water Treatment, Storage, 

and Distribution Systems 
SHN has been providing municipal water supply 

services throughout Northern California and 

Southern Oregon for over 30 years. We have 

accumulated a vast amount of water system 

experience in a variety of fields including the 

following: distribut ion system design, groundwater 

investigations, source and supply expansion, water 

system modeling and analysis, design of water 

storage facilities, water treatment plant analysis and 

design, surface water intake design and planning 

and permitting of water-related projects. We know 

water, and our array of technica l expertise can 

identify solutions that lead to project success. 

2-1 

The City of Arcata's new Upper Panorama tank 
(welded s teel). 



Firm Expertise 

Representative Water Supply anal Distribution Experler:'lce 

Project Client Description 

Water Supply System City of Crescent $8 m illion project included nearly 50,000 linea l feet of 
Improvements City piping along a major transportation corridor. 

Water Distribution Hydrau lic modeling of water supply and d istribution 
Network Ana lysis network and site eva luations for storage tanks. 

City of Arcata 
Upper Panorama and Rep laced aging redwood water storage tanks with welded 
Californ ia Water Tanks steel tanks. 

Elk River Water System 
Humboldt Established a general engineering protoco l for 

Survey 
Redwood investigation and development of 1 O specific, individua l, 
Company on-site potable water supply systems. 

Hoopa Va lley Indian Improvements for approximately 6 m iles of water 
Reservation Phased Hoopa Val ley Tribal transmission ma in, water storage tanks, and booster 
Water System Council stations to supply upper zones from system network 
Improvements tanks. 

Water System 
Phillipsville CSD 

$1. 7 m illion upgrades to the existing water transmission, 
Improvements treatment, and storage facili t ies. 

Rep lacement/rehabi li tat ion of 37,000 linea l feet of water 
distribution line in and consolidated the existing f ire 

Water Improvements Scotia CSD supply and domestic water supply into distribution 
system. Assessed and provided recommendations to 
existing water treatment plant. 

CALFIRE Wa ter System 
Various CAL FIRE Design services for various CAL FIRE sites in Northern 
sites in Northern Ca lifor nia. Services have included we ll installation, water 

Improvements 
CA treatment, and water storage. 

City of Eu reka Capital 
Provided design services for a booster pump station and 

Improvement Projects 
City of Eureka construction management on a waterline/valve 

replacement. 

Infi ltration Gallery Project 
Langlois Water Emergency construction of a new raw water intake 
District, OR system under Floras Creek. 

FEMA Project City of Bay City, OR 
FEMA Disaster Prevention funded project to insta ll th ree 
under r iver crossings for potable water lines using HDD. 

Water Line Relocation Tri City Joint Water 

Project 
& WW Authority, Relocation of 500 feet of 12-inch wate rli ne. 
OR 

Waterl ine Re location 
Jordan Cove Installation of water main ext ens ion to industrial 
Energy Project property. 

Umpqua River Water Umpqua Bas in 
900 foot directiona lly drilled 22-inch water main under 
the North Umpqua River to re locate the existing bridge 

Crossing Water Association 
crossing pipel ine. 

2-2 



Firm Expertise 

Proposition 1 Project Implementation/Funding Acquisition Experience 
Because California has recently been in the midst of a severe, mult i-year drought and the state's smaller 

communities have an aging water infrastructure system, the people of California voted for Proposition 1, 

which provides a dedicated source of funding to the state's water supply infrastructure. SHN is proud to 

have assisted client to acquire funding from the Prop 1 fund, and also provide the consequential services to 

improve water-related infrastructure for several modestly-sized Californ ia communities. 

The following table presents SHN's funding-assistance experience with State of California (and other 

relevant) funding agencies. 

SH N's Fundihg Assistance Experience 

Assisted in 
Provided 

Amount of 
Funding Program or Agency Project Title Funding 

Services 
Grant 

Specified In 
Acquisition? 

Grant? 
Funding 

Etna WWTF Planning Grant 
Yes Pending $410,000 

App lication 

Alturas WWTP Plann ing Yes Yes $500,000 

SWRCB Prop 1 
Lake Shastina CSD, Wastewater 
Planning Study 

Yes Yes $500,000 

Town of Fort Jones Wastewater 
Yes Yes $348,000 

Services 

$6.3 
SWRCB Clean Water SRF Loleta WWTP Improvements In Progress In Progress Million 

(pending) 

Trinidad-Westhaven Integrated 
Coastal Watershed Yes Yes $500,000 

SWRCB Prop 50 
Management Plan 

Trinidad-Westhaven Coastal 
Yes Yes $470,000 

Water Quality Restoration 

City of Tu lelake Elevated Water 
Yes Yes $25,000 

Tank Emergency Repair 
SWRCB Prop 84 

Trin idad Stormwater 
Yes Yes 

$2.5 
Management Improvement Million 

Various (USDA-RD, Small 
Willits WWTF Upgrades Yes Yes 

$23.8 
Comm. Grant, and EPA) Million 

USDA Rural Development 
Mendocino City WWTP 

Yes Yes $3 Million 
Improvements 

2-3 



Firm Expertise 

Well Services, Hydrogeology, and Geology Services 
Water supply solutions for municipal clients req ui re the integration of hydrogeology and engineering with 

proven knowledge and application of dri lling techn iques. SHN excels at providing subsurface invest igations 

using a wide variety of drilling techniques chosen specifically for the particular geology of each site. 

The drilling methods, size and type of equipment required depend upon t he depth and req uired yield of the 

wells and the geological formations encountered at the project site. 

SHN's personnel can determine geological condit ions and aquifer characteristics using desktop 

investigations, direct observat ion during dri ll ing, and pumping tests. Our team provides feasibil ity studies 

using geophysical survey methods and has the expertise to analyze the survey results, and estimate the 

depth and thickness of water bearing zones. Using data gathered during test well instal lations, SHN can 

design the production well specifications that include fi lter pack and screen slot interva ls and sizing, casing 

diameter, and pump recommendations. Using known or estimated water use and production well yields, 

SHN ca n develop water management plans to optimize water delivery to meet the current and future needs 

of the communities we serve. We can estimate recharge ra tes, recom mend well design featu res, plan well 

fie ld design, and develop water management plans. 

To conduct these services, we maintain a staff of experienced professionals including geologists, engineers, 

engineeri ng geologists, and hydrogeologists. 

SHN supervised the well lnstallatlon activities at CAL FIRE's /sh! Conservation Camp in Tehama County. The project 
included lnstal/atlon of two wells and a pair of 10-day pumping tests, complex permitting, and an aggressive schedule. 

2-4 



Firm Expertise 

Rate Study Experience 
SHN's representative rate study projects are from Northern California and Oregon rural 

communities, and include both water and wastewater studies: 

• Lake Shastina CSD, Weed, CA. Sewer rate study (currently 

in progress). 

• City of Arcata, CA. Water user fees analyses and 

recommendations of new rates as well as wastewater 

user fees analyses rate recommendations. 

• City of Blue Lake, CA. Water user fee analyses and rate 

study. 

• Loleta CSD, CA. Evaluated District budget, projected 

project O&M costs, and projected project debt service to 

estimate new wastewater rates. 

• Samoa CSD, CA Developed new District budget based on 

similarly sized districts that we have worked with, 

including project O&M costs for new sewer and 

treatment systems, and projected sewer rates for District 

given multiple potential growth scenarios. 

• Scotia CSD, Scotia, CA. Complete "start-up" of community 

system with operating budget and rate structure for a 

community that had never had district services. 

• City of Bay City, OR. Water user fee analyses and 

recommendations for a "start-up" regional water system 

including beginning budget, operations and maintenance 

costs and budget analysis. 

• Green Sanitary District, OR. SHN evaluated the District's 

rate structures and updated their mitigation fee rates for 

future developments. 

• Harbor Sanitary District, OR. User fee analyses, rate study 

and mitigation fees for future development. 

• City of Port Orford, OR. Wastewater user fee and 

mitigation fee analyses in addition to new rate structure 

recommendations. 

2-5 

SHN's rate study experience clients in the 
state of Oregon includes the City of Bay 
City, Green Sanitary District (Roseburg), 
Harbor Sanitary District (Brookings), the 
City of North Bend, and the City of Port 

Orford 



Firm Expertise 

CEQA and NEPA Compliance Documents 
SHN has provided CEQA and NEPA documents for many cities, counties, and special districts. In addition, we 

have conducted numerous special studies and written numerous CEQNNEPA documents for private 

development clients, t hereby being fami liar with "both sides of the counter." Specia l studies prepared by us 

have included, where needed, all 20 CEQA resource topics. 

Is project 
adequately defined? Can any permitting 

CEQA/NEPA happen 
concurrently? 

What are the options for 
mitigation? 

CEQA ) 
Responsible 

Agencies 

NEPA ) 
Cooperating 1 

Agencies 
StateLLocal Permitting Coastal Com mission 

Loca l City/County 

Harbor Distric t 

RWQCB 
USFWS 

NMFS 

RWQCB 

SHPO 

Whois 
NEPA 
lead? 

Federal Permitting 
Agencies 

Army 
Corps 

NEPA ' 

Bureau of 
Indian 
Affairs 

The public 

Tr ibes 

Caltrans 

Lead Agency? I 

Publ ic uti lities 
commission 

U.S. Coast 
Guard 

Applicant ) 

Age ncies 

Coastal WhoisCEQA 

Commission lead? 

Local 
City/County I 

RWQCB 
CEQA ) 

Lead Agency? 

CDFW 

State Lands 
Commission 

Other NEPA ' 
Stakeholders f 

Which agency 
do I see first? Public controversy? 

What if the applicant is 
an agency 

Considerations? 

CDFW 

State Lands Com mission 

CEQA )i: Trustee 
Agencies 

The public 

Tribes 

Caltrans 

CDFW 

State 
La nds 

Publ ic util ities commission 

AQMD 

Environmenta l groups or 
other advocacy groups 

OtherCEQA ' 
Stakeholders /J 

As presented In this graphic, our team understands the circuitous nature of the permitting and CEQA documentation 
process. More importantly, we know how to "untangle the knot" and provide straightforward solutions to our clients' 

planning, permitting, and environmental documentation needs. 

2-6 



Construction Management/Turn key Experience 
SHN's Construction Management Team is comprised of Professional 

Engineers, Certified Engineering Geologists, Registered Geotechnical 

Engineers, Professional Geologists, Certified Construction Inspectors and 

Materials Testing Technicians, and labor compliance and project funding 

and development specialists. SHN staff has worked directly with funding 

agencies such as Caltrans Local Assistance, local redevelopment agencies, 

US Department of Agriculture (USDA) Rural Development, Federal 

Aviation Administration (FAA), Federal Emergency Management Authority, 

(FEMA), and Housing and Urban Development (HUD). 

Firm Expertise 

USDA ~ - ~ ~ Rural ~ 
........ Development 

Our construction managers have established procedures to process submittals, administer contract cost 

controls and schedule compliance, manage inspections and testing to assure quality, to review and 

recommend change orders and pay requests, to compile a variety of informative reports for distribution to 

clients, agencies and others, to coordinate with agencies and client, and to facilitate contract closeout. Staff 

is well versed in SH N's internal hard copy and electronic work flow systems and with specia lized paperwork 

utilized by various agencies such as Caltrans Local Assistance. 

SHN's construction managers and special inspectors are highly trained in all aspects of materials and 

compliance testing. Our inspectors are certified by Caltrans, American Concrete Institute, American 

Association of State Highway and Transportat ion Officials (MSHTO) and the International Code Council. 

These organizations certify that our construction managers and inspectors provide expert construction 

observation and quality control. When requested, our inspectors can provide Independent Assurance 

Testing as identified in the Caltrans Quality Assurance Program. Our inspectors are keenly aware of the 

importance of their role on a construction site, and they work cooperatively with the contractors, agency 

inspectors and our clients. 

A MERICAN ASSOCIATION 
OF S TATE HIGHWAY AN O 

T RANSPORTAT ION OFFICIALS 
OSHPD •nsA 

AASHiD 
Office of Statewide Health 
Planning and Develop ment 

AIV 
AASHTO R18 

(ciciJ __, 
American Concrete Institute 

2-7 

NISI 
National Institute of 
Standards and Technology 

di INTERNATIONAL 
CODE aaw COUNCIL® ••• 



Firm Expertise 

Lake Shastina CSD District Engineering Experience 
SHN has been providing District engineering services to the LSCSD since 2010 when we provided wast,ewater 

design and investigation services as part of the LSCSD's development of thei r wastewater treatment faci li ty 

expans ion through new ponds. Since that time, SHN has worked for the LSCSD to provide groundwater 

monitoring wells for the wastewater faci lity; col laborated with LSCSD staff on water system evaluat ions; 

provided recommendations for water tank maintenance and upgrades, sewer lift stat ion design, drinking 

water well rehabilitation, and a variety of other services including planning and development of 

environmental documents for compliance with CEQA 

Highl ights of our more significant work for the LSCSD is shown below. 

Wastewater Mixing Zone Study 
SHN developed a mixing zone study for LSCSD as part of their wastewater t reatment faci lity expansion 

project. At the time, the Regional Water Qual ity Control Board (RWQCB) was requi ri ng all new ponds to have 

double liners, wh ich more than doubled the cost of development of that aspect of the project SHN had 

been successful in developing 'mixing zone studies' of the groundwater at other wastewater fac il ities to 

show that there was no need for a double liner based on site cond itions and current construction practices. 

SHN engineeri ng and geology staff eva luated soils and the loca l geology at the site and provided a deta iled 

mixing zone study to the RWQCB showing that there were no adverse impacts to groundwater from the 

proposed new pond system with a single li ner. As a resu lt, the LSCSD was able to implement the project with 

the singl e liner, saving signifi cant money for the LSCSD and rate-payers. 

Groundwater Monitoring and Assessment Plan 
SHN was reta ined to develop a Groundwater 

Monitoring and Assessment plan to meet the 

RWQCB's requi rements as part of new Waste 

Discharge Requi rements for the LSCSD's 

wastewater t reatment faci lity. As part of this 

work, SHN's environmental geology staff located 

and installed required monitoring we lls at 

LSCSD's wastewater treatment facility to eva luate 

up-grad ient and down-gradient water qual ity for 

on-going monitor ing around the site. SHN 

coordinated all aspects of the project for LSCSD, 

including developing the type and location of the 

SHN supervised the monitoring well installation at the 
LSCSD wastewater treatment facility. 

monitoring wel ls, contracting with the drilling company and overseeing the we lls construction and then 

providing initia l well development and groundwater sampling and laboratory analysis. After the in itia l 

rounds of groundwater sampl ing and compliance monitoring for the RWQCB, SHN staff t rai ned LSCSD 

wastewater staff on the proper procedures for sampling and protocols for laboratory analys is and reporting. 

2-8 



Firm Expertise 

Wastewater On-call Services 
SHN provided general consulting services to LSCSD for continued development of their wastewater 

treatment facility and compliance with waste discharge requirements from the RWQCB. As part of our work, 

SHN provided guidance for implementation of the WDR's and evaluated existing groundwater wells as the 

facility to determine feasibility for use in monitoring. After it was determined that the existing well was not 

available for use as a monitoring well, SHN recommended an alternative location for a new well and 

provided full-service installation and setup with LSCSD taking over moni to ring as part of t heir regular work. 

Well 10 Assistance 

SHN's geologists provided assistance to the 

LSCSD to evaluate previous test well report and 

data for the Well 10 site. SHN also provided 

drilling and well development specifications for 

Well 10, which were used for bidding. During 

drilling of Well 10, SHN provided inspection 

services. 

Prop. 1 Wastewater Planning Grant 

SHN and RSE recently prepared a Preliminary 

Engineering Report for the wastewater 

system. Other services provided under this 

project include preparation of CEQA documents, 

90% desigri plans, solar power feasibility study, 

SCADA evaluation, and a wastewater rate 

study. SHN is currently assisting the LSCSD with 

application for final design and construction 

funding. 

Prop. 1 Drinking Water Plan of Study Preparation 

During the Proposition 1 Drinking Water Planning 

Grant application process, SHN was contacted by 

LSCSD to provide assistance with preparation of 

a revised plan of study that addressed comments 

from the Divi sion of Drinking Water (DDW). The 

Plan of Study has been submitted with no further 

comments from the State of California. 

• J.., \ ¢;(1.1 • 

£f . . ~tit:l .' 
. ' t; ~·· ' 
~.'I -$';. ~. -.,.( . 

-
f- ' ' 

~ .~ •'; 
' < - . ~ ·, 

~: • V" • 

' ._,., i1' • • • 
~ .. y, ll," I JJ/' 
. "'\j l' ,.;.t.,,. 

' ~-\!~~~ I,, _,.,, ' .. , 

/30' 
/1.{0' 

ISO' 
/60 1 

/70' 
/80 ' 
I ~O' 

SHN character/zed the subsurface material during the core 
drilling activities for We/11 o. 

2-9 



Firm Expertise 

Th is page is intentionally blank. 

2-10 



Project Team 

The following graphic presents our team's proposed organization structure to complete the project tasks as 

described in the LSCSD's RFQ. Brief team resumes are provided on the following pages. 

Depending on individual project needs, please note that SHN is able to draw from a pool of more than 100 

professionals (such as engineers, geologists, surveyors, planners, biologists, biologists/botanists, regulatory 

compliance specialists, field personnel, and administrative staff) in order to get the job done. 

Jared O'Barr, PE 
• LeadQNQC 

Task Leaders 

Test Wells 
• Robert Hess, PG 

Energy 
Management 
• A. Rasmussen, PE 

TMR Landsand ROW 
• A. Rasmussen, PE • Dale Roper, PE, 

PLS 

3-1 

Environmental 
Documents 
• Mark Chaney 

Rate Study 
• A. Rasmussen, PE 

Mark Chaney 
• Principal-in-Charge 

PER 
• A. Rasmussen, PE 
• Darin Strege, PE 



Project Team 

Anders Rasmussen, PE 
Project Manager/Sr. Engineer 

Years of Experience: 24 
Years with SHN: 7 

Education 

M.S., Environmental 
Engineering, University of 
Minnesota, Minneapolis, MN 

B.S., Civil Engineering, 
University of the Pacific, 
Stockton, CA 

Professfonal Registrations 

Registered Professional 
Engineer, Civil, CA #C-58184 

Profess ional Engineer, Civil, 
OR #62601 

Jared O'Barr, PE 
Senior Engineer 

Years of Experience: 12 
Years with SHN: 12 

Education 

B.S., Civil Engineering, 
University of Washington, 
Seattle, WA; 2005 

Professional Registrations 

Professional Engineer (P.E.), 
CA License #76125, 201 O 

Continuing Education 

Design and Installation of 
Buried Pipes, ASCE, February 
2007 

Mr. Rasmussen has over 24 years of civil experience in water resources, 

water and wastewater, environmental restoration, general civil/site 

design, and regulatory compliance. Specific areas of expertise and 

interest include project management, including multid isc iplinary teams 

ih multiple offices; client development and client service management; 

master planning and stud ies, includ ing economic ana lysis; conceptual, 

prelim inary, and final design for design/bid/bu ild, CM/GC. and design/ 

build projects; stormwater management; water/wastewater; modeling 

for water quality, hydrologic, hydraulic (closed pipe and open channel); 

and site design for major faci li t ies, including water and wastewater 

treatment plants. 

Representative Projects 

• Water System Arsenic Treatment Project, City of Paisley, OR 

• Water System Improvements, City ofTu lelake, CA 

• Water Management Plan, City of Shasta Lake, CA 

• Water Distribution System Model, Roseburg Forest Products, 
North Bend, OR 

• Proposition 1 Wastewater Planning Project, Lake Shastina CSD, 
Weed, CA 

Mr. O'Barr has more than 12 years of mun icipa l engineering experience. 

His wide range of experience includes water storage, distribution, and 

treatment; wastewater collection system design and evaluation; site 

development design; municipal infrastructu re evaluation, design, and 

construction; storm water mitigation; and fund ing acquisition. 

Representative Projects 

• Lund bar Hi lls Domestic Water Booster Pump Station - City of 
Eure ka, CA 

• Water Tank Replacement (Tank No. 7 and Tank No. 9) - City of 
Arcata, CA 

• CAL FIRE High Rock Water Storage Tank and Distribution System, 
Weott, CA 

• CAL FIRE High Rock Surface Water Treatment Plant, Weott, CA 

• Hoopa Valley Public Utilities District Cyanotoxin Treatment 
Project, Hoopa, CA 

3-2 



Mike Foget, PE, LEED AP 
Senior Engineer 

Years of Experience: 26 
Years with SHN: 22 

Education 

M.S., Environmental 
Engineering; Washington State 
Univ., Pullman, WA; 1992 

B.S., Environmental Resources 
Engineering; Humboldt State 
University; 1989 

Professional Registrations 

Professional Engineer (P.E.), CA 
License #54123 

Continuing Education 

"Local Assistance Training Aid 
Series" Caltrans, February 
2015 

Richard Sample., PE 
Electrical Engineer 

Years of Experience: 47 
Years with RSE: 18 

Education 

B.S., California State 
University, Los Angeles, CA; 
1976 

Professional Registrations 

Registered Electrical Engineer, 
CA; No. 16423 

Project Team 

Mr. Foget has more than 26 years of experience in civil and consulting 

engineering for both public agencies and private sector clients. He has 

been responsible for design, review, and completion of a wide range of 

engineering projects, including municipal utility projects. He has 

prepared conceptual design, construction plans, and specifications; 

specified equipment and materials, and supervise contractor installation 

of lineal infrastructure. His design engineering experience includes 

wastewater trea tment facilities, stormwater drainage, construction 

management, and analysis of drainage facilities for stormwater. Mr. 

Foget has secured and managed multiple State- and Federa lly-fund ed 

infrastructure projects. 

Representative Projects 

• Water Treatment Plant Upgrades -Town of Scotia 

• Water Distribution System Assessment, Design, and Construction, 
Town of Scotia 

• Cyanotoxin Water Treatment Plant Upgrades - Hoo pa Valley 
Public Utilities District 

• Water Treatment Plant Upgrades - CAL FIRE (multiple sites in 
Northern California) 

Mr. Sample is a professional engineer with more than 46 years of 

experience in electrical consulting engineering, specializing in municipal 

project design during the last 30 years, including those for wastewater 

treatment facili ties. All projects invofved complete design, bid and 

construction support services as requi red for either completely new 

facilities or major expansion of existing facilities . Richard is 

knowledgeable in the design of utility and standby power systems, 

power distribution, lighting, HVAC, soft start and variable speed pump 

control, and SCADA/System interface. 

Representative Projects 

• Tulelake Well Nos. 1 & 3 Upgrade, Town of Tulelake, CA 

• Lundbar Hills Domestic Water Booster Pump Station - City of 
Eureka 

• Scotia River Pump Infrastructure Improvements, Scotia, CA 

• Mendocino WWTP Rehabilitation, City of Mendocino, CA 

• Port Orford WWTP Expansion, City of Port Orford, OR 

• Willits WWTP Expansion - Stages 1 /2, City of Will its, CA 

3-3 



Project Team 

Darin Strege, PE 
Project Manager/Sr. Engineer 

Years of Experience: 27 
Years with SHN: 3 

Education 

B.S., Civil Engineering, North 
Dakota Sta te University, 
Fargo, ND 

Professional Registrations 

Registered Professiona l 
Engineer, Civil, CA #C-59686 

Dale A. Roper, PE, PLS 
Senior Engineer/ Surveyor 

Years of Experience: 39 
Years with SHN: 10 

Education 

M.S., Civi l Engineeri ng, San 
Jose State Univers ity, San 
Jose,CA; 1983 

B.S., Environmental 
Resources Engineering, 
Humboldt State University, 
Arcata, CA; 1978 

Professional Registrations 

Professiona l Engineer (P.E.), 
CA License #35379 

Professional Land Surveyor 
(P.L.S.), CA License #5504 

Mr, Strege has over 27 yea rs combined civil/structural design, project 

management, construction and personnel supervis ion experience. 

General civi l design experience includes grad ing and drainage plans, 

utility plans, water distributfon pumps and piping, water storage tank 

sizing, on-site septic systems, and base flood elevation assessments . 

Structura l design experience includes structure modifications associated 

with nuclear decommissioning, residentia l design, bridge false work, 

tempora ry shoring, and concrete fo rms. Project management and 

construction experience includes: bridges, retaining wal ls, landfill 

capping, storm damage repa irs, road reconstruction, uti lities, dam 

retrofit, t ransformer pad, waste water treatment ponds, thermal curtain 

demo, and levee repa_irs . 

Representative Projects 

• Water Storage Tank Siz ing, Distribution Piping System, East Side 
Road Development Project, Willits, CA 

• Hayfork Irrigation System Project, Trin ity County Waterworks 
District, Hayfork, CA 

• Water Storage Tank Sizing, We ll Pumping System Design, 
Vineyards Subdivision, City of Anderson, CA 

Mr. Roper has more than 39 years of experience as a professiona l civil 

engineer and land surveyor. Services performed included boundary 

su rveying and topographic mapping; preparation of prel iminary 

development plans and tentative maps; preparation of construction 

documents includ ing grading and drainage plans, utility plans (sewer, 

wate r, and storm dra inage); septic systems; access roads; erosion 

control plans; storm water pollution prevention plans; construction 

specifications; and engineers estimates. 

Representative Projects 

• Engineering and Land Surveying Services for the Lake Shastina 
Community Services District, Weed, CA 

• Engineering and Land surveyi ng Services for the Town of Fort 
Jones Wastewater Treatment Facil ity, Project, Fort Jones, CA 

• Project Manager and Engineer for Hardin Road Access Project, 
Montgomery Creek, CA 

• Hayfork Irrigation Pipeline Project, Hayfork, CA 

• Phill ipsvi lle Water System Project, Ph il lipsville, CA 

3-4 



Bob Hess, PG 
Senior Geologist 

Years of Experience: 22 
Years with SHN: 4 

Education 

B.S., Geology, California State 
University, Chico, CA; 1996 

Registrations & Training 

Professiona l Geologist #7403, 
CA 

Roland Rueber, PG 
Senior Geologist 

Years of Experience: 23 
Years with SHN: 19 

Education 

Addit ional Coursework, 
Geo logy, Colorado State 
University, Fort Collins, CO 

B.S., Geology, Humboldt State 
University, Arcata, CA; 1993 

Professional Registrations 

Professional Geologist #7629, 
CA 

Registered Geologist #G2337, 
OR 

Project Team 

Mr. Hess is a licensed professional geology with expertise in field 

exploration, drilling techniques, monitoring well installations, Brownfield 

investigations, site remediation, plan and procedure development bid 

preparation, permitting, and subcontractor oversight. Field experience 

includes excavations, drilling, soi l, water, and soil -gas sampling, 

monitoring and remediation well installations, hydrogeologic 

evaluations, fate and transport eva luations, and lithologic and 

geophysical logging. 

Representative Projects 

• Project Geologist, CAL FIRE Yreka, Siskiyou Unit Subsurface 
Investigation Workplan 

• Project Geologist, Mendocino CSD Third-Party Hydrologic Study 
Review 

• Project Geologist, CAL FIRE Washington Ridge CC Water Supply 
Well Rehabilitation 

• Project Geologist, National Parks Service Whiskeytown National 
Recreation Area Water Supply Well Project 

Mr. Rueber has 23 years of experience at SHN in environmental and 

applied geology while working with federal, state, and loca l regu latory 

agencies. Experience includes project management, Phase 1/11 site 

investigations, plan and procedure development, bid preparation, 

permitting, and subcontracto r oversight. He has prepared and 

implemented over 50 remedial action plans for a variety of 

contaminants. Fi eld experience includes excavations, drilling, so il and 

groundwater sampling, monitoring and remediation well instal lations. 

Representative Projects 

• Project Geo logist, Water Supply Well Redevelopment, Sampling, 
and Water System Modifications, CAL FIRE Washington Ridge 
Conservation Camp, Nevada City, CA 

• Project Geologist, Supply Well Installation and Permitting, CAL 
FIRE Forest Learning Center, Fort Bragg, CA 

• Project Geologist, Water Well Assessment, Trinidad Rancheria, 
Trinidad, CA 

• Project Geologist, Water Well System Insta llation, Leggett Valley 
School District, Leggett, CA 

3-5 



Project Team 

Mark Chaney 
Senior Planner 

Years of Experience: 41 
Years with SHN: 19 

Education 

B.S., Forest Resource 
Management, Humboldt 
State University, Arcata, CA 

Undergraduate (Civi l 
Engineering), California State 
Polytechnic University, 
Pomona, CA 

Memberships 

American Planning 
Association 

American Water Works 
Association 

Mr. Chaney is the Principal of SH N's Redd ing office and has more than 35 

years of experience as an environmental scientist and project manager 

for federal, state, and local government entities. He has developed and 

managed both large and small projects that involve mult iple specialty 

disciplines, such as specia l status species surveys and mit igations, 

wetlands, hazardous materials characterization and remediation, and 

significant cultural resources. He has prepared hundreds of NEPA and 

CEQA documents, and has been the Project Manager and lead document 

preparer for both CEQA El R's and NEPA EIS documents. 

Mr. Chaney special izes in managing interdisciplinary projects where his 

wide ranging experience provide clients with project development 

planning, initia l screen ing of potential development constraints, and 

early issue resolution 

Representative Projects 

• Water Supply Line NEPA and CEQA Documents, City of Etna 

• Hayfork Community Water System (CEQA MND), Hayfork, CA 

• Hubbard Creel Water System Improvements, City of Port 
Orford, OR 

• City of Myrtle Creek Water Sys tem (OHS ER), Myrtle Creek, OR 

• Sugar Creek Irr igation Pipeline, Siskiyou County, CA 

• North Market Sewer Force Mai n HDD Project, Redding, CA 

• Scott River Lodge Development, Siskiyou County, CA 

• Young's Dam Fish Ladder Construction (CEQA MND), Etna, CA 

• Makenze Dam (CEQA MND), Shasta County, CA 

• Wedderburn Sanitary District (USDA EA), Go ld Beach, OR 

• Bethel Church Collyer Drive Campus EIR, Redding 

• Salt Creek Heights Subd ivision Planned Development EIR, 
Redding 

• Hartnell Commercial Development, Redding 

• Wi ld Diamond Vineyards EIR, Lake County 

• Environmenta l Planning Services, Lassen County 

• Harris Quarry CEQA Documentation, Mendocino County 

• Coos Bay WWTF EA, City of Coos Bay, OR 

• JH Ranch Master Plann ing, Etna 

3-6 



~ . ·- . . . -
4: Representative Projects and Referen~es 

Featured Projects 
Water System Improvements, City of Tulelake, CA. 

The City of Tulelake received CDBG funding to make renovations 

to portions of the community's drinking water system, including a 

new well house at Well No. 1, backup generators, and 

rehabilitation (repair and recoating) of the ground and elevated 

water storage tanks. SHN provided design, bidding, and 

construction administration services. 

Water System Arsenic Treatment Project, City of Paisley, OR. 

The City of Paisley's water supply had levels of arsenic above the 

drinking water standard and required treatment to bring the 

potable water supply into compliance. Part of the scope of work 

included replacing the well house at Well No. 1 with a larger 

structure (16 feet by 24 feet) to house both the well pump and 

the arsenic removal system. The work included resetting the wel l 

pump and install ing new piping, both inside and outside the 

structure. The well house is a wood framed structure with metal 

siding and insulation. Other project features included new 

chemical feed system, manual controls, and a backwash/flushing 

system. 

Water System Improvements, Town of Scotia, CA 

Representative Projects and References 

For the Town of Scotia's subdivision project, SHN is redesigning the water intake pumping system, making 

modifications to the existing treatment plant, and has consolidated the domestic and fire water storage and 

distribution system. As part of these improvements, the private power grid needed to be converted to a grid 

owned and operated by the Pacific Gas & Electric Company (PG&E). PG&E's power grid is at a different 

voltage than the existing water system pumps, requiring new transformers and new switch gear, to prevent 

power surges. This new equipment is housed in a new building to protect from weather and seismic events. 

SHN designed the bui lding to "essential faci lity" standards, because it provides power to the town's domestic 

and fire water supply. Therefore, SHN recommended the use of a concrete masonry unit (CMU) block 

building, with a footprint of approximately 17 feet by 11 feet. SHN designed the structure, assisted in the 

public bidding process to select a contractor, and provided construction oversight and inspection during the 

building's construction. Richard Sample Engineering provided all of the electrical work as SHN's 

subcontractor. 

4-1 



Representative Projects and References 

Wastewater Treatment and Reuse Envlronmental Record, 

Mendoclno City CSD, Mendocino, CA. SHN prepared an 

Environmental Record document for use by the District and the 

USDA-RD in renovation of the District's wastewater treatment 

fac ili ty and wastewater reuse system. The project incorporated 

current USDA requirements for environmental documents that 

are categorically excluded from preparation of an EA. SHN 

provided all engineering design work, biological studies and 

coordinated cultural resource evaluations for the District. SHN 

also provided the CEQA documentation for Mendocino County 

use. 

Water System EA, Big Valley Rancherfa, lake County, CA. SHN 

prepared a full NEPA EA for the Tribe's new water treatment 

facil ity and new water distribution pipelines within the Tri ba l 

community. The project required detailed analysis of wetlands, 

botanical and flooding impacts, including the preparation of 

the 8-step floodplain evaluation process. 

Water Tank Project EA, City of Etna, CA. SHN developed the 

City's new water tank project EA in 2017 to comply with the 

requirements of the HCD and CDBG requirements for the 

project development. SHN provided all documentation and 

biological reviews and coordinated cultural resources 

evaluations. SHN also provided a separate CEQA document for 

use by the City to comply with State req ui re ments. 

4-2 



Proposition 1 Wastewater Planning Grant, Town of Fort Jones, 

CA. SHN prepared a Plan of Study for the Proposition 1 

Wastewater Grant application. After funding was secured, the 

Town hired SHN to prepare a Sanitary Sewer Evaluation Study, 

a Wastewater Facilities Plan, and CEQA Documentation. SHN is 

currently working on the wastewater rate study and will be 

soon starting on a Report of Waste Discharge and Construction 

Funding application. 

Loleta CSD WWTF Design and CEQA/NEPA Permitting, Loleta, 

CA. SHN prepared the SWRCB Clean/Drinking Water State 

Revolving Fund Environmental Packages (also known as NEPA 

cross-cutters) for the construction phases of two Loleta 

Community Services District (LCSD) projects. The LCSD Sanitary 

Sewer Collection System Rehabilitation Project consisted of 

rehabilitating Loleta's sanitary sewer collection system. The 

LCSD WWTF Disposal Improvement Project consisted of 

replacing the existing wastewater treatment facility, 

rehabilitating the existing wastewater discharge pipe, and 

constructing a new land application system for seasonal 

disposal of treated wastewater effluent. 

Completing the Environmental Package applications included 

the following for each project: 

Representative Projects and References 

• CEQA compliance • Fish & Wildlife Coordination Act compliance 

• Environmental Alternatives Analysis • Floodplain Management compliance 

• Archaeological and Historic Preservation Act • Magnuson-Stevens Fishery Conservation and 

compliance Management Act compliance 

• Clean Air Act compliance • Migratory Bird Treaty Act compliance 

• Coastal Barriers Resource Act compliance • National Historic Preservation Act compliance 

• Coastal Zone Management Act compliance • Protection of Wetlands 

• Endangered Species Act compliance • Rivers and Harbors Act compliance 

• Environmental Justice • Safe Drinking Water Act compliance 

• Farmland Protection Policy Act compliance • Wild and Scenic Rivers Act compliance 

4-3 



Representative Projects and References 

Project References 
We have included the fol lowing references to highl ight several project el ements relevant to your proj ect. 

Please feel free to discuss SH N's track record for re liabil ity, effectiveness, and quality. Our cl ients often tell 

us t hat we have saved them t ime, money, and headaches by helping them wi th their projects in a reliable 

and professional manner. 

Project references from our representative projects are provided below, and we have also included severa l 

cl ient testimonials. 

Client References 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

Brett Nystrom 

Director of Public Works 

City ofTulelake 

530-667-5522 

tulelakepublicworks@cot net 

Frank Bacik 

President 

Town of Scotia, LLC 

707-764-5063 

fbaclk@townofscotia.com 

Duane Young 

City of Paisley 

System Operations Specialist 

541-943-3173 

lnfo@cityofpalsley.net 

Marcus Drumm 

Loleta CSD 

General Manager 

707-733-1717 

loletacsd@suddenlinkmall.com 

Sarah Griggs 

City of Etna 

City Clerk 

530-467-3217 

etnacit;y@sisqt.el.net 

4-4 

Selected Client Testimonials 

"SHN's work product is and always has been 
routinely prompt, thorough, and within budget, 
regardless of the scope or complexity of any 
given project," 

Stephen Tyler, Interim District General Manager 

Scotia Community Services District 

"SHN's knowledge and experience of water and 
wastewater engineering, community services 
district operation, and land planning have made 
them a leader in these fields." 

David Hull, General Manager 

Humboldt Community Services District 

"SHN has demonstrated their professional 
abilities as a qualified team capable of providing 
various services, and I can recommend SHN 
without reservation.'' 

Glenn Bernald, Public Works Supervisor 

City of Blue Lake 

"SHN has consistently provided me with 
outstanding guidance and expertise. The 
compliance services that they provide me are 
well orchestrated and completed in a timely 
fashion.'' 

Bob Marino, General Manager 

DG Fairhaven Power 



Project Understanding and Approach 

SH N's approach is based on the Study Plan Scope provided in the RFQ, of which SHN previously prepared by 

for the LSCSD. Proposed deliverables for each task are as indicated on the Study Plan Scope unless noted 

otherwise. SHN will leverage related work performed previously under the Proposition 1 Wastewater 

Planning Grant work, including backup power, solar power, and SCADA system to reduce unnecessary effort 

on this project. 

......... 
Task 1. Test Wells 
Based on work that the LSCSD had undertaken at the Well 10 site since this Study Plan 

was developed and submitted to the State, SHN's approach is to drill up to two 

additional test wells, the first one of which will be at the Well 1 O site but go deeper to 

approximately 400 feet in depth. A second test well will be drilled in another location as 

determined by SH N's staff geologist in consultation with LSCSD staff. 

SHN Fee: $100,000 (includes drilling subcontractor) 

Drilling adivities for the first test well at the We// 10 site. 

Task 2. Energy Management Study 
The purpose of this task is to evaluate the baseline electrical usage within the LSCSD 

drinking water system, which includes well pumps and booster pump stations, and 

identify opportunities where energy savings can be made. SHN will assist LSCSD staff in 

reviewing historical energy usage related to the drinking water system. SHN will prepare 

a brief technical memorandum identifying the historical usage and any feasible 

opportunities to save additional energy. 

SHN Fee: $10,000 

5-1 



Project Understanding and Approach 

Task 3. Prel iminary Engineering Report 

SHN will prepare a Prelim inary Engineering Report (PER) that fo llows the USDA Ru ral 

Development PER preparation guidelines. The techn ica l content of the PER wil l include 

evaluation of alternat ives and recommendations for water tank rehabi li tation, backup 

generators, backup production wells, energy usage, booste r pump station upgrades, 

SCADA system, and meter and fi re hydrant replacement. Some of the technical 

evaluation wi ll be performed in other tasks, and the PER wil l summarize the work. 

Water tank cond it ion eva luation w ill be performed for the exterior by SHN engineers 

and for the interi or and by a specialty diving subcontractor, such as Liquivision. SHN will 

also prepare recommendations to isolate individual tanks, since the tanks cannot 

currently be isolated from the distribution system. 

SHN, along wi th our electri ca l engineering subconsu ltant, Richard Sample Engineering, 

recently performed an eva luat ion for backup generators for the wastewater system and 

will leverage th is work to prepa re a recommendation that can be utilized by both the 

water and wastewater systems in order to save costs. 

The work in this task related to the backup production wel ls includes prel iminary design 

and cost estimate for the infrastructure rela ted to well pumping and connection to the 

distribution system. 

Energy usage will be focused on eva luating opportunities to reduce current electrical 

costs, primarily focused on using solar panels to offset electri cal usage. Much of the 

work wi ll be completed under Task 2 and wil l be summari zed in the PER. SHN prepared 

a technical memorandum related to using solar power under the Proposition 1 

Wastewater Plann ing Grant proj ect, and the information from that study wi ll be utili zed 

here. 

The booster pump stat ions wi ll be eva luated with recommendations for improvement. 

The SCADA system evaluation will not be needed as the LSCSD has al ready procured the 

XiO system for the water util ity and is considering its use for the wastewater system. 

SHN wi ll discuss with the LSCSD rega rding th ei r current program for meter and fire 

hydrant replacement. If needed, SHN wi ll provide an evaluation and recommendation 

for meter and fire hydrant replacement. 

SHN Fee: $130,000 

5-2 



Project Understanding and Approach 

Task 4. Environmental Documentation 
SHN expects that the proposed projects are not entirely exempt from CEQA as originally 

envisioned and will there require additional studies and CEQA documentation. SHN will 

verify this assumption prior to proceeding with additional eff~rt. 

SHN Fee: $75,000 

Task 5. Technical, Managerial, and Financial Assessment 
In accordance with State of California guidelines, SHN will perform a Techni ca l, 

Manageria l, and Financia l (TMF) Assessment in accordance with State of California 

funding requirements. 

SHN Fee: $20,000 

Task 6. Lands and Right-of-Way Acquisition 
Addit ional easements will be needed to tie any new production wells from the LSCSD 

property to the distribution system. At this stage, no new land acquisition is anticipated, 

but cou ld be necessary depending on the outcome of the technical work performed 

under other tasks. 

SHN Fee: To be Determined, up to $15,000 

Task 7. Rate Study 
SHN is currently completing a rate study for the wastewater system. SHN was also 

recently selected to provide services to prepare a water rate study, but, at the request of 

the LSCSD, this work was suspended as it would be incorporated within this project. 

SHN will prepa re a rate study that follows the Proposition 218 process. 

SHN Fee: $25,000 

Task 8. Additional Permit Applications 
SHN does .not currently anticipate additional permit applications are required during 

this stage of project development; however, we are available to assist the LSCSD to 

prepare additional applications as may be needed. 

SHNFee:$0 

5-3 



Project Understanding and Approach 

Task 9. Legal Consultation 
SHN will not be performing any work under this task unless requested by the LSCSD. 

SHNFee:$0 

Task 1 O. Financial Assistance 
SHN will assist the LSCSD with funding application to up to two funding sources, 

including the State of California Drinking Water State Revolving Loan Fund (DWSRF) and 

possibly the USDA Rural Development agency. 

SHN Fee: $10,000 

Task 11. Project Administration 
SHN will not be performing any work under this task unless requested by the LSCSD. 

SHNFee:$0 

Present and Projected Workloads 
Based on current staffing levels and projected workload, we have capacity to start work on this project 

immediately once the LSCSD has received funding, and expect to have sufficient staff avai lability to complete 

the work within 18 months from issuance of Notice to Proceed. 

Capability to Meet Time and Budget Requirements 
SHN has a history of staying within contractual budget limits, especially when SHN assisted with crafting the 

budgets, as was the case with this Proposition 1 Drinking Water Planning Grant. As indicated previously,. SHN 

has current staff levels that give us the ability to stay within reasonable time limits. 

5-4 



Eureka, CA I Arcata, CA I Redding, CA I Willits, CA I Coos Bay, OR I Klamath Falls, OR 



This page is intentionally blank. 



Item 11 

LAKE SHASTJNA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

TO: LSCSD BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

MEETING DATE: June 19, 2019 

FROM: Robert Moser, General Manager 

SUBJECT: LSCSD/LSPOA Maintenance and Employee Agreement 

BACKGROUND: 

For the past several years there has been no agreement between that LSCSD and the LSPOA on 
the use of the LSCSD Maintenance Yard. Several General Managers have tried to deal with this 
issue and have not had much success. This has been an ongoing process since 2015. 

SUMMARY: 

Over the course of the past few months, the LSPOA General Manager and myself have been 
working on a solution and agreement for the LSCSD Maintenance Yard. With the help of both 
Boards of Directors, and our Attorneys ,we believe that a fair and long-term solution has been met. 
This agreement covers the yard, maintenance employees if needed, equipment use and utility 
services. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

By Motion approve the LSCSD/LSPOA Maintenance and Employee Agreement, as presented. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

LSCSD/LSPOA Maintenance and Employee Agreement 

16320 Everhart Dr.• Weed, Ca 96094 • 530.938.328 1 • Fax 530.93 8.4 739 



LAKE SHASTINA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
LAKE SHASTINA PROPERTY OWNERS ASSOCIATION 
MAINTENANCE YARD AND EMPLOYEE AGREEMENT 

This AGREEMENT is made at Lake Shastina, Siskiyou County, California, on the last date written below, by 
and between LAKE SHASTINA PROPERTY OWNERS ASSOCIATION, ("LSPOA"), a California nonprofit 
corporation and LAKE SHASTINA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT, ("DISTRICT"), a California Public agency. 

Recitals: 
1. LSPOA is required, pursuant to its recorded CC&Rs, Bylaws and Articles of Incorporation, to 

provide to its members and does so provide: maintenance of its roads, open space, drainage, 
green belts and community recreational facilities as a portion of the Lake Shastina common 
interest development. DISTRICT is authorized by law to provide municipal services including water, 
sewer, Police and Fire to the properties within the DISTRICT, which includes the LSPOA. 

2. The LSPOA and DISTRICT are separate and individual entities, who serve the same or similar 

residents of Siskiyou County. 
3. The LSPOA and DISTRICT desire to enter into this agreement in order to best utilize services and 

reduce costs to the members of their entities. 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS AGREED AS FOLOWS: 
1. EMPLOYEE SHARING: 

The DISTRICT and the LSPOA agree to, from time to time, utilize each other's non-clerical (field 
maintenance) staff as mutually agreed upon by their respective General Managers. 
A. Hours are to be recorded and jointly approved by both General Managers. The General 

Manager will make sure that the projects assigned to their employee continue to have a 
public purpose for their respective districts. 

B. Reimbursement shall be at the loaded hourly rate of the job classification utilized, which is 
defined as the employee's base salary, plus benefits, specialty pay and additional pay to 
cover the total amount the employer is expending on the employee per hour. 

C. All staff shall continue to report and receive payment from their respective employer. 
This does not create a joint employment situation. 

D. Each party shall promptly reimburse the other for use of the other's employee(s) upon 
written request for payment, but in no event later than 30 days from the date of such 

written request. 

2. MAINTENANCE YARD: 
A. DISTRICT and LSPOA agree to jointly utilize, on a cost sharing basis, DISTRICT's 

Maintenance Yard and shop space. LSPOA agrees to provide their equipment for DISTRICT 
and LSPOA to jointly use, at no charge to DISTRICT, in exchange for allowing LSPOA to 
store and maintain its equipment in DISTRICT'S Maintenance Yard. LSPOA agrees to pay 
one (1) dollar per year for use of yard in accordance with Government law. 

B. LSPOA's obligations shall include: 
a. LSPOA shall properly maintain its equipment in accordance with manufacturer's 

recommendations. 
b. LSPOA shall provide its equipment for use by qualified DISTRICT operators. 
c. LSPOA shall track and reimburse DISTRICT for the actual cost of use of all fuels, fluids 

and materials. 



d. LSPOA shall be considered a "Renter" of maintenance yard and shop space. 
e. LSPOA shall be responsible for any damage incurred to yard and shop space by any 

LSPOA employee, upon sufficient proof that such damage was caused by an LSPOA 
employee. 

f. LSPOA will not sublet or share the maintenance yard or shop space with any other 
entity unless agreed to by DISTRICT. 

C. DISTRICT's OBLIGATIONS SHALL INCLUDE: 
a. DISTRICT shall be responsible for any damage to LSPOA equipment. 
b. DISTRICT shall maintain yard in keeping with industrial and state standards as required 

by law. 
c. DISTRICT shall provide maintenance yard and shop space access to authorized LSPOA 

personnel without restrictions. 

3. PREVIOUS AGREEMENT SUPERSEDED 
This agreement supersedes, cancels and replaces all previous AGREEMENTS between the 
parties on the same subject. 

4. FAILURE TO PERFORM 
In the event that either party fails to perform any of the obligations covered by this 
AGREEMENT, which it is legally obligated to and financially capable of performing, the other 
party may, at its option, undertake the obligation not being performed. The remedy for said 
failure will be that the failing party will be liable to other party for reasonable costs incurred to 
perform or complete an obligation that is in excess of costs that the failing party would 
otherwise expect to pay. No action will be taken until the failing party is notified of their 
failure in writing and allowed at least 30 days for the failing party to make appropriate 
corrections. 

5. FACILITIES, EQUIPMENT AND SUPPLIES 
The DISTRICT, in accordance with normal business practices, shall procure, provide and 
maintain all facilities, equipment and supplies necessary to fulfill its obligation under this 
agreement for the full enjoyment of both the DISTRICT and LSPOA. 

6. ASSUMPTION OF LIABILITY; INDEMNITY; INSURANCE 
A. DISTRICT shall indemnify and defend LSPOA and its directors, officers or employees from 

liability for any act or omission alleged to have been committed by any officer, agent or 
employee of DISTRICT in the course of DISTRICT's performance under this AGREEMENT. 

B. LSPOA shall indemnify and defend DISTRICT from liability for any act or omission alleged 
to have been committed by any officer, agent or employee of LSPOA in the course of 
LSPOA's performance under this AGREEMENT. 

C. DISTRICT shall procure and maintain in full force and effect during the duration of this 
AGREEMENT comprehensive public liability insurance, with coverage of not less than 
$1,000,000 per occurrence, for any claims related to its activities, including those required 
of it under this AGREEMENT, and shall name LSPOA as an additional insured thereunder. 
DISTRICT shall provide a Certificate of Insurance to LSPOA evidencing said coverage. 

D. LSPOA shall procure and maintain in full force and effect during the duration of this 
AGREEMENT liability insurance in accordance with the requirements of Civil Code Sections 
5800 and 5805 and shall name DISTRICT as an additional insured thereunder. LSPOA shall 
provide a Certificate of Insurance to DISTRICT evidencing such coverage. 



E. Each party shall procure and maintain in full force and effect during the duration of this 
AGREEMENT worker's compensation insurance for its respective "shared" field 
maintenance staff to the extent it is required by law. 

AMENDENTS TO AGREEMENT 
No amendments to this AGREEMENT shall be effective and enforceable unless the same is in 
writing and approved by respective governing boards of both parties. 

LEGAL COUNSEL 
Each party to this AGREEMENT may retain their own legal counsel. 

ALTERNATIVE DISPUTE RESOLUTION 
a. In the event of any controversy, claim or dispute arising out of or relating to this AGREEMENT, 

or the breach, termination, enforcement, interpretation or validity thereof, including 
determination of the scope or applicability of this AGREEMENT to arbitrate, ("dispute"), the 
parties hereto shall use their best efforts to resolve their differences. To this effect, they shall 
consult and negotiate with each other in good faith and recognize their mutual interests, 
attempt to reach a just and equitable solution satisfactory to both parties. 
In the event the dispute is not resolved by formal negotiation within 30 days, (or any mutually 
agreed extension of time), of the first meeting between the parties, the case shall be referred 
to mediation. 
The parties are free to select any mutually acceptable mediator. If the parties cannot agree, or 
have no specific choice of mediator, then a mediator will be chosen by the arbitration 
administrator of the Siskiyou County Superior Court. 
The mediation process shall continue until the dispute is resolved or until the mediator 
provides the participants with a writing signed by the mediator stating that the mediation is 
terminated, or words to that effect, or a party provides the mediator and the other parties 
with a similar writing, or for 10 calendar days there is no communication between the 
mediator and any of the parties relating to the dispute. If the dispute is not resolved by 
mediation as set forth above, then the parties will resort to arbitration before a sole 
arbitrator. If the parties cannot agree, or have no specific choice of arbitrator, then an 
arbitrator will be chosen by the arbitration administrator of the Siskiyou County Superior 
Court. The arbitrator's award shall be binding on the parties. Judgement on the award 
rendered by the arbitrator may be entered in any court jurisdiction thereof. 
The provision of subpart (a), shall not apply to any controversy which is filed in the Small 
Claims Court, nor shall it prohibit any party from seeking temporary or permanent injunctive 
relief in any court. 

b. The fees and expenses of the mediator appointed, pursuant to this section, shall be shared 
equally between the parties. The fees and expenses of the arbitrator shall initially be paid by 
the parties in equal shares, provided however, that the arbitrator shall award the same as 
recoverable costs to any party which the arbitrator determines to be the prevailing party. 

c. In any arbitration under this section, the parties shall be entitled to conduct discovery in the 
manner provided under the California Discovery Act. 

d. Any mediation and arbitration hearings at which either of the parties is to make a personal 
appearance, shall be conducted within 100 miles of Lake Shastina. 



AITORNEY'S FEES 
The prevailing party in any action, including any arbitration, regarding or relating to this 
AGREEMENT, its enforcement, its breach or its interpretation, shall recover its reasonable 
attorneys' fees, expenses and costs. Said expenses and costs shall include the reasonable charges 
of any expert witnesses. 

RECORDS 
All correspondence, documents and other printed and electronic records of the LSPOA, or relating 
to the business of the LSPOA, to DISTRICT's services to LSPOA under this AGREEMENT, or to any 
service or material for which LSPOA shall be required to pay or to reimburse DISTRICT under this 
AGREEMENT, shall upon demand be made promptly available to inspection by any officer of agent 
of LSPOA, and copies thereof shall, within reasonable time after request, be provided without 
cost. Members of the LSPOA sha II have access to its records in accord a nee with the requirements 
of Civil Code 5200 et seq. 

RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN THE PARTIES 
It is expressly understood that in the performances of the services herein, the LSPOA and the agents and 

employees thereof, shall act in an independent capacity and not as officers, employees or agents of the 
County. 

TERM OF AGREEMENT 
This AGREEMENT shall be effective on June 20, 2019 and terminate on June 20, 2029 This AGREEMENT 
may be terminated upon mutual agreement between the parties. Upon termination of this agreement, 
LSPOA shall have ninety (90) calendar days to remove its property and equipment from the maintenance 
yard. 

APPROVAL BY LAKE SHASTINA PROPERTY OWNERS ASSOCIATION 
The foregoing was approved by the Board of Directors of the Lake Shastina Property Owners Associa tion 

at a duly called meeting held on June 12, 2019. ~ ~ _ I l 
DATE: \o \ \) \ \ °) __u_ \. \~\ ~ ~o-,- (? _)_,(A 

Rita MacIntosh, LSPOAIP ent I 

DATE t.lf f 
I 

APPROVAL BY LAKE SHASTINA COMMUNIT/ SERVICES D TRICT 
The foregoing was approved by the Board of Directors f the Lake Shastina Community Services District at 

a duly called meeting held on June 19, 2019. 

DATE: -------
Rick Thompson, CSD President 

DATE: - --- - --
Robert Moser, CSD Secretary 



Item 12 

LAKE SHASTINA COMMUNITY SER VICES DISTRICT 

TO: LSCSD BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

MEETING DATE: June 19, 2019 

FROM: Robert Moser, General Manager 

SUBJECT: Ratification of General Manager Employment Agreement with Approval of Date 
Change in Section 8 

SUMMARY: 

Ratify the General Managers Agreement dated May 20, 2019 with a salary of $104,000.00 per 
year. Also, clarification in Section 8 Item f regarding the date range for the CPI needs to be 
approved. 

OPTIONS: 

1) By Motion ratify Robert Moser's Employment Agreement dated May 2 1, 2019, with a 
fixed salaTy at $104,000 per annum, and approve modification to Section 8 Item f of 
Agreement, as submitted. 

2) Amend or modify option above. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1) General Managers Employment Agreement - approved by the Board at a Special Meeting 
on May 21 , 2019 

16320 Everhart Dr.• Weed_, Ca 96094 • 530.938.3281 • Fax 530.938.4739 



APPOINTMENT OF GENERAL MANAGER/PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR 
AND EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 

This Agreement is made this May 20, 2019 between Lake Shastina Community 
Service District ("District"), a political subdivision of the State of California, and Robert 
Moser ("Employee" or "General Manager/Public Works Director"). 

By this Agreement the District appoints Robe1i Moser as General Manager/Public 
Works Director for the Distriet and Employee accepts such employment on the terms and 
conditions set fotih herein: 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the District requires the services of a General Manager/Public Works 
Director; and 

WHEREAS, Employee has the necessary education, experience, skills and 
expertise to serve as General Manager/Public Works Director, and has been employed as 
an interim General Manager; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of the District ("Board") desires Employee to serve as the 
General Manager/Public Works Director of the District; and 

WHEREAS, Employee desires to accept said appointment; and 

WHEREAS, the Parties desire to execute this Agreement pursuant to the authority 
of and subject to the provisions of Government Code Section 53260 et seq.; and 

THEREFORE, the District hereby appoints Employee as its General 
Manager/Public Works Director, and General Manager/Public Works Director hereby 
accepts such employment under the terms and conditions set forth herein. 

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 

1. Employee agrees to observe and comply with the rules and regulations of 
the District, as adopted by the District's Board, respecting performance of duties, and to 
carry out and perform orders, directions, and policies stated by the District from time to 
time, either orally or in writing. The District Board shall conduct annual performance 
evaluations of the General Manager/Public Works Director and may conduct additional 
evaluations at regular or irregular intervals if the Board so elects. 

2. The duties of the General Manager/Public Works Director are as set forth 
in Attachment A and B of, which is expressly incorporated in this Agreement by this 
reference, and which may be changed by the Board during the term of this agreement. 

3. Employee agrees not to engage in any other business activities, duties, or 
pursuits and to devote all of his productive time, ability, and attention to District 
business. Employee may seek the prior, written consent of the Board to engage in either 
outside employment or to render services to any other person or organization. Activities 

00014875.1 Page 1 of7 



that do not materially interfere with the services required under this Agreement do not 
require prior written consent of District. 

4. Employee agrees that, to the best of his ability, he will at all times loyally 
and conscientiously perform all of his duties and obligations required of him either 
expressly or implicitly by this Agreement. 

EMPLOYEE'S ETHICAL OBLIGATIONS 

5. Employee acknowledges and understands that public employment, 
especially the position of General Manager/Public Works Director, carries with it great 
public trust and responsibility. Employee agrees to perform his duties in accordance with 
the laws and rules governing public employment and will undertake those duties in a 
matter which avoids acts of an inappropriate or illegal nature and avoids those acts which 
may give rise to even the appearance of impropriety. In accordance with that goal, 
Employee agrees to make full disclosure to, and obtain the approval of, the Board before 
entering into any negotiation or contract with any individual related to Employee by 
blood or matTiage or from any entity in which such an individual has a business interest. 
Employee further agrees that failure to make such disclosures may result in immediate 
te1mination and referral to the appropriate law enforcement authority. 

DISTRICT AUTHORITY 

6. The District's authority is exercised by the District Board acting as a body, 
as set forth by State law. No individual member of the Board has the authority to direct 
or give orders to the Employee. 

SALARY 

7. As compensation for services provided as General Manager/Public Works 
Director, the District shall pay Employee a fixed salary at $104,000 per annum, payable 
in accordance with District policy. General Manager/Public Works Director is an exempt 
employee and shall work approximately 40 hours a week for the District. Unless sooner 
conducted as provided in Paragraph (I), an initial performance review of Employee shall 
be conducted by the Boai·d on or about the one-year anniversai·y date of the date of 
appointment stated in section 11 of this Agreement. 

OTHER COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS 

8. Commencing on May 20, 2019, Employee shall receive the following 
benefits: 

a. The General Manager/Public Works Director shall be provided benefits 
for medical dental and vision coverage as the other employees of the District, which is 
currently provided by Teamsters Union Local 137; 

b. PTO accruing at the rate of 280 hours per year. PTO will increase by 8 
hours on the first pay period after the aimiversary date of this agreement. Any accrued 
vacation, sick, comp, floating holiday's Employee currently has with District shall be 
retained and added to the future accrual. Accrual of PTO time is capped at 2 years of 

00014875.1 Page 2 of7 



accrual. General Manager/Public Works Director shall notify the Board prior to taking 
more than 3 PTO days off at a time, and shall ensure that all matters are covered in his 
absence. 

d. CalPERS retirement benefits. Employee shall pay the entire employee 
contribution. 

e. Reimbursement of travel expenses pursuant to the District per .diem policy 
and in accordance with departmental travel budget and $50.00 a month compensation for 
cellular phone and data plan in accordance with District policy; 

f. Effective the first full pay period following every July 1, 2020 employee 
shall receive a salary increase equivalent the percentage increase in the cost of living, 
determined by the Consumer Price Index, U.S. Depaiiment of Labor, Western Region 
Urban Wage Earners and Clerical Workers B/C (less than 1,500,000 population) for the 
previous yeai·. Using October to October to determine the ercentage. 

SUPPORT SERVICES 

10. The District shall provide funds, space, equipment, and personnel for 
Employee's performance of his duties, as allowed by the Board of Directors. 

a. The General Manager/Public Works Director shall obtain a minimum of 
20 hours of training per year, at the District's expense, designed to develop the skills 
necessary to perform the job of General Manager/Public Works Director, specifically 
focusing on, but not limited to, budget, supervision/management, grants, special District 
operations, and human resources. 

TERM 

11 The effective date of appointment as General Manager/Public Works 
Director for Employee shall be May 20, 2019. The term of this Agreement shall be from 
May 20, 2019 th.rough June 30, 2022, with the option of renewal for an additional three 
(3) years, subject to the following conditions: 

a. This Agreement may be terminated at any time with or without cause. 

b. District will negotiate with Employee a renewal of Employee's contractual 
relationship with District or provide written notice of District's intent not to renew, no 
later than 120 days prior to expiration date. In no event shall Employee's contract expire 
sooner than 120 days after District's written notice to Employee that it does not intend to 
renew the contract. 

c. Employee shall have the absolute right to unilaterally te1minate this 
Agreement by written notice to the Board. Employee shall make every effo1i to provide 
at least 120 days' written notice prior to terminating perfo1ming the duties of General 
Manager/Public Works Director. 

00014875.1 Page 3 of 7 



TERMINATION OF EMPLOYMENT 

12. Regardless of whether Employee is terminated for cause or without cause 
under this Agreement, Employee shall, upon termination, be compensated for the accrued 
PTO he had accrued as a District employee. 

13. Termination for Cause: 

a. The General Manager/Public Works Director may be terminated for cause. 
Examples of "cause" shall, include, but are not limited to, any of the following: (a) 
conviction of a misdemeanor of moral turpitude or any felony; (b) continued abuse of 
drugs or alcohol that materially affects the performance of the Employee's duties; ( c) 
repeated and protracted unexcused absences from the General Manager's office and 
duties; and ( d) material breach of this Agreement which is not cured after reasonable 
notice. 

b. In the event the District terminates the Employee for cause, then District 
may te1minate this Agreement immediately, and the Employee shall be entitled to only 
the compensation accrued up to the date of termination, and any other te1mination 
benefits and payments as may be required by law. The Employee shall not be entitled to 
any severance benefits if te1minated under this section. 

c. In the event the Dish·ict te1minates the Employee for cause, the District 
and the Employee agree that neither Party shall make any written or oral statements to 
members of the public or the press concerning the Employee's termination except in the 
form of a joint press release which is mutually agreeable to both Parties. The joint press 
release shall not contain any text or infmmation that would be disparaging to either Party. 
The Parties further agree that, if they are unable to mutually agree on the contents of a 
joint press release within 72 hours after notice of te1mination, the District may state 
solely that the Employee is no longer employed by the Dish·ict and the former Employee 
may state solely that he is no longer employed by the District. 

14. Termination without Cause: 

a. The Employee may resign at any time and agrees to give the District at 
least 120 days' advance written notice of the effective date of the Employee's 
resignation, unless the Parties otherwise agree in writing. If the Employee retires from 
full time public service with the District, the Employee may provide six months' advance 
notice, but shall provide a minimum of 120 days' notice. The Employee's actual 
retirement date will be mutually established. 

b. The General Manager/Public Works Director serves at the pleasure of the 
Board upon the terms and conditions described in the agreement, in the sole discretion of 
the Board. This is an at-will employment position. The Board's discretion may be 
exercised without cause and at any time during the term of this Agreement, upon 30 days' 
written notice of removal by majority vote of the Board. If the General Manager/Public 
Works Director is terminated without cause, or contract is not renewed he shall be given 
the option of returning to the position of Public Works Director, the description of which 
is attached hereto as Exhibit B. Salary will be set by Board based on a salary survey of 
appropriate jurisdictions. 

00014875.1 Page 4 of7 



Notice of termination shall be provided to the Employee in writing. 
"Termination" as used in this section shall also include any request that the Employee 
resign, agree to a reduction in salary or other financial benefits of the Employee 
( excluding a general District Management salary reduction), a material reduction in the 
powers and authority of the General Manager/Public Works Director, or the elimination 
of the General Manager's position. Any such notice of termination or act constituting 
termination shall be presented at or effectuated at a duly noticed regular or special 
meeting of the Board of Directors. 

c. EMPLOYEE ACKNOWLEDGES AND UNDERSTANDS THAT THIS 
POSITION IS AT-WILL AND IS NOT COVERED BY THE LAKE SHASTINA 
DISTRICT POLICY OR MEMO RANUM OF UNDERSTANDING. EMPLOYEE 
MAY BE TERMINATED AT ANY TIME, FOR ANY LEGAL REASON. 

d. This Agreement shall also terminate on the death of Employee and all 
accrued salary and leave benefits per policy shall be paid to Employee's estate as required 
by applicable law. 

15. Severance Pay: 

a. No severance pay will be paid to employee. 

INDEMNITY 

16. District shall indemnify Employee to the full extent of the law as provided 
by the California Torts Claims Act (Government Code Section 810 et seq.) and the 
indemnity provisions of this Agreement, whichever shall provide the greatest protection 
to Employee. 

a. The District shall defend and indemnify the Employee against and for all 
losses sustained by Employee in direct consequences of the discharge of the Employee's 
duties on the District's behalf. 

b. The District shall defend, hold harmless and indemnify Employee against 
any tort, professional liability claim or demand or other legal action, whether groundless 
or otherwise, arising out of an alleged act or omission occurring in the performance of 
Employee's duties as General Manager!Public Works Director. The District may 
compromise and settle any such claim or suit and pay the amount of any settlement or 
judgment rendered thereon. 

c. Whenever Employee shall be sued for damages arising out of the 
performance of the Employee's official duties, the District shall provide defense counsel 
for the Employee in such suit and indemnify Employee from any judgment rendered 
against the Employee; provided that such indemnity shall not extend to any judgment for 
damages arising out of any willful wrongdoing. This indemnification shall extend beyond 
termination of employment and the otherwise expiration of this Agreement to provide 
protection for any such acts undertalcen or committed in Employee's official capacity, 
regardless of whether the notice of filing of a lawsuit occurs during or following 
employment with the District. This indemnity provision shall survive the termination of 

00014875.1 Page 5 of7 



the Agreement and is in addition to any other rights or remedies that Employee may have 
under the law. 

d. The District and all parties claiming under or through it, hereby waives all 
rights of subrogation and contribution against Employee, while acting within the scope of 
the General Manager's duties, from all claims, losses and liabilities arising out of or 
incident to activities or operations performed by or on behalf of the District or any party 
affiliated with or otherwise claiming under or through it, regardless of any prior, 
concurrent, or subsequent active or passive negligence by Employee. 

NOTICES 

17. All notices required under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be 
deemed to have been given at the time they are personally delivered to the party to whom 
given or mailed in any general or branch United States Post Office enclosed in a 
registered or ce1iified postage-paid envelope addressed to the address of the respective 
parties stated below, or to any changed address either party may have designated by 
notice: 

Employee's Address: 

On file with Payroll Clerk 

DISTRICT BOARD 
Attn: President of the Board 
16320 Everhart Dr. 
Weed, CA 96094 

Any notice of change of address shall be effective only upon receipt. 

WAIVER 

18. Failure to insist on strict compliance with any of the te1ms, covenants, or 
conditions of this Agreement shall not be deemed a waiver of that term, covenant, or 
condition, nor shall any waiver or relinquishment of any right or power for all or any 
other times. 

REMEDY FOR BREACH 

19. If Employee breaches any provision of this Agreement, the District shall 
be entitled if it so elects, to institute and prosecute proceedings in a court of competent 
jurisdiction to obtain damages for breach of this Agreement or for any other legal or 
equitable relief to which it may be entitled by law. The prevailing party in any action to 
enforce or interpret the te1ms of this Agreement shall be entitled to recover from the other 
party reasonable attorney's fees, comi costs and other necessary expenses incident to the 
action in addition to any other relief to which that party is entitled. Venue for any 
litigation shall be in Siskiyou County, California. 

PARTIAL INVALIDITY 

20. The invalidity or unenforceability of any te1m or provision or any clause 
of this Agreement shall in no way impair or affect the validity or enforceability of any 
other provision of this Agreement, which shall remain in full force and effect. 

00014875.1 Page 6 of7 



NON-ASSIGNMENT 

21. This Agreement is personal in nature, and neither of the parties shall, 
without the consent of the other, assign or transfer this Agreement or any rights or 
obligations under this Agreement. 

ENTIRE AGREEMENT 

22. This Contract represents the entire Agreement of the Parties, and no 
representations have been made or relied upon except as set forth herein. This Contract 
may be amended or modified only by a written, fully executed Agreement of the Parties. 

PERSONNEL RULES SUPERSEDED 

23. The provisions of this Agreement shall control and supersede the 
provisions of the District Personnel Policy and District Code in the event that there is an 
inconsistency between this Agreement and the Personnel Policy or District Code as later 
amended. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have duly executed this Agreement as of 
the day and year first written above. 

Robert Moser, Employee 

00014875.1 

LAKE SHASTINA CSD, Employer 

Rick Thompson, President of the 
District Board 

Approved as to f01m: 

Margaret Long, District Counsel 

Page 7 of 7 




